
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
JULY 9, 2007 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of        

City government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public 

needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual 

strategic planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 -  -  

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

July 9, 2007 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317   

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Randy Vinson – Glen Oaks 
Alliance Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Presentation by Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart – City Services 
Report Card.......................................................................................................... 1 

b) Presentation by Oakland County Commissioners – Robert Gosselin, David W. 
Potts, Tim Burns, and George W. Suarez ............................................................ 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 No Public Hearings 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Postponed Items 1 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: 1 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 2 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 2 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 2 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Proposed 2 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 2 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Water System 
Materials ............................................................................................................... 2 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-2 
Charnwood Hills Sanitary Sewer Phase II ............................................................ 3 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-4 
Charnwood Hills Phase I Chip Seal...................................................................... 3 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for 
Membership Dues and Membership Renewals Over $10,000: Southeast 
Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG)..................................................... 3 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County – Golf Equipment 
Installment Purchase of Seventy-Four (74) Precedent Golf Cars for Sylvan 
Glen Golf Course.................................................................................................. 4 

E-5 Request to Abandon a Permanent Easement for Water Main – Troy Church of the 
Nazarene, Section 4, Sidwell #88-20-04-100-010 – Project No. 06.941.3 4 

E-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – Troy Church 
of the Nazarene, Section 4, Sidwell #88-20-04-100-010 – Project No. 06.941.3 4 

E-7 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – William 
Beaumont Hospital, Section 1, Sidwell #88-20-01-200-018 5 

E-8 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer and 
Authorization of Payment for Easement and Temporary Construction and Grading 
Permit – Amina R. Haque Revocable Trust, Section 6, Sidwell #88-20-06-328-008 5 

E-9 Private Agreement for Troy Church of the Nazarene – Project No.06.941.3 5 

E-10 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – Alliance 
Mobile Health, Inc., Section 26, Sidwell #88-20-26-401-053 6 



 
 

 

E-11 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – 5600 New 
King SPE, LLC, Section 8, Sidwell #88-20-08-276-005 6 

E-12 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Water Main – Talon TLE-
Troy, LLC, Section 8, Sidwell #88-20-08-276-004 6 

E-13 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Right of Way – M & M Troy, Inc., 
Section 25, Sidwell #88-20-25-352-004 7 

E-14 Medi-Go Service Agreement 7 

E-15 Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2007-2008 7 

E-16 Private Agreement for Eastridge Medical Office Facility – Project No. 06.937.3 7 

E-17 Private Agreement for The Troy Medical Office Facility – Project No. 06.937.3 8 

E-18 Request for Public Hearing on July 23, 2007 for Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2004 Reprogramming of Unexpended Funds 8 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 8 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 8 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Historical Commission; Historic District Commission; 
Municipal Building Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board c) City Council 
Appointments – Students: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Cable 
Advisory Committee; and Troy Daze Committee 9 

F-2 Bid Waiver – Drain Improvements 11 

F-3 Change Order #1 to Section 26 and 30 Bituminous Overlays for Eckford Street 
Paving, Contract 07-1 – Project No. 03.503.5 11 

F-4 Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Printing and Distribution of Utility Bills 11 

F-5 Annual Performance Evaluation of the City Manager and City Attorney 12 



 
 

 

F-6 Adult Use Businesses – Licensing Ordinance 13 

F-7 Collins and Aikman Corporation, et al 14 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 15 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 15 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 15 

a) Request for Street Name Change Daley Street South of Big Beaver to Behr 
Drive ................................................................................................................... 15 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 15 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 15 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 15 

I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 15 

REPORTS: 15 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 15 

a) Charter Revision Committee/Final – July 25, 2005............................................. 15 
b) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust /Final – March 14, 2007................... 15 
c) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – May 3, 2007............................. 15 
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Minutes/Final – May 9, 

2007 ................................................................................................................... 15 
e) Library Advisory Board/Final – May 10, 2007..................................................... 15 
f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – May 15, 2007.................................................. 15 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 22, 2007................................ 15 
h) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – May 22, 2007 ......................................... 15 
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 5, 2007................................. 15 
j) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 5, 2007................................. 15 
k) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – June 7, 2007............................ 15 
l) Planning Commission/Draft – June 12, 2007...................................................... 15 
m) Planning Commission/Final – June 12, 2007...................................................... 15 
n) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – June 13, 2007 ..................................... 15 
o) Charter Revision Committee/Draft – June 15, 2007 ........................................... 15 
p) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – June 19, 2007................................................. 15 



 
 

 

J-2 Department Reports: 16 

a) Council Member Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Forum on the 
Future of Governance......................................................................................... 16 

b) City Attorney’s Office – 2007 Second Quarter Litigation Report ......................... 16 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 16 

a) Letter to Chief Craft from Carol Stehle in Appreciation of the Kindness and 
Compassion of Officer Drewek and Officer Meinzinger ...................................... 16 

b) Letter to Chief Nelson from Nancy Negohosian, HMS Products, Commending 
Lt. Janusz Bora for his Assistance...................................................................... 16 

c) Letter to Officer Harrison from Janet Martin, Wattles Creek Condominium 
Association, in Appreciation of the Presentation................................................. 16 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Proposed 16 

J-5  Calendar 16 

J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Hooters v. Troy – 
Post Consent Judgment Update 16 

J-7  Communication from City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew Regarding Charter Revision 
Committee Recommendations – Section 4.6 and 6.2 (e) – Excused Absences of 
City Council Members 16 

J-8  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Liquor License 
Article in Oakland County Bar Association Publication 16 

J-9  Communication from City Manager Phillip Nelson and City Attorney Lori Grigg 
Bluhm Regarding Refutation to Letter Challenging the Approval of Starbucks 16 

J-10  Communication from Human Resources Director Peggy Sears Regarding 
Revisions to 2007 Classified and Exempt Classification Plans 16 

J-11  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Papadelis v. City 
of Troy 16 

STUDY ITEMS: 16 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 16 



 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 17 

CLOSED SESSION: 17 

L-1 Closed Session: 17 

RECESSED 17 

RECONVENED 17 

ADJOURNMENT 17 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 18 

Monday, July 23, 2007............................................................................................. 18 
1. LMS, 5755 New King - Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) ......... 18 
2. LMS, 5755 New King - Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC)................................................................................................ 18 
3. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2004 

Reprogramming of Unexpended Funds (pending approval) ............................... 18 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 18 

Monday, July 23, 2007 Regular City Council......................................................... 18 
Wednesday, August 1, 2007 Special Joint City Council-Chamber of Commerce . 18 
Monday, August 6, 2007 Regular City Council...................................................... 18 
Monday, August 20, 2007 Regular City Council.................................................... 18 
Monday, September 10, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................. 18 
Monday, September 17, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................. 18 
Monday, October 1, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................... 18 
Monday, October 15, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................. 18 
Monday, November 12, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 18 
Monday, November 19, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 18 
Monday, December 3, 2007 Regular City Council ................................................ 18 
Monday, December 17, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 18 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Randy Vinson – Glen Oaks 
Alliance Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Presentation by Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart – City Services Report Card  
b) Presentation by Oakland County Commissioners – Robert Gosselin, David W. Potts, Tim 

Burns, and George W. Suarez  
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items  
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of June 18, 2007 
be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Proposed 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Water System 

Materials                     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide one-year 
requirements of Water System Materials to the low bidders:  Etna Supply Company of Grand 
Rapids, MI; Gunners Meters & Parts of Pontiac, MI; and SLC Meter Service, Inc of Davisburg, 
MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened June 5, 2007, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-2 
Charnwood Hills Sanitary Sewer Phase II                    

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-2, Charnwood Hills 
Sanitary Sewer Phase II, to Tyger Excavating, Inc., 52188 Van Dyke, Suite 211, Shelby 
Township, MI 48316 at an estimated total cost of $1,749,000; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the sewer benefit fee for Charnwood Sanitary Sewer Phase 
II, as provided for in Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code and revised by Resolution #2005-04-189, 
BE $16,246.79 based on the total cost of the sewer extension, including engineering, 
inspection, testing and contingency, divided by 122 sewer leads to existing and potential lots 
that may be derived from lot splits.   
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-4 

Charnwood Hills Phase I Chip Seal                    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-4, Charnwood Hills 
Phase I Chip Seal, to Pavement Recycling, Inc., 210 S. Blacks Corners Rd., Imlay City, MI  
48444, at an estimated total cost of $147,176.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Membership Renewals Over $10,000: Southeast Michigan Council of 
Governments (SEMCOG)                    

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That approval is GRANTED to pay membership dues to the Southeast Michigan 
Council of Governments (SEMCOG) in the amount of $11,740.00, which covers the time period 
of July 15, 2007 to July 15, 2008. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County – Golf Equipment Installment 
Purchase of Seventy-Four (74) Precedent Golf Cars for Sylvan Glen Golf Course                    

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase seventy-four 
(74) Precedent IQ Electric Golf Cars less sixty-five (65) trade-ins from Club Car, Inc of Georgia, 
through the Oakland County Purchasing Program at an estimated total cost of $229,494.00, 
payable in increments of $45,899.00 over five (5) years; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
agreement pertaining to this purchase, once in acceptable form. 
 
E-5 Request to Abandon a Permanent Easement for Water Main – Troy Church of the 

Nazarene, Section 4, Sidwell #88-20-04-100-010 – Project No. 06.941.3  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the abandonment of a Permanent 
Easement for Water Main as recorded in Liber 7552 page 889, Oakland County Register of 
Deeds; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to sign 
a Quit Claim Deed, conveying the City’s interest in the easement area to Troy Church of the 
Nazarene, property owner of the parcel having Sidwell #88-20-04-100-010; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Quit Claim 
Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – Troy Church 

of the Nazarene, Section 4, Sidwell #88-20-04-100-010 – Project No. 06.941.3  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Water 
Main from property owner Troy Church of the Nazarene, having Sidwell #88-20-04-100-010; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

E-7 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – William 
Beaumont Hospital, Section 1, Sidwell #88-20-01-200-018  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Water 
Main from property owner William Beaumont Hospital, owner of the property having Sidwell 
#88-20-01-200-018; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer and 

Authorization of Payment for Easement and Temporary Construction and Grading 
Permit – Amina R. Haque Revocable Trust, Section 6, Sidwell #88-20-06-328-008  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Sanitary 
Sewer from Amina R. Haque, as Trustee of the Amina R. Haque Revocable Trust, owner of the 
property having Sidwell #88-20-06-328-008; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of 
$7,810 plus costs for the easement and permit; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Permanent 
Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Private Agreement for Troy Church of the Nazarene – Project No.06.941.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Troy Church of the 
Nazarene for the installation of water main and detention pond on the site and in the adjacent 
right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

E-10 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – Alliance 
Mobile Health, Inc., Section 26, Sidwell #88-20-26-401-053 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Water 
Main from property owner Alliance Mobile Health, Inc., owner of the property having Sidwell 
#88-20-26-401-053; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – 5600 New King 

SPE, LLC, Section 8, Sidwell #88-20-08-276-005 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Water 
Main from property owner 5600 New King SPE, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-
20-08-276-005; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-12 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Water Main – Talon TLE-Troy, 

LLC, Section 8, Sidwell #88-20-08-276-004 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Water 
Main from property owner Talon TLE-Troy, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-
08-276-004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

E-13 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Right of Way – M & M Troy, Inc., 
Section 25, Sidwell #88-20-25-352-004 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed from property owner       
M & M Troy, Inc., owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-25-352-004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-14 Medi-Go Service Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request for funding in the amount 
of $180,000.00 or entire municipal community credits transferred from SMART (whichever is 
more) for Troy Medi-Go Plus for fiscal year 2007/2008, and the funding agreement between the 
City of Troy and Troy Medi-Go Plus covering July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008, and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-15 Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2007-2008 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the funding agreement between the 
City of Troy and Boys and Girls Club of Troy for July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008 and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
E-16 Private Agreement for Eastridge Medical Office Facility – Project No. 06.937.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Millcreek Building 
Company, for the installation of water main, asphalt approach, aggregate base, concrete curb 
and gutter and walkway on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

E-17 Private Agreement for The Troy Medical Office Facility – Project No. 06.937.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Vision Quest 
Consulting, Inc., for the installation of water main, asphalt approach, aggregate base, concrete 
curb and gutter and walkway on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-18 Request for Public Hearing on July 23, 2007 for Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2004 Reprogramming of Unexpended Funds 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Public Hearing on July 23, 2007 at 
7:30 PM or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit for the purpose of hearing public 
comments on the re-programming of program year 2004 unexpended funds from Sewer Benefit 
Fee (Special Assessment) Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6 to Sewer Benefit 
Fee (Special Assessment) Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #2, Section 6 and the Section 
36 Park Improvement Project, and the addition of Sewer Benefit Fee (Special Assessment) for 
Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #2, Section 6 and Section 36 Park Improvement Project, 
to the list of CDBG projects for 2004. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Historical Commission; Historic District Commission; 
Municipal Building Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board c) City Council 
Appointments – Students: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 
Cable Advisory Committee; and Troy Daze Committee      

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Historical Commission 
Appointed by Council  (7- Regular) 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/31/10 
 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 03/01/10 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 01/31/09 
 
Parks & Recreation Board
Appointed by Council (7 Regular) – 3 Year Terms (1-Troy School Board: 1-Troy Daze: 
 1-Adv. Committee for Sr. Citizens) – 1 Year Term 
 

(School Board Rep) Unexpired Term 01/31/09 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(c) City Council Appointments – Students
 

Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following student(s) to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council - 1 Year Term 
 

Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Cable Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council - 1 Year Term 
 

Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Troy Daze Committee
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 

Term Expires 07/01/08 
 

Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

F-2 Bid Waiver – Drain Improvements 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City has two projects requiring storm sewer and culvert improvements located 
at the intersection of Ottawa and Peacock Streets, and 6116 Elmoor Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, Contech Products, Inc., the manufacturer, has agreed to provide Contech storm 
sewer pipe and culvert products directly to the City of Troy at discounts greater than those of 
distributors; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and APPROVES a contract to purchase storm sewer pipe and culvert materials 
from Contech Products, Inc. of Clinton Twp, MI, for an estimated total cost of $22,355.50, at 
unit prices as detailed on Appendix 1, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Change Order #1 to Section 26 and 30 Bituminous Overlays for Eckford Street 

Paving, Contract 07-1 – Project No. 03.503.5 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Change Order No. 1 to Contract No. 
07-1, Section 26 and 30 – Bituminous Overlays, and Asix Asphalt Paving, LLC, be 
AUTHORIZED to perform the work at an estimated total cost of $39,919.00; the approved 
contract amount is increased to $454,170.40; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if additional work is required such additional work is 
AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the change order amount. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Printing and Distribution of Utility Bills 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

 
WHEREAS, On January 22, 2007, the option to renew the contract for one additional year to 
provide laser printing/distribution of water and sewer bills was exercised with the lowest bidder 
meeting specifications, Automated Computer Methods, Inc. of McHenry, IL, (Resolution # 2007-
01-015-E-4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Automated Computer Methods, Inc. has defaulted on the contract due to 
enforcement of liquidated damages as a result of the delayed distribution of the June water bills 
for District 3;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with prejudice the 
contract to provide laser printing / distribution of the City’s water and sewer bills from 
Automated Computer Methods, Inc., and RE-AWARDS to the next lowest bidder meeting 
specifications, Lason Systems, Inc. of Troy, MI, at an estimated total cost of $11,890.00 per 
year, plus the actual cost of first class postage; at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened March 2, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with the contract expiring April 30, 2008.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Annual Performance Evaluation of the City Manager and City Attorney 
 
(a) Proposed Resolution – Closed Session for Performance Evaluation of the City 

Attorney 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a closed session for Monday, July 9, 
2007 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan for the 
purpose of performance evaluation of the City Attorney, pursuant  to MCL 15.268 (a). 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
And 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
(b) Proposed Resolution – Closed Session for Annual Performance Evaluation of the 

City Manager
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a closed session for Monday, July 
23, 2007 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan for 
the purpose of performance evaluation of the City Manager, pursuant  to MCL 15.268 (a). 
 
Or 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a closed session for Monday, August 
6, 2007 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan for the 
purpose of performance evaluation of the City Manager, pursuant  to MCL 15.268 (a). 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Adult Use Businesses – Licensing Ordinance 
 
(a) Proposed Resolution – Chapter 76
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, It is recognized that there are some uses which, because of their very nature, have 
serious objectionable operational characteristics, particularly when several of them are 
concentrated under certain circumstances or when one (1) or more of them are located in near 
proximity to a residential zone, thereby having a deleterious effect upon the adjacent areas. 
Special regulation of these uses is necessary to ensure that these adverse effects will not 
contribute to the blighting or downgrading of the surrounding neighborhood.  These controls are 
for the purpose of preventing a concentration of these uses within any one (1) area, or to 
prevent deterioration or blighting of a nearby residential neighborhood. These controls do not 
legitimatize activities that are prohibited by other applicable laws;  
 
WHEREAS, In regulating adult business uses, it is the purpose of this ordinance to promote the 
health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the City of Troy, and to establish 
reasonable and uniform regulations to prevent the deleterious secondary effects of adult 
business uses within the City of Troy. The provisions of this ordinance have neither the purpose 
nor effect of imposing a limitation or restriction on the content or reasonable access to any 
communicative materials, including sexually oriented materials. Similarly, it is neither the intent 
nor effect of this ordinance to restrict or deny access by adults to sexually oriented materials 
protected by the First Amendment, or to deny access by the distributors and exhibitors of 
sexually oriented entertainment to their intended market. Neither is it the intent nor effect of this 
ordinance to condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene material; and 
 
WHEREAS, Based on evidence of the adverse secondary effects of adult business uses 
presented in reports made available to the City Council, and on findings incorporated in the 
cases of City of Renton v. Playtime Theatres, Inc., 475 U.S. 41 (1986), Young v. American Mini 
Theatres, 426 U.S. 50 (1976), and other cases; and reports of secondary effects occurring in 
and around adult business uses, including, but not limited to, Tucson AZ, Garden Grove CA, 
Ellicottville NY, New York NY, Times Square (New York City) NY, Oklahoma City OK, Cleburne 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

TX, Dallas TX, Houston TX, Newport News VI, and St. Croix County WI, the Troy City Council 
finds that adult business uses as a category of establishments are correlated with harmful 
secondary effects, and that the foregoing reports are reasonably believed to be relevant to the 
problems that the City of Troy is seeking to abate and prevent in the future; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Chapter 76, Adult Business Use Licensing, is hereby 
APPROVED and ENACTED, as recommended by City Administration, and a copy shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.    
 
And 
 
(b) Proposed Resolution  - Chapter 60  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Section 60.03 of Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds 
Required, is hereby AMENDED, as recommended by City Administration, and a copy of the 
amendment shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
And 
 
(c) Proposed Resolution - Chapter 3
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Section 1.141 (6) of Chapter 3, Administrative Service, 
is hereby AMENDED, as recommended by City Administration, and a copy of the amendment 
shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 Collins and Aikman Corporation, et al 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

RESOLVED, That Sandra S. Hamilton, of Nantz, Litowich, Smith, Girard and Hamilton, P.C., is 
hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and 
damages in the matter of In re Collins and Aikman Corporation, et al; Collins and Aikman 
Corporation, et al v. City of Troy, to RETAIN any necessary expert witnesses to adequately 
represent the City, and BE REIMBURSED for any expenses in defense of this matter. 
 
Yes: 
No:  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Request for Street Name Change Daley Street South of Big Beaver to Behr Drive  
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1   No Council Comments Advanced  
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Charter Revision Committee/Final – July 25, 2005 
b) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust /Final – March 14, 2007  
c) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – May 3, 2007 
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Minutes/Final – May 9, 2007  
e) Library Advisory Board/Final – May 10, 2007  
f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – May 15, 2007 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 22, 2007  
h) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – May 22, 2007  
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 5, 2007  
j) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 5, 2007  
k) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – June 7, 2007 
l) Planning Commission/Draft – June 12, 2007  
m) Planning Commission/Final – June 12, 2007  
n) 

07  
Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – June 13, 2007  

o) Charter Revision Committee/Draft – June 15, 20
) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – June 19, 2007 p

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 16 - 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) Council Member Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Forum on the Future of 

Governance  
b) City Attorney’s Office – 2007 Second Quarter Litigation Report  
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Chief Craft from Carol Stehle in Appreciation of the Kindness and Compassion 

of Officer Drewek and Officer Meinzinger  
b) Letter to Chief Nelson from Nancy Negohosian, HMS Products, Commending Lt. Janusz 

Bora for his Assistance  
c) Letter to Officer Harrison from Janet Martin, Wattles Creek Condominium Association, in 

Appreciation of the Presentation       
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Proposed 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Hooters v. Troy – 

Post Consent Judgment Update 
 
J-7  Communication from City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew Regarding Charter Revision 

Committee Recommendations – Section 4.6 and 6.2 (e) – Excused Absences of 
City Council Members 

 
J-8  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Liquor License 

Article in Oakland County Bar Association Publication 
 
J-9  Communication from City Manager Phillip Nelson and City Attorney Lori Grigg 

Bluhm Regarding Refutation to Letter Challenging the Approval of Starbucks 
 
J-10  Communication from Human Resources Director Peggy Sears Regarding 

Revisions to 2007 Classified and Exempt Classification Plans 
 
J-11  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Papadelis v. City 

of Troy 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 17 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:   
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (a), Performance Evaluation of City Attorney, Lori Grigg Bluhm.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 9, 2007 
 

- 18 - 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, July 23, 2007 
1. LMS, 5755 New King - Request for Industrial Development District (IDD)  
2. LMS, 5755 New King - Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 

(IFEC)  
3. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2004 

Reprogramming of Unexpended Funds (pending approval)  
 

 
SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 

 
Monday, July 23, 2007 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Wednesday, August 1, 2007 ....... Special Joint City Council-Chamber of Commerce 
Monday, August 6, 2007............................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, August 20, 2007.......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 10, 2007 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 17, 2007 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 1, 2007 .......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 15, 2007 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, November 12, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 19, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 3, 2007 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 17, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



CITY SERVICES REPORT CARDCITY SERVICES REPORT CARD

This survey card was inserted into the 
2007 City Calendar/Annual Report

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



O ll S ti f tiOverall Satisfaction

5%

1%

52%42%

Excellent Good Fair Poor



Professionalism of City Employees

5% 3%

55%
37%

5% 3%

Excellent Good Fair Poor



Troy TodayTroy Today

7%

0%

55%
38%

Excellent Good Fair Poor



A ti C tAquatic Center

53%36%

7% 4%

Excellent Good Fair Poor



Library Services

3%

1%

75%

21%
3%

Excellent Good Fair Poor



Community CenterCommunity Center

5%

1%

63%

31%

Excellent Good Fair Poor



Fire Departmentp

1% 1%

76%

22%

Excellent Good Fair Poor



Police DepartmentPolice Department

5% 2%

73%

20%

5% 2%

Excellent Good Fair Poor



R f C ll tiRefuse Collection

8% 3%

60%

29%

8% 3%

Excellent Good Fair Poor



R d I tRoad Improvements

13% 22%

45%

20%

13%

45%

Excellent Good Fair Poor



Cit f T W b itCity of Troy Website

10%

0%

46%

44%

Excellent Good Fair Poor





1

Laura D Campbell

From: Beth L Tashnick
Sent: Tuesday, July 03, 2007 11:38 AM
To: agenda
Subject: 07.09.07 - Presentation by Oakland County Commissioners - Robert Gosselin, David W. 

Potts, Tim Burns, George W. Suarez

There is no back up information with this item.

L. Brooks Patterson and the Oakland County Commission congratulate the City of Troy being named a 
"Metro Detroit 2007 Entrepreneurial City" and a Top Performing Community in attracting 
Entrepreneurial Businesses by the University of Michigan Dearborn

Uxà{ gtá{Ç|v~ 
City of Troy 
Manager's Office 
tashnickbl@troymi.gov 
Phone (248) 524-3330 
Fax    (248) 524-0851 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b

campbellld
Text Box



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 9, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  
B-1 No Carryover Items  

campbellld
Text Box
B-01



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 9, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS:
  
C-1 No Public Hearings  

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 9, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  
D-1 No Postponed Items  

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, June 18, 2007, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:32 PM. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Broomfield gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was 
given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert (Absent) 
Jeanne M. Stine 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Lambert 
 
Resolution #2007-06-185 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Lambert at the Regular City Council meeting of June 18, 2007 due to being absent from the 
County.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No:  None 
Absent:  Lambert 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented Brian Stoutenburg a Service 

Commendation recognizing his 30 years of Library Administration, including 10 years of 
dedicated service to the City of Troy. 

b) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented Neall Schroeder a Service 
Commendation recognizing his 20 years of dedicated service with the City of Troy and 
over 30 years of additional service with MDOT, AJAX Paving and other municipalities 
including the cities of Rochester Hills and Detroit. 

c) Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation to Jack and Pearl Kotter recognizing the 
occasion of their 50th Wedding Anniversary on behalf of the City of Troy. 

d) Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation to Tom Brisse, Senior Vice President and  
Hospital Director, in celebration of Beaumont Hospital’s 30 Years in Troy.  

pallottaba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

f) Mayor Schilling presented one of thirty annual Loss Control Awards awarded by the 
Michigan Municipal League Workers’ Compensation Fund which recognizes members 
for outstanding efforts in maintaining a safe work environment and dedication to reducing 
workman compensation losses through employee training to Stephen Cooperrider, Risk 
Manager who accepted the award on behalf of the City of Troy. 

e) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling accepted a check in the amount of $162, 
668.69 presented by the Historical Society to complete the purchase of the Johnson 
Niles House, donated by the Barnard family, at 100 W. Wattles. 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Special Assessment Roll for Asphalt Paving of the Easterly ½ of Eckford in 
Section 15 – Project No. 06.202.1 

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment: 
 
Linda Koehler-Support 
Lori Doepke-Oppose 
Margorie Kowalak-Oppose 
David Ashland-Clarification Comment 
 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2007-06-186 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council has caused Special Assessment roll no. 06.202.1 to be prepared 
for the purpose of defraying the Special Assessment District’s portion of the following described 
public improvement in the City of Troy; 
 

Bituminous Paving of Easterly ½ of Eckford Street 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council and the City Assessor have met after due legal notice and have 
reviewed said special assessment roll and have heard all persons interested in said special 
assessment roll appearing at said hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council is satisfied with said Special Assessment Roll as prepared by the 
City Assessor; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS Special 
Assessment Roll No. 06.202.1 in the amount of $428,100.00 as prepared by the City Assessor, 
a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

Yes:  Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Stine, Schilling  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Lambert 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) – Articles IV and XXII 

– Adult Business Uses 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment: 
 
David Ashland-Support 
 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the public. 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, It is recognized that there are some uses which, because of their very nature, have 
serious objectionable operational characteristics, particularly when several of them are 
concentrated under certain circumstances or when one (1) or more of them are located in near 
proximity to a residential zone, thereby having a deleterious effect upon the adjacent areas. 
Special regulation of these uses is necessary to ensure that these adverse effects will not 
contribute to the blighting or downgrading of the surrounding neighborhood. These controls are 
for the purpose of preventing a concentration of these uses within any one (1) area, or to 
prevent deterioration or blighting of a nearby residential neighborhood. These controls do not 
legitimatize activities that are prohibited by other applicable laws;  
 
WHEREAS, In regulating adult business uses, it is the purpose of this ordinance to promote the 
health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the City of Troy, and to establish 
reasonable and uniform regulations to prevent the deleterious secondary effects of adult 
business uses within the City of Troy. The provisions of this ordinance have neither the purpose 
nor effect of imposing a limitation or restriction on the content or reasonable access to any 
communicative materials, including sexually oriented materials. Similarly, it is neither the intent 
nor effect of this ordinance to restrict or deny access by adults to sexually oriented materials 
protected by the First Amendment, or to deny access by the distributors and exhibitors of 
sexually oriented entertainment to their intended market. Neither is it the intent nor effect of this 
ordinance to condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene material; and 
 
WHEREAS, Based on evidence of the adverse secondary effects of adult business uses 
presented in reports made available to the City Council, and on findings incorporated in the 
cases of City of Renton v. Playtime Theatres, Inc., 475 U.S. 41 (1986), Young v. American Mini 
Theatres, 426 U.S. 50 (1976), and other cases; and reports of secondary effects occurring in 
and around adult business uses, including, but not limited to, Tucson AZ, Garden Grove CA, 
Ellicottville NY, New York NY, Times Square (New York City) NY, Oklahoma City OK, Cleburne 
TX, Dallas TX, Houston TX, Newport News VI, and St. Croix County WI, the Planning 
Commission finds that adult business uses as a category of establishments are correlated with 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

harmful secondary effects, and that the foregoing reports are reasonably believed to be 
relevant to the problems that the City of Troy is seeking to abate and prevent in the future; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Articles IV 
Definitions and XXII B-3 General Business District, pertaining to permitting Adult Business 
Uses subject to Special Use Approval in the B-3 District, as printed on the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the amendments to Articles IV Definitions and XXII B-3 
General Business District, SHALL BE EFFECTIVE upon the adoption, publication, and 
effective date of amendments to Chapters 3, 60, and the enactment of Chapter 76. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2006-06-187 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the resolution for Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 
207) – Articles IV and XXII – Adult Business Uses be AMENDED by CORRECTING Section 
04.20.50 ESCORT by INSERTING the close parenthesis after “entertainer”. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2007-06-188 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, It is recognized that there are some uses which, because of their very nature, have 
serious objectionable operational characteristics, particularly when several of them are 
concentrated under certain circumstances or when one (1) or more of them are located in near 
proximity to a residential zone, thereby having a deleterious effect upon the adjacent areas. 
Special regulation of these uses is necessary to ensure that these adverse effects will not 
contribute to the blighting or downgrading of the surrounding neighborhood. These controls are 
for the purpose of preventing a concentration of these uses within any one (1) area, or to 
prevent deterioration or blighting of a nearby residential neighborhood. These controls do not 
legitimatize activities that are prohibited by other applicable laws;  
 
WHEREAS, In regulating adult business uses, it is the purpose of this ordinance to promote the 
health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the City of Troy, and to establish 
reasonable and uniform regulations to prevent the deleterious secondary effects of adult 
business uses within the City of Troy. The provisions of this ordinance have neither the purpose 
nor effect of imposing a limitation or restriction on the content or reasonable access to any 
communicative materials, including sexually oriented materials. Similarly, it is neither the intent 
nor effect of this ordinance to restrict or deny access by adults to sexually oriented materials 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

protected by the First Amendment, or to deny access by the distributors and exhibitors of 
sexually oriented entertainment to their intended market. Neither is it the intent nor effect of this 
ordinance to condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene material; and 
WHEREAS, Based on evidence of the adverse secondary effects of adult business uses 
presented in reports made available to the City Council, and on findings incorporated in the 
cases of City of Renton v. Playtime Theatres, Inc., 475 U.S. 41 (1986), Young v. American Mini 
Theatres, 426 U.S. 50 (1976), and other cases; and reports of secondary effects occurring in 
and around adult business uses, including, but not limited to, Tucson AZ, Garden Grove CA, 
Ellicottville NY, New York NY, Times Square (New York City) NY, Oklahoma City OK, Cleburne 
TX, Dallas TX, Houston TX, Newport News VI, and St. Croix County WI, the Planning 
Commission finds that adult business uses as a category of establishments are correlated with 
harmful secondary effects, and that the foregoing reports are reasonably believed to be 
relevant to the problems that the City of Troy is seeking to abate and prevent in the future; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Articles IV 
Definitions and XXII B-3 General Business District, pertaining to permitting Adult Business 
Uses subject to Special Use Approval in the B-3 District, as AMENDED and CORRECTED in 
the June 18th, 2007 Memorandum and further AMENDED by CORRECTING Section 04.20.50 
ESCORT by INSERTING the close parenthesis after “entertainer”; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the amendments to Articles IV Definitions and XXII B-3 
General Business District, SHALL BE EFFECTIVE upon the adoption, publication, and 
effective date of amendments to Chapters 3, 60, and the enactment of Chapter 76.   
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al. 
 
Resolution #2007-06-189 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES and DIRECTS the City Attorney to 
represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Nick 
Karagiannakis and Leslie Karagiannakis, husband and wife, and Garrett Family Limited 
Partnership, a Michigan Limited Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al., (Oakland County Circuit 
Court Case No. 07-083014-CZ) and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to adequately 
represent the City. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

D-2 Appointment to Boards and Committees: City Council Appointment: Board of 
Zoning Appeals 

 
(b)  City Council Appointment 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular; 1-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Michael W. Bartnik  Unexpired Term 04/30/09 
 
Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Proposed Resolution – City Council 
Appointments to the Board of Zoning Appeals to include the name of Tom Krent in the 
nominations for Board of Zoning Appeals member for the unexpired term of April 30, 2009. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone Indefinitely Resolution to Amend  
 
Resolution #2007-06-190 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES INDEFINITELY the Resolution to 
Amend Proposed Resolution – City Council Appointments to the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
(b)  Vote on City Council Appointment to Board of Zoning Appeals 

 
Resolution #2007-06-191 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
Board of Zoning Appeals  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

Appointed by Council (7-Regular; 1-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Michael W. Bartnik  Unexpired Term 04/30/09 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-1a 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Lambert  
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-2 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of June 4, 2007 
and the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Special City Council Meeting of June 11, 2007 be APPROVED 
as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  
 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-3 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) Parks and Recreation Month – July, 2007 
b) Beaumont Hospital Troy – Celebrating 30 Years  
c) Jack and Pearl Kotter – 50th Wedding Anniversary  
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Library Bathroom 

Renovations           
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

Resolution #2007-06-192-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the Troy Public 
Library Bathroom Renovations to the low bidder, D & S Contractors, Inc. of Berkley, MI, at 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened May 30, 2007, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds on Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expenses – Michigan 
Municipal League (MML) Board of Trustees Meetings           

 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That approval to expend funds is AUTHORIZED for travel expenses associated 
with Council Member Robin Beltramini’s attendance of all meetings required as a result of her 
appointment to the Michigan Municipal League Board of Trustees which expires in September 
of 2008. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder Contract 07-3 – Livernois 

Road Resurfacing, Maple to Big Beaver Project No. 07.101.5           
 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-3, Livernois Road 
Resurfacing, Maple to Big Beaver, to Cadillac Asphalt LLC, 4751 White Lake Road, Clarkston, 
MI 48346 at an estimated total cost of $787,855.94; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles           
 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-4d 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase seven (7) 2008 
Ford Crown Victoria blue and white patrol cars from Signature Ford of Owosso, MI, through a 
Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for an estimated total cost of $147,077.00. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – One (1) Trailer Mounted Sewer Jet           
 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-4e 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase one (1) Trailer 
Mounted Sewer Jet to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Jack Doheny Supplies, Inc. of 
Northville, MI for an estimated total cost of $59,820.00, as detailed in the bid tabulation opened 
May 2, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Fleet Maintenance Division is AUTHORIZED to accept 
or reject the trade-in offer of $7,500.00 for the sewer jet, pending the results to offer the 
equipment for sale on the open market at an amount greater than $7,500.00.  
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Development 

Approval/Permit Process Consultant           
 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-4f 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract for development 
approval/permit process consulting services to Zucker Systems of San Diego, CA, the bidder 
with the highest score as a result of a best value process, which the Troy City Council 
determines to be in the public interest, at an estimated total cost of $58,700.00; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements; and if additional work is required that could not be foreseen, such additional work 
is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost, at unit prices 
contained in the schedule of values opened April 24, 2007, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
E-5 Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 

to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #65 – Sidwell #88-20-01-151-049 
– Mark and Elizabeth Abro  

 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Mark and Elizabeth Abro, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-
01-151-049, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $12,100.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary acquisition and closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

E-6 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze Festival  
 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ISSUES a fireworks permit to Mad Bomber 
Fireworks Productions, of Kingsbury, IN for the display of fireworks at the conclusion of the 
2007 Troy Daze Festival on September 16, 2007. 
 
E-7 Private Agreement for Beaumont Critical Care – Project No. 06.933.3  
 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Beaumont Services 
Co., LLC for the installation of, water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, paving, soil erosion 
and landscaping and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Broomfield from Special City Council 

Meeting of Monday, June 11, 2007 
 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Pro Tem 
Broomfield due to being out of the county at the Special City Council meeting of June 11, 2007.  
 
E-9 2006/07 Budget Amendment No. 2 
 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2006/07 Budget Amendment No. 
2 as submitted, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
E-10 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary 

Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South 
Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #69 – Sidwell #88-20-01-151-046 – Mark 
and Elizabeth Abro 

 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-10 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Mark and Elizabeth Abro, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-
01-151-046, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $17,800.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permit in the amount of $200.00 from Mark and Elizabeth Abro, 
owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-01-151-046; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register 
of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11 Approval to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions – South Side of Hickory from 

Livernois to Plum 
 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES the no parking restrictions on the south 
side of Hickory from Livernois to Plum, on June 24, 2007, between the hours of 1:00 PM and 
10:00 PM. 
 
E-12 Private Agreement for The Village at Big Beaver – Phase I Project No. 07.902.3 
 
Resolution #2007-06-192-E-12 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and SAAAM-TROY, 
LLC, for the installation of sanitary sewer, water main, and concrete left-turn lane, walkway, 
approach and concrete curb and gutter on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
F-9 Final Approval – The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development (PUD 7) – 

Proposed Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development, Southwest corner of 
Big Beaver and John R, Section 26 – M-1 (Light Industrial) District 

 
Resolution #2007-06-193 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
WHEREAS, The petitioner SAAAM-Troy, LLC has requested Final Planned Unit Development 
approval, pursuant to article 35.60.021, for The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit 
Development (PUD–7), located on the south side of Big Beaver and west side of John R Road, 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

located in section 26, within the M-1 zoning district, being approximately 15.048 acres in size; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council granted Preliminary Planned Unit Development Approval of PUD – 7, 
with conditions, on April 30, 2007; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Final Planned Unit Development application is consistent with the application 
that received Preliminary Planned Unit Development Approval, including conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Eligibility Requirements set forth in Article 35.30.00 
and the General Development Standards set forth in Section 35.40.00; and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Planned Unit Development, parts of parcels 88-20-26-200-026, -
023, -069, -072, -073, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the 
attached Certificate of Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NE 1/4 of Section 26 
 

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 26, thence S 00°04'00" W 
along the East line of said Section 26, a distance of 102.00 ft.; thence N 
89°59'10" W (recorded as S 89°50'00" E), 60.00 ft. along the extension of the 
south line of Big Beaver Road (204 ft. wide) to the Point of Beginning; thence S 
00°04'00" along the west line of John R. Rd., 1032.00 ft.; thence parallel to said 
North line of Section 26, N 89°59'10" W, 260.00 ft.; thence parallel to said East 
line of Section 26, S 00°04'00" W, 144.00 ft.; thence parallel to said North line of 
Section 26, N 89°59'10" W, 160 ft.; thence parallel to said East line of Section 
26, N 00°04"00" E, 338.00 ft.; thence parallel to said North line of Section 26, N 
89°59'10" W, 235.00 ft.; thence N 00°16'31" W, 838.01 ft. (recorded as N 
00°16'24" W, 839.09 ft.) to the aforementioned south line of Big Beaver Rd.; 
thence S 89°59'10" E (recorded as N 89°50'00" E) along said south line, 660.00 
ft. to the Point of Beginning; containing 15.048 acres more or less. 

 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Planned Unit Development requires that transfer by Quit Claim 
Deed of a small portion of property owned by the City but not used for roadway that is located 
to the north of Lincoln Road to the property owner for inclusion of that property into the 
proposed Planned Unit Development and the City has determined that no retention of any 
easements are necessary; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO SIGN a Quit Claim 
Deed conveying to SAAAM-TROY, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, the City’s interest, 
if any, in the property legally described as: 
 

  “A described area over part of the Northeast ¼ of Section 26, Town 2 North, 
Range 11 East, City of Troy, Oakland County Michigan and being more 
particularly described as: Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 
26; thence S00°04’00”W, 940.00 feet along east line of said Section 26; thence 
N89°59’10”W, 60.00 feet to the west line of John R Road (120’ wide) and the 
Point of Beginning; thence continuing N89°59’10”W, 325.00 feet; thence 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

N00°00’50”E, 25.00 feet; thence S89°59’10”E, 325.00 feet to the west line of 
John R Road; thence S00°00’50”W, 25 feet along said west line to the Point of 
Beginning.” Parcel No. 88-20-26-200-073 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Zoning District Map of the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance be AMENDED to delineate the subject parcel as PUD-007; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the Development Agreement for The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit 
Development; a copy shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development 
Agreement be RECORDED with the Oakland County Register of Deeds; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if there are significant revisions from the approved 
Preliminary PUD for Phase II Senior Living, and the Final PUD for Phase II Senior Living, then 
City Council SHALL REVIEW FOR APPROVAL OR DENIAL the Final Site Plan for Phase II 
Senior Living. If there are no significant revisions from the approved Preliminary PUD for Phase 
II Senior Living, and the Final PUD, then the Planning Director MAY ADMINISTRATIVELY 
APPROVE OR DENY the Final Site Plan for Phase II Senior Living; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the applicant shall SEEK and RECEIVE all required permits, 
licenses or approvals, including but not limited to, Federal, State of Michigan, Oakland County 
and City of Troy agencies or departments, in accordance with all applicable laws. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Lambert  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Historical Commission; c) 
City Council Appointments – Students: Advisory Committee for Persons with 
Disabilities; Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic 
District Commission; Historical Commission; Library Advisory Board; Liquor 
Advisory Committee; Parks & Recreation; Planning Commission; Traffic 
Committee and Troy Daze Committee   

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2007-06-194b 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Historical Commission  
Appointed by Council (7- Regular) 3 Year Terms 
 
Vera Milz Term Expires 07/31/10 

 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 

(c) City Council Appointments - Students 
 

Resolution #2007-06-194c 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following student(s) to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council - 1 Year Term 
 
Gina Hyun Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 
Nancy Chen Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council - 1 Year Term 
 
Lulu Guo Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Helen Yang Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Historic District Commission  
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 
Nishita Parmer Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Historical Commission  
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 
Janice Chen Term Expires 07/01/08 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

Library Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 
Arthi Krishna Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Shurthi Subramanian Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Liquor Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 
Clark Yuan Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 
Divya Subramanian Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Planning Commission 
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 
Joel Cortright Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 
Ted Hwang Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Prithvi Murthy Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Troy Daze Committee 
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 
Sarah Wunderlich Term Expires 07/01/08 

 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
F-2 Bid Waiver – Sole Source Purchase – Chemical Munitions 
 
Resolution #2007-06-195 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, Chemical munitions are a necessary part of the successful resolution of a tactical 
incident and assists law enforcement in the advancement of its main purpose and goal which is 
to protect life and property;  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 16 - 

WHEREAS, Certain aspects of tactical incidents depend upon and cannot be advanced without 
the use of chemical munitions; and 
 
WHEREAS, DEF-TEC (Defense Technologies) is the sole manufacturer and supplier of 
chemical munitions equipment;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and APPROVES a contract to purchase chemical munitions from DEF-TEC 
(Defense Technologies) of Casper, WY for an estimated total cost of $16,580.00.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
F-3 Bid Waiver – Sole Source – Irrigation Supplies 
 
Resolution #2007-06-196 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, On June 16, 2003, a two-year contract to provide Rainbird irrigation replacement 
parts was awarded to the authorized dealer/distributor for Michigan, John Deere Landscapes, 
Inc. of Madison Heights, MI (Resolution #2003-06-335);  
 
WHEREAS, On June 20, 2005 a contract renewal was approved under the same pricing 
structure, terms and conditions (Resolution #2005-06-299-E-4a); and  
 
WHEREAS, John Deere Landscapes, Inc., the exclusive distributor, has agreed to renew the 
contract to provide irrigation parts and materials directly to the City of Troy at greatly reduced 
prices under the same pricing structure, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and APPROVES a two-year contract to provide Rainbird, MAXICOM, and other 
irrigation parts and materials with John Deere Landscapes, Inc. of Madison Heights, MI, at 
discounts up to 46% expiring June 30, 2009. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
F-4 Replacement of City Code Chapter 86 – Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control 
 
Resolution #2007-06-197 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy strives to protect our Natural Resources and the Environment;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 17 - 

WHEREAS, The Michigan Department of Environmental Quality mandates that all 
municipalities that are soil erosion and sedimentation control enforcement agencies have an 
approved soil erosion ordinance that addresses all requirements set forth by Part 91 of the 
Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, Public Act 451, and the promulgated 
Administrative Rules under Part 91; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Engineering Department has worked diligently with the Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality to draft an approved ordinance;  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS City Code Chapter 86, Soil Erosion 
and Sedimentation Control, as previously accepted for approval by the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality on April 5, 2007 and ATTACHED hereto; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, This Ordinance Chapter SHALL REPLACE the current City 
Code Chapter 86 in its entirety; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution and City Code Chapter 86 
SHALL BE FORWARDED for approval to the Water Bureau of the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality by the City Clerk. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
F-5 Appointment of Voting Delegate for the June 21, 2007 SEMCOG General Assembly 

Meeting – No Action Taken by City Council 
 
F-6 2007 Part-time Wage Recommendations 
 
Resolution #2007-06-198 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2007 Part-Time Wage 
Recommendations as recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
F-7 2007 Annual Salary Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and Proposed 

Changes to Benefit Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 18 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2007 Classification and Pay Plans 
as recommended by City Management and the Personnel Board, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council hereby APPROVES the 2007 changes to 
the benefit package provided to Classified and Exempt employees as recommended by City 
Management and the Personnel Board, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Council hereby APPROVES the revision to the 
Personnel Rules & Regulations for Classified personnel, as recommended by City Management 
and the Personnel Board, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Proposed Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the resolution for the 2007 Annual 
Salary Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and proposed Changes to Benefit 
Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled 
for Monday, July 9, 2007 and DIRECTS City Staff to provide backup documentation explaining 
the proposed changes. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend the Proposed Resolution to Postpone by Separating 
Action 
 
Resolution #2007-06-199 
Moved by Broomfield 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the proposed Resolution to Postpone by 
SEPARATING the action for the 2007 Classification Plan for Classified and Exempt Employees 
from the proposed resolution to postpone the 2007 Annual Salary Update for Classified and 
Exempt Employees and proposed Changes to Benefit Package and Personnel Rules & 
Regulations. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Beltramini  
No: Stine, Schilling  
Absent: Lambert 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 19 - 

Vote on Main Resolution as Separated and Amended 
 
Resolution #2007-06-200 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2007 Pay Plan as recommended 
by City Management and the Personnel Board, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council hereby APPROVES the 2007 changes to 
the benefit package provided to Classified and Exempt employees as recommended by City 
Management and the Personnel Board, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Council hereby APPROVES the revision to the 
Personnel Rules & Regulations for Classified personnel, as recommended by City Management 
and the Personnel Board, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming  
No: Stine  
Absent: Lambert  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Postponed Resolution as Separated  
 
Resolution #2007-06-201 
Moved by Broomfield 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the resolution for the 2007 
Classification Plan for Classified and Exempt Employees until the Regular City Council meeting 
scheduled for Monday, July 9, 2007 and DIRECTS City Staff to provide backup documentation 
explaining the proposed changes. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming 
No: Stine, Schilling 
Absent: Lambert  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-8 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services - SOCRRA 
 
Resolution #2007-06-202 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 20 - 

RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement for the 
City of Troy to provide fleet maintenance services to SOCRRA, and the City Clerk and Mayor 
are AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) LMS – 5755 New King - Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) and the 

Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – July 23, 2007     
Noted and Filed 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
a) Adult Use Businesses – Licensing Ordinance 

Noted and Filed 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced   
 
Mayor Schilling enjoyed attending the Music, Movies and Moonlight at Boulan Park on Saturday 
night and noted that there was a turnout of approximately 400 residents. The Mayor indicated 
that the next event at Boulan Park is scheduled for August 4th. In addition to this event, Jazz on 
the Corridor is also being hosted by the City of Troy at the Columbia Center on Big Beaver. 
 
Council Member Stine expressed concern about noise levels caused by these events for 
adjacent residents. 
 
Council Member Broomfield asked when the sign at Hooters is scheduled to be changed. 
Lori Bluhm, City Attorney explained that the effective date for the agreement is effective after 
the liquor license is received by Hooters from the MLLC and that the sign will be changed within 
30 days from that date. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 21 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – March 6, 2007  
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – May 2, 2007  
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – May 2, 2007 
d) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – May 2, 2007  
e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 22, 2007 
f) Personnel Board/Draft – May 29, 2007  
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – June 6, 2007 
h) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – June 7, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of May, 2007  
b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Services – April, 

2007  
c) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – May 31, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Jennifer Lawson from Oakland University’s Pre-College Programs 

Staff and the Water Festival Committee Members for Supporting and Presenting at the 
2007 Clinton River Water Festival   

Noted and Filed 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Program 

Year 2007 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Allocation 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-7  Communication from Information Technology Director Gert Paraskevin and 

Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart Regarding Archiving City Council 
Meeting Webcasts on the Website 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-8  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding Norma J. Robertson v. 

City of Troy  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-9  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding Hookah Cafes 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 22 - 

J-10  Communication Regarding Water Billing Issues – June, 2007  
Noted and Filed 

 
The meeting RECESSED at 10:17 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 10:33 PM. 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Discussion of the Futures Report 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:04 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 9, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
PROPOSED CITY OF TROY PROCLAMATION(S):  
E-3 No Proposed Proclamations  

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



 

 
June 26, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Water System 

Materials  
Background 
 On June 5, 2007, bid proposals were received to furnish one-year requirements of water system 

materials. 
 135 vendors were notified via the MITN system with three (3) bidders responding. 
 All items recommended represent the lowest bidder for each item. 
 Estimated quantities of materials shall be purchased at quoted unit prices, and ordered on an as 

needed basis. 
 Informal quotes will be taken for Item #9 Mueller Fire Hydrants Parts, as no discounts were offered. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the Water Division Operating Budget. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 07-23, Water System Materials was competitively bid in accordance with Chapter 7 of the 

City Code, and opened with three bidders responding. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying goods to the 

City of Troy.  (Goal II) 
 
Options 
 City management recommends awarding contracts to the following low bidders:  Etna Supply 

Company of Grand Rapids, MI; Gunners Meters & Parts of Pontiac, MI; and SLC Meter Service, Inc of 
Davisburg, MI for an estimated total cost of $55,182.00, $79,760.00 and $4,096.00 respectively at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened June 5, 2007. 

 
 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 07.09.07 SR1 – WaterSystemMatls ITB-COT 07-23  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-23
Opening Date -- 6/5/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 4
Date Prepared --  6/26/07 WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL
ITEM #1 CURB BOX ITEMS

1 200 2 X 1 1/2" BLACK BUSHING 1.85$         370.00$          2.15$          430.00$          
2 500 2" MINNEAPOLIS CURB BOX W/STEMS 51.10$       25,550.00$     26.50$        13,250.00$     
3 50 2" Curb Box (Mueller #H10300-9902) 29.40$       1,470.00$       32.50$        1,625.00$       

MANUFACTURER AY McDonald/Mueller McDonald
MODEL 5613 - 5611

ITEM #2 CORPORATION STOPS
1 350 1" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 21.03$       7,360.50$       20.00$        7,000.00$       
2 100 1 1/2" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 56.72$       5,672.00$       53.85$        5,385.00$       
3 100 2" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 99.08$       9,908.00$       95.00$        9,500.00$       

MANUFACTURER McDonald
MODEL 4701

ITEM #3 CURB STOPS (Ball Valve Type)
1 350 1" CURB STOPS w/nuts 42.01$       14,703.50$     41.50$        14,525.00$     
2 100 1 1/2" CURB STOPS w/nuts 92.30$       9,230.00$       88.50$        8,850.00$       
3 100 2" CURB STOPS w/nuts 149.34$     14,934.00$     144.50$      14,450.00$     

MANUFACTURER McDonald
MODEL 6104

ITEM #4 FULL CIRCLE REPAIR CLAMPS
1 2 3" X 7 1/2" Range 3.73-4.00 -Single Band 30.05$       60.10$            -$            -$               
2 10 6" x 15" Range 6.84-7.64 112.83$     1,128.30$       -$            -$               
3 10 8" x 12" FS2 Tapped OD 8.99-9.79 99.11$       991.10$          -$            -$               
4 6 12" x 12 1/2" FS2 Tapped 13.20 - 14.00 189.88$     1,139.28$       -$            -$               
5 6 12" x 15" FS2 Tapped 13.65-14.45 219.09$     1,314.54$       -$                 -$               

MANUFACTURER Smith Blair
MODEL

ITEM #5 BRASS FITTINGS
1 100 1" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 12.82$       1,282.00$       12.40$        1,240.00$       
2 100 1 - 1 1/2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 35.21$       3,521.00$       34.50$        3,450.00$       
3 100 2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 57.45$       5,745.00$       55.60$        5,560.00$       
4 100 1" x 90 Degree bend non-swivel less nuts 11.34$       1,134.00$       23.80$        2,380.00$       
5 100 2" x 90 Degree bend non-swivel less nuts 62.07$       6,207.00$       102.50$      10,250.00$     

MANUFACTURER Ford McDonald
MODEL 4758

ITEM #6 BRONZE TAPPING SADDLES w/cc THREADS
AC/Ductilie Iron Pipe

1 40 1" x 8" Tap Saddle 71.59$       2,863.60$       77.50$        3,100.00$       
2 20 2" x 8" Tap Saddle 82.05$       1,641.00$       88.50$        1,770.00$       
3 40 1 1/2" x 12" Tap Saddle 117.08$     4,683.20$       133.80$      5,352.00$       
4 40 2" x 12" Tap Saddle 119.20$     4,768.00$       136.50$      5,460.00$       

Ductilie Iron Pipe
5 20 1" x 16" DI Tap Saddle 254.21$     5,084.20$       291.90$      5,838.00$       
6 40 1 1/2 x 16" DI Tap Saddle 269.73$     10,789.20$     310.40$      12,416.00$     
7 30 2" x 16" DI Tap Saddle 298.07$     8,942.10$       340.10$      10,203.00$     

Concrete Steel Pipe
8 10 2" x 16" Service Saddle 125.05$     1,250.50$       285.50$      2,855.00$       

MANUFACTURER McDonald-JCM
MODEL 3825

NO BID

Ford/Smith Blair

GUNNERS METERS & PARTS

Ford

ETNA SUPPLY COMPANY

Ford



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-23
Opening Date -- 06/5/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 6/26/07 WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL
ITEM #7 VALVE BOX PARTS

1 2 18" D-BOX BOTTOM SECTION 24.05$       48.10$            -$            -$               
2 20 24" D-BOX BOTTOM SECTION 28.04$       560.80$          -$            -$               
3 12 D-BOX RISER - SCREW IN TYPE 12" 27.89$      334.68$         -$           -$              
4 20 D-BOX TOP - SECTION 16" 22.45$       449.00$          -$            -$               
5 20 D-BOX TOP - SECTION 26" 36.08$       721.60$          -$            -$               

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #8 WATER MAIN FITTINGS
1 12 6" x 7 1/2 MJ DI Solid Sleeve 37.35$       448.20$          -$            -$               
2 4 12" MJ Split Rings 13.75$       55.00$            -$            -$               
3 6 12" MJ Rings 11.84$       71.04$            -$            -$               
4 1 length 24" Clas 54 Ductile Iron Pipe $    74.05 ft 1,481.00$       -$            -$               

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #9
DISCOUNT 0% 0%
Parts Price List Blank Blank
Dated Blank Blank

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 55,181.72$    79,760.00$    

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operation 7 - 5  M-F 8 - 5   M - F
24 Hr Phone No. 616-257-8038 248-545-6304

TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: Manufacturer 1 year

DELIVERY DATE: 1 - 21 Days 2 - 3 wks

EXCEPTIONS: Blank AY McDonald Brass as an 
alternate - We have provided
AY McDonald in past bid 
awards

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed - Y or N Yes Yes

ATTEST:
Debra Painter HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTE LOW BIDDER(S)
Emily Frontera
Richard Shepler
Linda Bockstanz
G:/WaterSystemMaterial ITB-COT 07-23

Union/American Cast

PARTS FOR MUELLER IMPROVED FIRE HYDRANTS

NO BID

NO BID

Bibby

GUNNERS METERS & PARTSETNA SUPPLY COMPANY



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-23
Opening Date -- 6/5/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 6/26/07 WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL
ITEM #1 CURB BOX ITEMS

1 200 2 X 1 1/2" BLACK BUSHING 1.50$         300.00$           
2 500 2" MINNEAPOLIS CURB BOX W/STEMS 30.00$       15,000.00$      
3 50 2" Curb Box (Mueller #H10300-9902)

MANUFACTURER A.Y. McDonald
MODEL 5613 LR

ITEM #2 CORPORATION STOPS
1 350 1" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 21.40$      7,490.00$       
2 100 1 1/2" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 58.64$       5,864.00$        
3 100 2" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 102.44$     10,244.00$      

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #3 CURB STOPS (Ball Valve Type)
1 350 1" CURB STOPS w/nuts 44.43$       15,550.50$      
2 100 1 1/2" CURB STOPS w/nuts 95.43$      9,543.00$       
3 100 2" CURB STOPS w/nuts 154.35$     15,435.00$      

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #4 FULL CIRCLE REPAIR CLAMPS
1 2 3" X 7 1/2" Range 3.73-4.00 -Single Band 35.10$       70.20$             
2 10 6" x 15" Range 6.84-7.64 138.75$     1,387.50$        
3 10 8" x 12" FS2 Tapped OD 8.99-9.79 119.22$     1,192.20$        
4 6 12" x 12 1/2" FS2 Tapped 13.20 - 14.00 160.00$     960.00$           
5 6 12" x 15" FS2 Tapped 13.65-14.45 169.30$     1,015.80$        

MANUFACTURER Ford
MODEL

ITEM #5 BRASS FITTINGS
1 100 1" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 13.26$       1,326.00$        
2 100 1 - 1 1/2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 18.20$       1,820.00$        
3 100 2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 59.40$       5,940.00$        
4 100 1" x 90 Degree bend non-swivel less nuts 11.73$       1,173.00$        
5 100 2" x 90 Degree bend non-swivel less nuts 64.17$       6,417.00$        

MANUFACTURER Ford
MODEL

ITEM #6 BRONZE TAPPING SADDLES w/cc THREADS
AC/Ductilie Iron Pipe

1 40 1" x 8" Tap Saddle 73.77$       2,950.80$        
2 20 2" x 8" Tap Saddle 84.54$       1,690.80$        
3 40 1 1/2" x 12" Tap Saddle 120.64$     4,825.60$        
4 40 2" x 12" Tap Saddle 122.81$    4,912.40$       

Ductilie Iron Pipe
5 20 1" x 16" DI Tap Saddle 261.91$     5,238.20$        
6 40 1 1/2 x 16" DI Tap Saddle 277.90$     11,116.00$      
7 30 2" x 16" DI Tap Saddle 307.09$     9,212.70$        

Concrete Steel Pipe
8 10 2" x 16" Service Saddle

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

SLC METER SERVICE INC

No Bid

No Bid

Ford

Ford

Ford



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-23
Opening Date -- 06/5/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 6/26/07 WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL
ITEM #7 VALVE BOX PARTS

1 2 18" D-BOX BOTTOM SECTION -$           -$                
2 20 24" D-BOX BOTTOM SECTION -$          -$                
3 12 D-BOX RISER - SCREW IN TYPE -$           -$                
4 20 D-BOX RISER - SCREW IN TYPE 12" -$           -$                
5 20 D-BOX TOP - SECTION 26" -$           -$                

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #8 WATER MAIN FITTINGS
1 12 6" x 7 1/2 MJ DI Solid Sleeve -$          -$                
2 4 12" MJ Split Rings -$          -$                
3 6 12" MJ Rings -$          -$                
4 1 length 24" Clas 54 Ductile Iron Pipe -$           -$                

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #9
DISCOUNT N/A
Parts Price List Blank
Dated Blank

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 4,095.80$       

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operation 7:30 - 5:00   M-F
24 Hr Phone No. Blank

TERMS: Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: Standard Mfg.

DELIVERY DATE: Stock to 2 weeks

EXCEPTIONS: Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed - Y or N Yes

Susan Leirstein CPPB
Purchasing Director

G:/WaterSystemMaterial ITB-COT 07-23

SLC METER SERVICE INC

NO BID

PARTS FOR MUELLER IMPROVED FIRE HYDRANTS

NO BID



campbellld
Text Box
E-04b







campbellld
Text Box
E-04c







 
 
June 29, 2007 
 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mary Redden, Administrative Assistant to the City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Membership Renewals Over $10,000: Southeast Michigan Council of 
Governments (SEMCOG)  

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
As southeast Michigan’s regional planner, SEMCOG’s essential functions include: 
 
 Assisting local governments in planning for common needs and in recognizing regional 

opportunities.  
 Facilitating cooperation among local governments, educational institutions, and state and federal 

agencies for mutual benefit.  
 Advocating for changes in public policy when state or federal legislative action is necessary.  

 
The City of Troy has been a member of SEMCOG since 1968. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Funds are available in Council’s membership and dues account. 
 
LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends authorization of the expenditure of funds for membership dues to SEMCOG for the 
period of July 15, 2007 - July 15, 2008. 
 
 
 
MR/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\07.09.07 - Standard Purchasing Resolution 9 - SEMCOG Dues 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d







Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
June 25, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
       Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
   Jacob D. Pilat, Director of Golf Operations 
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County – Golf Equipment 

Installment Purchase of Seventy-Four (74) Precedent Golf Cars for Sylvan Glen 
Golf Course 

 
Background 
 
 In 2002, it was determined that Club Car Inc. was the golf car supplier who met the long term 

needs of the City. 
 Over the last six seasons, we have concluded that the Club Car golf car has provided the City with 

lower operating costs by requiring less man-hours for maintenance of the fleet. 
 In 2004, the formal bid process was waived in order to purchase seventy-five (75) Club Car 

Precedent golf cars for Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.   
 With many safety and maintenance features, the Precedent golf car will be very beneficial to 

Sylvan Glen, given the amount of play and large outings.   
 Club Car’s Precedent golf car provides many features that are exclusive to the golf car industry —  

 
o The 48-volt IQ system allows the rider to control the speed, braking, and performance of 

the car. 
o The advanced battery system allows for less downtime/more rounds per charge. 
o The 360-degree bumper protects the entire car from impact. 
o The lighter weight of the vehicle improves handling, climbing, accelerating, braking, and 

turf compaction.  
 

These features along with several others that are exclusive to Club Car are listed in the attached 
matrix. 

 By standardizing on the Club Car Precedent at each facility, it will allow staff to become more 
familiar with one manufacturer, making daily maintenance more efficient.  It will also make any 
major repairs and servicing of cars easier by requiring only one contact to service both sites. 

 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04e



Page 2 of 3 

 
June 25, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Installment Purchase of Golf Cars 
 
 
Financial Considerations 
 
 Funds are available in the 2007/08 budget for the Sylvan Glen Capital Account #788.7981. 
 A five-year installment purchase agreement for seventy-four (74) Club Car Precedent 48-volt IQ 

electric golf cars purchased directly from the manufacturer, Club Car Inc. 
 Currently, the City owns 65 DSEIQ Club Car golf cars that have a total trade-in value of $65,000. 
 The City will utilize Oakland County’s cooperative bid for golf equipment at a purchase price of 

$3,645.00 per car.  Club Car’s normal price for the Precedent vehicle is $3,745.00, resulting in a 
savings of $7,400.00 for the entire fleet.   

 
Legal Consideration 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Purchase of these new cars will update existing fleet, ensuring the safety of customers and 

improve the efficiency of Golf Operations.  (Goal I & II) 
 Updating of our current fleet will minimize down time of cars, increasing availability of cars for 

large outings and regular play.  (Goal II) 
 
Options 
 
 City management is recommending an agreement be executed for the purchase of seventy-four 

(74) Precedent electric golf cars less 65 trade-ins to Club Car Incorporated of Georgia for an 
estimated total cost of $229,493.24, payable in increments of $45,898.65 over five (5) years. 

 
 
Approved as to Form: ____________________________ 
    Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 
Feature Description Benefit 

Powered Shield** Rugged housing that 
provides complete inside 
and outside for the power 
plant/batteries. 

Prevents unnecessary ware and 
damage to batteries and cables.  

Ergo Seat** Non corrosive bonded seat Will not rot, wrinkle, or create 
slippery surface. 

360 Degree 
Bumpers** 

Bumper that wraps around 
entire vehicle 

Greatly reduces scratch and mar 
damage, and results in less cost and 
downtime from possible damage to 
body of vehicle. 

Alumi Core 
Chassis** 

Inside of chassis is 
aluminum, an automotive 
style frame.  Outside of 
chassis consists of two 
sections of fiber-reinforced 
composite, bonded together 
to create a single solid 
structure. 

Frame weighs less, giving double the 
torsional rigidity.  Also rust and 
corrosion proof.  

IQDM Handheld 
Diagnostic Tool* 

Lets the owner know 
exactly how each car is 
performing. 

Keeps entire fleet operating at peak 
capacity and profitability. 

4- Battery 48 Volt 
Power Plant** 

48 Volts requires fewer 
amps to product power for 
vehicle 

More efficient, less cost to maintain, 
and fewer terminals to service, 
extended battery life and fewer 
batteries to replace. 

Integrated Design** With 40% fewer parts and 
components, the cars 
integrity has be increased 
and improved. 

Less maintenance, and greater 
reliability. 

Front Suspension* Bearings are sealed and 
maintenance free, and 
suspension has only two 
simple lubrication points. 

Less maintenance. 

Pedal Group and 
Brake Cable** 

Preset, sealed and 
adjustment free 

Less maintenance, and consistent 
breaking performance. 

Lighter Weight** With 40% fewer parts the 
vehicle has become lighter 

Improves handling, climbing, 
accelerating and even breaking.  Also 
reduces turf compaction. 

Raised Hip 
Restraint** 

The hip restraint on the 
sides of both the driver and 
passenger seats have been 
raised 1/3 higher then the 
DSEIQ model. 

Provides higher hip restraint on both 
driver and passenger sides of car, 
minimizing any chance of riders 
falling out of car. 

Inboard Canopy 
Handhold ** 

Handrail attached to roof of 
car was moved from outside 
to inside to assist riders in 
getting in and out of car  

Ensures that passenger’s outside arm 
is kept within the confines of the golf 
car and affords the passenger greater 
security around tighter turns and hill 
applications, as well as aiding in 
regress and egress of the vehicle. 

Programmable 
Motor Braking* 

Breaking application 
directed through the IQ 
system, allowing the owner 
to preset the braking system 

Slows down the vehicle on severe 
down slopes, ensuring customer 
safety on hilly and uneven terrains. 

 
*Denotes feature exclusive to Club Car 
**Denotes feature exclusive to the Club Car Precedent 



















campbellld
Text Box
E-05











campbellld
Text Box
E-06







campbellld
Text Box
E-07









campbellld
Text Box
E-08

















campbellld
Text Box
E-09









campbellld
Text Box
E-10







campbellld
Text Box
E-11







campbellld
Text Box
E-12







campbellld
Text Box
E-13





 

 

 
 

June 27, 2007 

TO: Phil Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamarato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director  
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  Medi-Go Service Agreement 
 

 
Background: 
 
 Attached please find the annual agreement with Troy Medi-Go for 2007-2008.   

This agreement states that the City will fund Medi-Go $180,000.00 or entire 
municipal and community credits transferred from SMART (whichever is 
more). 

 
 The 07-08 budget includes estimated Troy Medi-Go funding.  However, the 

entire amount of community credits received from SMART are transferred to 
Med-Go.  This year, that amount is expected to be approximately $180,000.   

 
 Municipal credits are state-authorized funds that are given directly to the 

Suburban Mobility Authority for Regional Transportation (SMART) to be divided 
among every city, township and village in Oakland, Wayne and Macomb 
Counties on a per capita basis.  Community credits are a direct result of the 
SMART millage that provides opt-in communities with additional funds.   Troy’s 
municipal and community credit dollars have been used to support the 
community based Troy Medi-Go Plus service.  Medi-Go Plus provided over 
12,000 rides to over 600 unique senior and disabled riders in 2006.   

 
  
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There is neither expense nor financial implications to the City for this program.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-14



 

 Page 2 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There is no change to format and content of previous agreements with Medi-Go. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 These funds must be used for local public transportation.  Medi-Go provides 

door-to-door service and wheelchair accessible vehicles.  For these reasons, 
Medi-Go is well suited for our frail elderly and disabled population.  (Goal #1)  

 
Options: 
 

It is recommended that the City Council approve the agreement with Troy Medi-
Go Plus authorizing municipal and community credits funding be transferred to 
Medi-Go. 

 

 
Where legal review is necessary: 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
     Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by Carla Vaughan 









 

 
 
 
June 26, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2007-2008 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 In the past, the City and the Boys and Girls Club have had an agreement for many years whereby 

the City provides partial funding for a mental health worker/counselor and the Boys and Girls Club 
provides counseling services to Club members.  There is benefit in continuing this partnership and 
the agreement for 2007-08 is attached.   

 The agreement states the City will pay the Boys and Girls Club $76,323.00 for services performed 
under the agreement.   

 This funding is the same amount allocated in 2006-2007. 
 All terms of the agreement remain the same as in previous years.   

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funds for this expense are available in the Parks and Recreation Administration account 

#752.7802.105.   
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Legal considerations have been addressed through the agreement.   

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Services such as those offered as part of this agreement enhance the livability and safety of the 

community.  (Goal 1) 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-15



Options: 
 
 City management is requesting approval of the agreement and authorization to make payments to 

the Boys and Girls Club per terms of the agreement.   
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Prepared by:  Carol K. Anderson 



 1

AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., 
Troy, Michigan 48084 (hereinafter referred to as the CITY), and the Boys and 
Girls Club of Troy, a private, nonprofit organization, having a mailing address of 
4571 John R, Troy, Michigan 48085 (hereinafter referred to as BOYS & GIRLS 
CLUB). 
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide for a problem-solving service to 
youth and parents through individual, group, and family counseling to enable 
those served to cope with problems adversely affecting the ability of the youth to 
make optimal use of their world, i.e. social adjustment, work adjustment; and to 
provide free, on-site services for youth, especially those who cannot afford 
private services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide to the youth residents of the CITY 
an opportunity to participate in the Community Service Program, i.e. the Juvenile 
Court ordered supervision of youth residents; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the general purpose of the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB is to 
provide opportunities for mental and physical growth and development of boys 
and girls. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of 
the people of the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual 
covenants hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
BOYS & GIRLS CLUB RESPONSIBILITIES. 
 
A.  General Project Summary.    A general description of the community services 

to be provided by the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB is as follows: 
 

1. Mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 
counselor, on staff at the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB of Troy shall be 
available to members of the club who are having difficulty in their 
personal and social adjustments.  This person will work with youths, 
parents, schools and other community organizations, consistent with 
their professional training and licensing, in helping the youth grow 
towards a more satisfactory adjustment.  The worker will act as a 
liaison for the youth, agencies and family.   

 
2. BOYS & GIRLS CLUB will continue to provide service at the current 

level or greater. 
 
B.  Program Description.  A detailed description of each program offered will be 

provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB, 
and will be available for inspection on request. 

 



 2

C.  Location of Facilities.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall provide the actual 
services described herein in facilities located at 4571 John R., Troy, MI 
48085. 

 
D.  Mental Health Worker Responsibilities.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall 

provide a mental health worker, whose responsibilities shall include 
counseling, and providing guidance to youths, families and groups; acting as 
a liaison with the schools, courts, and community agencies and the members 
involved; serving as a consultant; conducting in-service training for staff and 
volunteers, collaborates with community resources to improve special 
services and implement new programs designed to further the social and 
emotional needs of the youth; and any other duties necessary to carry out 
his/her responsibilities.   

 
E.  Records.  For each person receiving individual, family, or group counseling, 

the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall maintain individual case records that 
document service delivery.  Records of attendance must be maintained for all 
persons served.  Applicable laws regarding confidentiality will be adhered to 
regarding all records.  Records will be kept in accordance with the standard of 
the profession and law.  

 
F.  Service Documentation.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB agrees to maintain 

program records, program statistical records, and to produce upon request 
program narrative and statistical data. 

 
G.  Fiscal Requirement.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall install and maintain an 

accounting system to identify and support all expenditures billed under this 
agreement.  The accounting system must record all income and expenses for 
the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB’s total program of which services are provided 
under this agreement.  The accounting system, as a minimum, shall consist of 
a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, and 
general ledger.  All expenditures and income must be supported by vouchers 
and receipts that detail the reason for the transaction. 

 
The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual 

budget for any fiscal year which falls within the twelve month period covered 
by this agreement.  These budgets shall show the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB 
budget, total expenditures, and expenditures funded and claimed to other 
funding sources. 

 
  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall submit to the CITY a copy of their annual 

certified audit for any fiscal year which falls within the twelve month period 
covered by this agreement. 

 
The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB agrees to retain at its cost all books, records, 

or other documents relevant to this agreement for six years after final  



 3

payment; Federal or State auditors and any persons duly authorized by the 
CITY shall have full access to and the right to examine any of said materials 
during said period.  If an audit is initiated prior to the expiration of the six year 
period, and extends past that period, all documents must be maintained until 
the audit is completed.  The CITY will provide any findings and 
recommendations of audits, if any, to the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB.  The CITY 
will adjust future payments or final payments if the findings of an audit 
indicate over or under payment in the period prior to the audit.  If no further 
payments are due and owing against any sums paid under this agreement, 
the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB agrees to refund all amounts which may be due to 
the CITY.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB agrees that as a condition of any sale 
or transfer of ownership of the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB, the new purchasers 
must agree to maintain the above-described books, records, or other 
documents for any unexpired portion of the six year period after final payment 
under this agreement, or the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB must otherwise maintain 
said records as the CITY may direct.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB agrees that 
if it ceases business operations, the records will be maintained as the CITY 
may direct.  

 
H.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB 

will review with the CITY staff the programs funded by this agreement to 
determine if there are appropriate educational guidance and counseling 
activities which may be utilized by the CITY in its programs.  Any joint effort 
must be mutually agreed upon by both parties. 

 
  In addition, the City shall receive a copy of the annual summary of the 

activities undertaken by the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB for its evaluation regarding 
the effectiveness of educational and counseling programs. 

 
I.  Insurance Coverage.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB will provide and maintain 

public liability insurance in the amount of $2,000,000 General Liability and 
$1,000,000 Professional Liability as required by the CITY, to cover all claims 
which may arise out of the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB’s operations under the 
terms of this agreement.  Unemployment compensation, worker’s 
compensation insurance shall be maintained in accordance with applicable 
Federal and State law and regulations.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB agrees to 
provide the CITY with a certificate of insurance enumerating the above 
coverage.  Cost of specific insurance such as malpractice will be a 
reimbursable expense.   

 
J.  Confidentiality.  The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants for 

services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the 
performance of this agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly 
connected with the administration of the programs implemented by this 
agreement and must be consistent with all statutory requirements. 



 4

 
K.  Subcontracts.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB may not assign this agreement or 

enter into any subcontracts to this agreement with additional parties without 
obtaining prior written approval of the CITY, as a condition of granting such 
approval, shall require that such assignees or subcontractors shall be subject 
to all conditions and provisions of this agreement.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB 
shall be responsible for the performance of all assignees or subcontractors. 

 
L.  Liability.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall indemnify, save and hold harmless 

the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and affiliated entities from any 
losses, damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, and liabilities, 
including attorney fees and legal expenses, which may arise from or be 
caused directly or indirectly by any act or omission of BOYS & GIRLS CLUB 
or their officers, directors, employees, agents, or volunteers.   

 
M.  Close out.  When this agreement is concluded or terminated, the BOYS & 

GIRLS CLUB shall provide the CITY, within sixty days after the conclusion of 
termination, with all financial, performance and other reports required as a 
condition of the agreement.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall immediately 
refund to the CITY any payments or funds advanced to the BOYS & GIRLS 
CLUB in excess of allowable reimbursable expenditures.  The final payment 
by the CITY or refund by the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB may be subject to an 
audit. 

 
N.  Continuing Responsibilities.  Termination, conclusion, or cancellation of this 

agreement shall not be construed so as to terminate the on-going 
responsibilities of the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB contained in paragraphs E 
(Records), G (Fiscal Requirement), I (Insurance Coverage), J 
(Confidentiality), L (Liability), and M (Close out), included in this agreement.  

 
O.  Publication- Approval and Copyright.  The CITY shall have copyright, 

property, and publication rights in all written or visual material or other work 
products developed in connection with this agreement.  The BOYS & GIRLS 
CLUB shall not publish or distribute any of the results of the services provided 
nor any other printed or visual material funded by this agreement without prior 
written permission of the CITY. 

 
P.  Grievance System.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall maintain a system of 

hearings under which applicants or recipients who are citizens of the CITY or 
an individual acting on behalf of an applicant or recipient may appeal denial, 
reduction or termination of a service, or the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB’s failure to 
act upon a request for service with reasonable promptness.  The BOYS & 
GIRLS CLUB shall advise recipients of this right on such forms and in such  
manner as has been customary, or as the CITY may direct. 

 
 
 
 
 



 5

CITY OF TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES. 
 
 The CITY hereby agrees to pay to the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB an amount 
not to exceed $76,323.00 for services performed under this agreement.  
Payments are to be made in four quarterly installments, $19,080.75 each during 
the months of July and October 2007, and January and April 2008. 
 
 Obligations incurred by the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB prior to or after the 
period covered by this agreement shall be excluded. 
 
 
MUTUAL COVENANTS 
 
A.  Cancellation of Agreement.  If the CITY determines that the BOYS & GIRLS 

CLUB fails to comply with the conditions of this agreement, or to fulfill its 
responsibilities as indicated in the agreement, or the CITY determines that the 
methods and techniques being utilized in accomplishing the goals of this 
agreement are not acceptable or compatible with the CITY’s policies, then the 
CITY reserves the right to cancel this agreement by giving sixty days written 
notice to the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB.   

 
  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB may terminate this agreement upon sixty days 

written notice to the CITY at any time prior to the completion of the agreement 
period if the CITY fails to comply with the conditions of this agreement.   

 
If there is a cancellation or termination, the CITY shall prorate the 

payments to cover all appropriate expenditures made prior to the date of 
termination.  If at cancellation or termination, it is determined by the CITY that 
the CITY is entitled to reimbursement for any payments for which services 
were not rendered, the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall refund those payments 
within 30 days after the CITY notifies the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB of the 
overpayment.   

 
B.  Disputes.  An aggrieved party shall notify the other party in writing of its intent 

to pursue a claim against the other party for breach of any term of this 
agreement.  No suit may be commenced for breach of this agreement prior to 
the expiration of ninety days from the date of such notification.  Within this 
ninety day period, the parties, at the request of the CITY, must meet with the 
CITY for the purpose of attempting to resolve the dispute. 

 
C.  Agreement Inclusiveness/Amendment.  This agreement contains all the terms 

and conditions agreed upon by the parties.  All items incorporated by 
reference are to be attached.  No other understanding, oral or otherwise, 
regarding the subject matter of this agreement shall be deemed to exist or to  



 6

bind any of the parties hereto.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB agrees to amend 
the agreement when there is a substantial change in the law or in the financial 
position of the CITY, and if the CITY reasonably determines that an 
amendment is necessary.  This shall be done only upon written request by 
the CITY and only after the proposed amendments are received by the BOYS 
& GIRLS CLUB.  If the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB refuses to sign such  
amendment within fifteen days after receipt, this agreement shall immediately 
terminate.  This agreement may otherwise be amended only with the written 
consent of all parties to the agreement. 

 
D.  Employees of the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB.  Representatives and employees 

and volunteers of the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall not be deemed to be 
employees or agents of the CITY for any purpose because of their 
participation in this program. 

 
E.  Independent Contractors.  In the performance of their respective duties and 

obligations under this agreement, each party is an independent contractor, 
and neither is the agent, employee, or servant of the other, and each is 
responsible for its own conduct.  This agreement is not a joint venture for the 
profit of either party. 

 
F.  Compliance with Laws.  Each party shall be separately responsible for 

compliance with all Federal, State and City laws.  Any violation of the law 
results in a material breach of the agreement.   

 
G.  Terms of Agreement.  This agreement shall become effective as of July 1, 

2007 and shall terminate on June 30, 2008 unless terminated under the 
provisions set forth in this agreement. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB have 
caused this agreement to be executed by their respective authorized officers. 
 
WITNESSES:     CITY OF TROY 
 
_______________________________ BY:  __________________________ 
       Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
_______________________________ BY:  __________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
WITNESSES      BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF TROY 
 
______________________________ BY:  __________________________ 
       Steve Toth, Executive Director 
 
______________________________ BY:  ___________________________ 

Nancy Negohosian, Board 
President 



campbellld
Text Box
E-16









campbellld
Text Box
E-17









 
 
June 25,2007 
 
 
TO:                Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:           Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
           Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
SUBJECT:     Request for Public Hearing on July 23, 2007 for Community Development   
                      Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2004 reprogramming of  
                      unexpended funds. 
 
Background: 
 
 The City of Troy is required by Oakland County Division of Community & Home 

Improvement to advertise and conduct a Public Hearing on the reprogramming of 
CDBG Program Year 2004 unexpended funds. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to request the public hearing. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The proposed public hearing is consistent with City Council Goal IV, (Effectively and 

professionally communicate internally and externally.)  
 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that Council authorize a public hearing for July 23, 2007 at 

7:30 PM or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to consider re-
programming CDBG Program Year 2004 unexpended funds. 

 
 
 
 
 
VR\S: Murphy’s Review/Agenda 07.09.07 – CDBG public hearing announcement 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-18



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 9, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in 
accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City 
Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-99 PC



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 9, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  

a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled 
b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Historical Commission; 
Historic District Commission; Municipal Building 
Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board c) City Council 
Appointments – Students: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Cable Advisory Committee; 
and Troy Daze Committee 

campbellld
Text Box
F-01



 

 
 
June 19, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Bid Waiver – Drain Improvements 
 
Background 
 The City currently has two projects requiring storm sewer and culvert materials 

manufactured by Contech Construction Products Inc. 
 The 1st project is located at the intersection of Ottawa and Peacock Streets.  The purpose of 

this project is to provide additional storm water capacity in the existing storm sewer system.  
Historically, this area has been susceptible to flooding from heavy rains due to the existing 
under-sized storm sewer system. 

 In order to correct this situation, the City proposes to replace the existing under-sized 12” 
diameter storm sewer and replace it with a 36” diameter storm sewer including adequately 
sized storm drainage structures.  This replacement work will increase the storm water 
capacity in the area and result in less occurrences of flooding events. 

 The 2nd project is located at 6116 Elmoor Street.  This residence has a 36” diameter steel 
culvert crossing under the driveway and within close proximity to the garage foundation.  It 
has been determined that this culvert cannot be repaired and eventually will fail and cause 
major damage to the driveway and potentially the garage foundation.  The purpose of this 
project is to re-locate the 36” diameter steel culvert away from the influence of the driveway 
and garage foundation in order to prevent future failure. 

 Contech Construction Products Inc. is willing to sell directly to the City.  By purchasing direct 
from the manufacturer, the City will receive a greater discount than purchasing through a 
distributor. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available through the Drains Capital Account #401516.7989.1000 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 3 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



June 19, 2007 
 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Waiver – Drain Improvements 
 
 
Legal Considerations 
 Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived from soliciting 

formal bids. 
 
 Policy Considerations 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community. (Goal I) 
 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City Government. (Goal II) 

 
Options 
 City management and the Public Works department are requesting a waiver of the formal bid 

process and authorization to purchase the required storm water drain pipe and culvert 
materials from Contech Construction Products Inc. of Clinton Township, MI, for an estimated 
total cost of $22,355.50, as detailed on Appendix 1.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EF S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 07-09-07 Bid Waiver: Drain Improvements 

 
Page 2 of 3 



 
Appendix 1 

 
 
 
 

Est Qty Description Unit Price Total 

26 ft 12” A2000 solid PVC Drainage Pipe $5.56 ft $144.56 

130 ft 18” A2000 solid PVC Drainage Pipe $11.23 ft $1,459.90 

481 ft 36” A2000 solid PVC Drainage Pipe $41.76 ft $20,086.56 

    

25 ft 12” Diameter, Galvanized, CMP Culvert 16 g $5.77 ft $144.25 

25 ft 12” Diameter, Galvanized, CMP Culvert 14 g $7.05 ft $176.25 

    

1ea 12” Metal End Section $46.25 ea $46.25 

1ea 36” Metal End Section $297.73 ea $297.73 

 Estimated Total  $22,355.50 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 



campbellld
Text Box
F-03







Page 1 of 2 

 

 
June 19, 2007 

 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Gert Paraskevin, IT Director 

   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Printing and Distribution of Utility Bills 
 
Background 

• Water bills are printed and distributed monthly by district through an outside contractor, 
Automated Computer Methods, Inc.  The vendor did not mail District 3 billing, due 6/15/07, 
until June 8, 2007, three (3) weeks after the mandatory delivery time.  ACM, Inc. failed to 
return phone calls or emails made by the Water department to determine the nature of the 
problem or why the billing had been delayed.  The following issues were cited for this billing 
period— 

o First mailing returned by the post office due to a software issue at ACM, Inc. with the 
new postal regulations and barcodes. 

o First mailing subsequently destroyed including the Aquatic Center flyers inserted with 
the mailing.  ACM owes the City for the cost of replacement flyers. 

o Second mailing reprinted, but lost in the warehouse before it could be mailed. 
o When found, they were mailed; however, none of the addresses had a mailing name 

causing numerous returns to the Water department for mail that otherwise would have 
been forwarded by the post office. 

o Some bills had been inserted incorrectly so that the mailing address did not show 
through the window on the envelope; hence these bills were returned to the Water 
department as well. 

o Commercial businesses receiving multiple bills couldn’t distinguish between suites as 
those numbers were missing.   

o Numerous calls from other commercial properties that didn’t receive their multiple bills. 
o Some reply envelopes in section 12 have a New Mexico return address. 
o Bills were not reprinted with a different due date (July 15, 2007) prompting calls from 

numerous confused and agitated residents with only a few days to make payment. 
o Inserts for the golf course, museum and the water quality report were not included with 

the June mailing as required. 
o Very poor print quality on the #10 window envelopes. i.e. blurred and smudged printing, 

‘Water Bill Enclosed’ did not print on all envelopes. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



Page 2 of 2 

June 19, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Rescind / Re-award  - Printing and Distribution of Utility Bills 
 
 
Background – continued 

• As a result of the delays, liquidated damages were assessed against the $2,100.00 bid surety 
at the rate of $35.00 per hour for each hour delayed beyond the mandatory delivery time.  The 
entire bid surety was forfeited after 60 hours. 

• A similar situation happened in February of this year. Bill file was sent 2/16/07 with delivery to 
the post office scheduled for 2/19/07.  By 2/22/07, the City had no confirmation the billing was 
sent.  ACM, Inc finally returned staff calls on 2/22/07 and said they had a problem with the 
inserts and the bills had gone out that day.  A follow-up letter from the City was sent on 2/23/07 
stating our concern we were not notified immediately of the problem, so we could have made 
the decision to mail only the bills and forget the inserts.  

 
Financial Considerations 

• District 3 is our largest billing district and failure on the part of ACM, Inc. to have the bills 
delivered on time causes a delay in the receipt of anticipated revenue totaling approximately 
$1.3 million. 

 
Legal Considerations  

• ACM, Inc will receive written notification of default and remedies for reinstatement as a 
potential vendor after three (3) years. 

 
Policy Considerations 

• Printing and distribution of the City of Troy Water and Sewer bills, accurately within our 
processing time requirements and then delivered to the post office maximizes cash flow, 
minimizes cost and increases the efficiency of City government. (Goal II) 

 
Options 

• City management recommends the Troy City Council rescind with prejudice the option to 
renew exercised on January 22, 2007, to Automated Computer Methods, Inc of McHenry, IL, 
for the printing and distribution of the City’s water and sewer bills. (Resolution #2007-01-015-
E4a)  Staff also recommends re-awarding the contract to the next lowest acceptable bidder, 
Lason Systems Inc of Troy, MI, at an estimated total cost of $11,890.00 per year, plus the 
actual cost of first class postage to expire April 30, 2008. 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Rescind-Re-Award Water Bill Printing 06.07.doc 











 
 
June 29, 2007 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
   Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Annual Performance Evaluation of the City Manager and City Attorney 
  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
• Past practice has been for City Council to conduct annual reviews of the city manager’s 

performance.  Phil Nelson’s one-year anniversary is approaching (July 17) and therefore it’s time 
for an annual performance evaluation. 

• City Council requested to have the city attorney and the city manager on the same schedule of 
annual performance reviews, therefore dates are being suggested for an annual review for the city 
attorney as well. 

• MCL 15.268(a) allows for the period personnel evaluations to take place in closed session; both 
Phil Nelson and Lori Bluhm want their evaluations to take place in closed session. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
• It is requested that City Council conduct the annual performance review for Lori Bluhm in closed 

session on July 9, 2007. 
• It is requested that City Council conduct the annual performance review for Phil Nelson in closed 

session on either July 23, 2007 or August 6, 2007. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\07.09.07 – Annual Performance Evaluation of City Manager and City Attorney 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



TO: Members of the Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: July 2, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Adult Use Businesses – Licensing Ordinance 
 

       
 
 
At the June 18, 2007 City Council meeting, the Troy City Council approved the Adult Use Business 
zoning text amendments to Chapter 39, Articles IV (Definitions) and XXII (B-3 General Business 
District), effective upon the adoption, publication, and effective date of amendments to Chapters 3, 
60, and the enactment of Chapter 76 pertaining to Adult Use Businesses.  Drafts of these proposed 
revisions were included in the June 18, 2007 City Council agenda packet, with the caveat that there 
would be no action on these ordinances unless and until the Adult Business Use zoning text 
amendments were approved.    At that public hearing, there was a modification to the definition of 
escort.  Since the definitions in proposed Chapter 76 mirror the definitions in the proposed Chapter 
76, the same modification has been made to the proposed Chapter 76 definition of escort.   
 
The Adult Use Business zoning amendments require each proposed operator to submit to an 
annual licensing procedure.  The licensing process is set forth in proposed Chapter 76.  In addition, 
the new proposed Chapter 76 also sets forth the Adult Use Business Application requirements, as 
well as the investigation process.  The proposed ordinance also specifies the factors that can be 
considered in deciding whether or not to grant a requested special use approval for an Adult Use 
Business.  Grounds for suspension of a license are also set forth in the proposed Chapter 76, as 
well as the required standard of conduct.   
 
The licensing fees are set forth in the proposed revision to Chapter 60.  Enforcement of Chapter 76 
is covered by the proposed amendments to Chapter 3.    
 
The information that was previously submitted to Council for the Chapter 39, Adult Business Use 
zoning text amendments, is attached for your convenience.         
 
Please let us know if you have any questions or concerns.  A separate resolution is proposed for 
each proposed amendment.   

 1

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



 1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO ADD A NEW CHAPTER TO THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY WHICH CHAPTER SHALL BE 
DESIGNATED AS CHAPTER 76 

 
 
 

The City of Troy ordains: 
 

Section 1.  Short Title: 
 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as Chapter 76 of the Code of the  
City of Troy. 

 
Section 2. Adoption of Article VII, Chapter 76 

 
Chapter 76 of the Code of the City of Troy, to provide for the licensing of adult use businesses, to 
provide for definitions of adult use businesses, to provide for application for a license, to provide for 
specific requirements and conditions for adult use businesses and to provide for a penalty for violation 
thereof, is hereby adopted as set forth below: 

 
Section 3.  ADULT USE BUSINESS LICENSE 

 
I. Purpose.  The purpose and intent of this Chapter is to regulate adult use businesses, to 

promote the health, safety, morals and general welfare of the citizens of the city, and to establish 
reasonable and uniform regulations for adult use businesses. The provisions of this Chapter have 
neither the purpose nor the effect of imposing a limitation or restriction on the content of any 
communicative materials, including adult materials.  Similarly, it is not the intent nor effect of this 
section to restrict or deny access by adults to adult materials protected by the Constitution of the United 
States or the Michigan Constitution, or to deny access by the distributors and exhibitors of adult use 
businesses to their intended market.  Neither is it the intent nor effect of this Chapter to condone or 
legitimize the distribution of obscene material. 

 
II. Definitions.  For purposes of this Chapter, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 
 

Adult Arcade.  An establishment where, for any form of consideration, one or more still or motion 
picture projectors, slide projectors, compact discs or similar machines, or other image producing 
machines, (whether coin-operated, slug-operated or electronically, electrically, internet or mechanically 
controlled), for viewing by five (5) or fewer persons each, are used to show films, motion pictures, video 
cassettes, compact discs, slides or other photographic reproductions which are characterized by the 
depiction or description of “specified sexual activities” or “ specified anatomical areas”. 

 
Adult Book Store, Adult Novelty or Retail Store or Adult Video Store. 

 
A. An establishment which, as one of its principal business purposes, offers any one or more of the 

following for sale, rental, or viewing at the site, for any form of consideration: 
 

1. Books, computer diskettes, tapes or hard drives, magazines, periodicals or other printed 
material, films, motion picture, video cassettes or video reproduction, slides or other visual 
representations which depict or describe “specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical 
areas”; and/or 
 

2. Instruments, devices, or paraphernalia which are designed for use in connection with “specified 
sexual activities”; and/or 

 



 2

3. Items, materials, gimmicks, or paraphernalia depicting, displaying, advertising or packaged as 
“specified sexual activities” or depicting or describing “specified anatomical areas”. 
 

B. For purposes of this section, “principal business purpose” means:  
 

1. The devotion of a significant or substantial portion of its stock-in-trade or interior floor space; or 
 

2. The receipt of a significant or substantial portion of its revenues from; or 
 

3. The devotion of a significant or substantial portion of its advertising expenditures to the 
promotion of the sale, rental or viewing, of books, magazines, periodicals or other printed 
matter, or photographs, film, motion pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, slides or other 
visual representations, items, materials, gimmicks, or paraphernalia which are characterized by 
the depiction, description display, advertising or packaging of “specified sexual activities” or 
“specified anatomical areas”.  
 

C. An establishment may have other principal business purposes that do not involve the offering 
for sale, rental or viewing of materials depicting or describing “specified sexual activities” or 
“specified anatomical areas”, and still be categorized as an adult bookstore, adult novelty or 
retail store or adult video store.  Such other business purposes will not serve to exempt such 
establishment from being categorized as an adult bookstore, adult novelty store or adult video 
store, so long as the establishment falls within the definition of an adult bookstore, adult novelty 
store or adult video store as set forth above. 

 
Adult Caberet.  A nightclub, club, bar, restaurant or similar commercial establishment which features 
one or more of the following:  

 
A. Person(s) who appears nude or in a state of nudity or semi-nudity; 

 
B. Live performances which are characterized by the exposure of “specified anatomical areas” or 

by “specified sexual activities”; 
 

C. Films, motion pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, slides or other photographic 
reproductions which are characterized by the depiction or description of “specified sexual 
activities” or “specified anatomical areas”. 

 
Adult Motel.  A motel, hotel or similar commercial establishment which:  

 
A. Offers accommodations to the public for any form of consideration and provides patrons with 

closed-circuit television transmissions, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, 
slides or other photographic reproductions which are characterized by the depiction or 
description of “specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical areas” and which advertises 
the availability of this adult type of material by means of a sign, visible from the public right of 
way, or by means of any off-premises advertising, including but not limited to newspapers, 
magazines, pamphlets or leaflets, radio or television; and/or 

 
B. Permits patrons to be filmed or photographed performing sexually explicit activities or displaying 

“specified anatomical areas”, including transmission over the World Wide Web; and/or 
 

C. Offers a sleeping room for rent for intervals of time less than ten (10) hours; and/or 
 

D. Allows a tenant or occupant to sub rent a sleeping room for intervals of less than ten (10) hours. 
 



 3

Adult Motion Picture Theater.  A commercial establishment where films, motion pictures, video 
cassettes, compact discs, slides of  “specified sexual activities” or depictions or descriptions of 
“specified anatomical areas” are regularly shown for any form of consideration. 

 
Adult Theater.  A theater, concert hall, auditorium or similar commercial establishment which, for any 
form or consideration, regularly features persons who appear in a state of nudity or live performances 
which are characterized by exposure of “specified anatomical areas” or by “specified sexual activities.”  
This definition does not include a theater which features occasional live nude performances with 
serious literary, artistic, or political value and that have no adverse secondary effects. 

 
Adult Use Business.  An adult arcade, adult bookstore, adult novelty or retail store, adult video store, 
adult cabaret, adult motel, adult motion picture theater, adult theater, escort agency, nude modeling 
studio and/or a sexual encounter establishments and any business determined by the Planning Director 
to be an adult use, due to the activities of the business which involve characteristic of adult uses, such 
as nudity, semi-nudity, exposure of “specified anatomical areas” and/or “specified sexual activities”.  
The definition of “adult use business” shall not include an establishment where a medical practitioner, 
psychologist, psychiatrist or similar professional person licensed by the State engages in medically 
approved and recognized sexual therapy. 

 
Employee.  A person who works or performs in and/or for an adult use business, regardless of whether 
or not said person is paid a salary, wage or other compensation by the operator of said business. 

 
Entertainer.  A person who performs some type of activity or pose with the intent of allowing others to 
witness that activity or pose. 

 
Entertainment. A performance of some type of activity, including, but not limited to, singing, dancing, 
acting, mime, comedy, recitations, demonstrations, magic tricks, modeling, posing, exhibition, with or 
without inanimate objects or animals, with the intent of allowing others to witness that activity in live or 
reproduced format. 

 
Escort.  A person who, for consideration in any form, agrees or offers to act as a companion, guide, or 
date for another person, (or who agrees to privately perform as an entertainer), including but not limited 
to, the modeling of lingerie, the removal of clothing, and the performance of a dance or skit.  Under this 
definition, “privately” shall mean a performance for an individual and that individual’s guests. 

 
Escort Agency.  A person or business that furnishes, offers to furnish, or advertises the furnishing of 
escorts as one of its primary business purposes, for a fee, tip or any other form of consideration. 

 
Establishment.  In regard to an adult use business, means and includes any of the following: 

 
A. A new business; 

 
B. An existing business, whether or not an adult use business, that has been converted to or which 

adds as a component any adult use business; 
 

C.        An adult use business that adds a different or expanded adult use business activity to any other  
      existing adult use business;  

 
or 

 
D. A relocated adult use business. 
 
Licensee.  The individual listed as an applicant on the application for an adult use business license, or a 
person in whose name a license to operate an adult use business has been issued.  

 



 4

Licensing Officer. The Clerk of the City of Troy or his/her designee. 
 

Manager.  An operator, other than a licensee, who is employed by an adult use business to act as a 
manager or supervisor of employees, or is otherwise responsible for the operation of the adult use 
business. 

 
Nude Modeling Studio.  Any place where a person appears in a state of nudity or displays “specified 
anatomical areas”, and is provided money or any form of consideration to be observed, sketched, 
drawn, painted, sculpted, photographed or similarly depicted by other persons. This includes modeling 
studios that provide for nude modeling on an occasional basis, but it does not include modeling studio 
whose primary function is to provide art classes as part of a college, university or educational institution 
and which is certified by the State of Michigan. 

 
Nudity or State of Nudity.  

 
A. The exposure of human male or female genitals, pubic area, buttocks, anus or the areola or 

nipple of the female breast; and/or 
 
B. A state of dress which fails to opaquely and fully cover human male or female genitals, pubic 

area, buttocks, anus or the areola or nipple of the female breast. 
 

Operator.  Includes the owner, licensee, manager, or person in charge of any premises. 
 

Peep Booth.  An adult motion picture theater with a viewing room or cubical of less than one hundred 
fifty (150) square feet of floor space. 

 
Person.  An individual, proprietorship, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, association or 
other entity. 

 
Premises or Licensed Premises.  Any premises that requires an adult use license and that is classified 
as an adult use business. 

 
Principal Owner.  Any person owning, directly or beneficially: a) ten percent (10%) or more of a 
corporation’s equity securities; b) ten percent (10%) or more of the membership interests in a limited 
liability company; or c) in the case of any other entity, ten percent (10%) or more of the ownership 
interests in the entity. 

 
Private Room.  A room in a hotel/motel that is not a peep booth, has a bed, a bathtub, a shower, a toilet 
and/or a sink in the room or adjacent room, and is used primarily for lodging. 

 
Semi-Nude.  A state of dress in which clothing covers no more than the genitals, pubic region, and 
areola of the female breast, as well as portions of the body covered by supporting straps or devices. 

 
Sexual Encounter Establishment.  A business or commercial establishment that as one of its primary 
business purposes, offers a place where two (2) or more persons may congregate, associate, or 
consort for the purpose of “specified sexual activities” or the exposure of “specified anatomical areas” 
or any activities when one or more or the persons is in a state of nudity or semi-nudity and/or permits 
patrons to display or be filmed or photographed performing “sexually explicit activities” or displaying 
“specified anatomical areas” for recording or transmission over the World Wide Web or any other 
media, for any form of consideration.  A hotel/motel will not be classified as a sexual encounter 
establishment, by virtue of the fact that it offers private rooms for rent. 

 
Specified Anatomical Areas. 

 



 5

A. Less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, pubic region, buttocks, anus or 
female breasts below a point immediately above the top of the areola; and/or 

 
B. Human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely and opaquely covered. 

 
Specified Criminal Acts:  Sexual crimes against children, sexual abuse, criminal sexual conduct, rape, 
crimes classified as sexual crimes by the State of Michigan or any other state; or crimes connected with 
another adult use business,  including but not limited to, the distribution of obscenity, prostitution and/or 
pandering. 

 
Significant or Substantial Portion.  Means thirty (30) percent or more of the term modified by such 
phrase.  

 
Specified Sexual Activities. 

 
A.  The fondling or other intentional touching of human genitals, pubic region, buttocks, anus or 

female breasts: and/or 
 

B.  Sex acts, actual or simulated, including but not limited to, intercourse, oral copulation or 
sodomy; and/or 

 
C.  Masturbation, actual or simulated; and/or 

 
D.  Human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation, arousal or tumescence;  

and/or 
 

E.  Excretory functions as part of or in connection with any of the activities set  
forth in subsections (A) through (D) of this definition. 

 
Tip.  Any money or other consideration given by a patron or patron’s agent to an entertainer. A tip 
includes, but is not limited to, money, fees, service charges, gifts, salary, donations, stipends, 
contribution, offer of service, performance of service, payment or any other consideration. 

 
Transfer of Ownership or Control of an Adult Use Business.   

 
A. The sale, lease or sublease of the business; and/or 

 
B. The transfer of securities which constitute a controlling interest in the business,  

whether by sale, exchange or similar means; and/or 
 

C. The establishment of a trust, management arrangement, gift or 
 other similar legal device which transfers ownership or control of the 
 business, except for transfer by bequest or other operation of law upon 
 the death of a person possessing the ownership or control. 

 
III. Location of Business.  It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated an adult use business in 

any location in the City except as provided in Troy’s Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 39, Article  
XXII, Section 22.30.08 of the Code of Ordinances. 

 
IV.       License Required; Application Fee; Investigation Fee; License Fee. 
 
 
 
 



 6

A. No person shall conduct an adult use business without first having obtained an annual adult 
business license for each separate place of business in the City. 

 
B. Applicants for a new adult use business license shall pay an application fee and an investigation 

fee as set by Chapter 60 of the ordinances of the City of Troy. An existing adult use business 
shall pay an annual license fee as set by Chapter 60 of the ordinances of the City of Troy.  

 
C. In the event an application or a application for a license renewal  for an adult use business 

license is withdrawn or denied, the application fee, investigation fee and /or license fee shall not 
be refunded to the applicant. Fees are not transferable. 

 
V. License Application. 
 

A. All applicants for an adult use business license shall file an application for such license with the 
City Clerk on forms provided by the Clerk.  Each principal owner and all managers and 
employees shall be named on the application form. 

 
B. The completed application shall contain the following information and/or shall be accompanied 

by the following documents: 
 

1. If the applicant is: 
 

a. An individual: the individual shall state his or her legal name and any aliases and 
shall submit satisfactory proof that he or she is at least eighteen (18) years of age. 

 
b. A partnership: the partnership shall state its complete name, and the names of all 

partners, whether the partnership is   general or limited, and attach a copy of the 
partnership agreement, if any. 

 
c. A corporation: the corporation shall state its complete name, the date of its 

incorporation, evidence that the corporation is in good standing under the statutes of 
the State of Michigan, or in the case of a foreign corporation, evidence that it is 
currently authorized to do business in the State of Michigan, the names and titles of 
all officers, directors and principal owners, and the name of the registered corporate 
agent and the address of the registered office for service of process. 

 
d. A limited liability company: the limited liability company shall state its complete name, 

the date of filing of the articles of organization and operating agreement, and the 
names of all managers and members. 

 
2. Whether the applicant or any other individual required to be listed on the application currently 

holds or has previously held an adult use business license or currently works or has previously 
worked for an adult use business, adult entertainment or sexually oriented business; whether 
that business is or was licensed in another state, city or county; and whether that business 
license was ever denied, suspended or revoked.   The name and location of the adult use 
business, the reason the permit was denied, suspended or revoked, and the date of the denial, 
suspension or revocation must be provided on the application. 

 
3. The location of the proposed adult use business, including a legal description of the property, 

street address and telephone number(s). 
 

4. Proof of the applicant’s right to possession of the premises where the adult use business is 
proposed to be located. 

 



 7

5. The name, address and telephone number of the applicant and any other individual listed on the 
application. 

 
6. A photocopy of the driver’s license or other government issued identification for the individuals 

listed in Article V and/or Article VI of this Chapter. 
 

7. A floor plan of the proposed premises that specifies the location and dimensions of any 
employee’s station(s) and demonstrates that there is an unobstructed view from at least one of 
the employee’s stations of every area of the premises to which any patron is permitted access 
for any purpose, excluding the restrooms. The proposed floor plan shall designate the use of 
each room or area in the premises and designate those rooms or other areas of the premises 
where patrons are not permitted. The proposed floor plan need not be professionally prepared 
but must be drawn to a designate scale or drawn with marked dimensions of the interior of the 
premises to an accuracy of plus or minus six (6) inches.  The diagram shall designate the place 
where the license will be conspicuously posted and the location of any proposed stage.   

 
8. A current certified drawing prepared, within thirty (30) days prior to the application, by a land 

surveyor depicting the property lines and the structures containing any adult use business within 
one thousand (1,000) feet measured from the nearest lot line on a straight-line basis, and 
depicting the property line of any church, school, childcare facility, public park, residential zoning 
district or any parcel used for residential purposes, whether zoned residential or not, within five 
hundred (500) feet from the nearest lot line to the nearest lot line on a straight-line basis. 

 
9. Whether the applicant or any of the other individuals listed in Article V and/or Article VI of this 

Chapter have been convicted of a specified criminal act within the times set forth in Article VII. 
1.8. of this Chapter, including the nature of the specified criminal act and the date and place of 
conviction. 

 
10. Photographs (passport size or approximately two [2] inches by two [2] inches) and fingerprints 

of all principal owners and each manager, general partner, and, in the case of a corporate 
applicant, the president of the corporation. 

 
C. If the applicant is an individual, he/she shall sign the application for a license.  If the applicant is 

a corporation, the application shall be signed by the president or vice-president and attested to 
by the secretary or assistant secretary.  If the applicant is a general partnership, the application 
shall be signed by a general partner.  If the applicant is a limited liability corporation, the 
application shall be signed by the manager. 

 
D. If an omission or error is discovered by the City Clerk, he/she shall promptly notify the applicant 

and returned the application for completion or correction. The City Clerk shall not be required to 
take any further action.  The applicant shall have thirty (30) days to properly complete the 
application. The time period for granting or denying a license shall be stayed during the period 
in which the applicant is allowed an opportunity to property complete the application.   Any 
application rejected due to an omission or error shall be re-filed only when the omission or error 
has been remedied.  For the purposes of this Chapter, the official application date is the date 
the City Clerk accepts an application that is complete for filing. 

 
E. Applicants for a license under this Chapter shall have a continuing duty to promptly supplement 

application information required by this section in the event that said information changes in any 
way from what is stated on the application.  The failure to comply with this continuing duty within 
thirty (30) days from the date of such change, by supplementing the application on file with the 
City Clerk, shall be grounds for the suspension, revocation or denial of an adult business 
license. 

 



 8

 VI. Investigation. 
 

On receipt of a properly completed application and the payment of the application and investigation 
fees, the City Clerk shall submit the documentation to the Chief of Police, or his/her designee.  The 
Troy Police Department shall investigate the background of each individual applicant, manager, 
employee, independent contractors, other than building and trade contractors, that act as entertainers, 
waitress and/or have any contact with patrons in any other way, partners of a partnership, president, 
vice-president, secretary and treasurer of a corporation, or other officers and the holders of stock of a 
corporation.  Each applicant shall pay a non-refundable and non-transferable investigation fee at the 
time the application if filed for each person who will be investigated.  Fees under this section shall be 
set by resolution of City Council.  The report of the Troy Police Department shall be referred to the City 
Clerk. 

 
The City Clerk shall transmit a request to the Planning Director for a report determining whether or not 
the proposed location of the adult use business complies with the locational requirements of this 
Chapter and the Zoning Ordinance.  The Planning Director shall issue a report within five (5) business 
days of the transmittal of the request for a report from the City Clerk.  Except as set out in Article VII. D. 
of this Chapter, if the Planning Director fails to issue the report, as required, the City Clerk shall 
presume that the proposed location of the adult use business complies with the Code of Ordinances. 

 
    VII.Approval/ Denial of License. 
 

A. The application of any applicant shall be approved or denied by the City Clerk within fourteen 
(14) days of the date of the application is officially filed with the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall 
deny a license if one or more of the following criteria apply:  

 
1. The applicant is under the age of eighteen (18) years of age;  
2. The applicant has made a false statement upon the application or have given false 

information in connection with an application; 
3. The applicant or any holder of any class of stock, or a director, officer, partner or 

principal of the applicant has had an adult use business license revoked or suspended 
anywhere within the State of Michigan or any other state in the United States within one 
(1) year prior to the application; 

4. The applicant has operated an adult use business which has determined to be a public 
nuisance in the State of Michigan or any state, county or the city or any other 
governmental subdivision in the United States within one (1) year prior to the application; 

5. A corporation applicant is not in good standing or is not authorized to do business in the 
State of Michigan; 

6. The applicant is overdue in the payment of City taxes, fees, fines or penalties assessed 
against him, her or it or imposed against him, her or it in relation to an adult use 
business; 

7. The applicant has not obtained the required sales tax license; 
8. The applicant has been convicted of a specified criminal act within the five (5) year 

period prior to the date the application if filed with the City Clerk. 
 

B. In the event the City Clerk denies a license, he/she shall notify the applicant in writing by first 
class mail to the address on the application of the denial and the reasons for the denial. The 
applicant shall have the right to a hearing before the City Manager as set forth in Article X.C. of 
this Chapter.  A written request for a hearing shall be made to the City Manager within ten (10) 
days of the date of denial of the license by the City Clerk.  A hearing shall be held within 
fourteen (14) days from the date a timely request for a hearing is received by the City Manager. 

 
1. At the hearing, the City Manager may require the presence of representatives of the 

Police Department, the City Clerk, the Planning Director, the Building and Zoning 
Director, City Treasurer, Code Enforcement, the applicant or other interested parties, or 



 9

any other individual who may have information relevant to the denial of the license.  The 
City Manager may accept written documentation or hear statements and consider other 
evidence offered which is relevant to the denial of the license application by the City 
Clerk. 

 
a. If the City Manager determines that the applicant is ineligible for a license under this Chapter, 

he/she shall notify the applicant in writing at the address on the application within two (2) days 
after the hearing is concludes that the City Clerk’s denial of the application is upheld and state 
the reason(s) therefore. 

 
b. The City Manager’s decision shall be final and may be appealed to the Oakland County Circuit 

Court in accordance with the State law.  Failure of an applicant to timely follow the filing 
deadlines for an appeal as set out in this Chapter constitutes a waiver of any right the applicant 
may otherwise have to contest the denial of the application. 

 
C. Except as set out in Article VII.D., if any city official or department fails to render a timely 

decision pursuant to the terms of this Chapter, that city official or department shall be deemed to 
have approved or consented to the issuance of the requested license.   

 
D. A deadline date for rendering a decision under this Chapter may only be excused and extended 

for events beyond the control of the decision maker, such as, the death or a sudden serious 
illness of a spouse, parent, child or sibling; an excused serious illness of the decision maker, or 
other highly personal issue.  It shall be the decision of the City Manager as to whether this 
paragraph applies to a specific situation.  In rendering that decision, the City Manager shall only 
implement an extension under this paragraph if there is no other city official that is qualified to 
rendering the required decision.  The City Manager’s only power after making a decision under 
this paragraph is to grant an extension to the decision maker for no more than seven (7) days. 
Only one (1) extension shall be granted under this paragraph.  If the City Manager is the 
decision maker for which an extension is required, it shall be the duty of the Assistant City 
Manager for Services to grant or deny an extension to the City Manager under this subsection. 

 
      VIII. Term of License. 

 
All licenses granted pursuant to this Chapter shall be for a term or one (1) year. Said term shall 
commence on January 1st of each year and terminate on December 31st of the same year.  Applications 
for a license filed at any other time during the year shall be treated the same as if they were filed 
January 1st of that year and shall terminate on December 31st of the same year. There shall be a 
license fee for each year a license is in effect. No prorating of fees shall be permitted. 
 

     IX. License Renewal; License Fee. 
 
The renewal of an existing license granted pursuant to this Chapter requires payment of the annual 
licensing fee set by resolution of City Council and filing of a renewal application with the City Clerk not 
less than forty-five (45) days prior to the date of expiration.  The City Clerk may waive, for good cause 
shown, this filing time requirement. 
 

    X. Suspension or Revocation of License. 
 
A. The City Manager may suspend a license for a period not to exceed six (6) months or revoke 

any license granted pursuant to this Chapter upon a finding of any of the following: 
 

1. Repeated disturbances of the public peace within the licensed establishment or upon 
any parking areas, sidewalks, walkways, access ways or grounds within the 
neighborhood of the licensed establishment involving patrons, employees or the 
licensee; 



 10

2. Except as authorized by a valid license issued by the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission, the licensee or any employee have offered for sale or knowingly allowed to 
be consumed or possessed on the licensed premises, or on any parking areas, 
sidewalks, walkways, access ways or grounds immediately adjacent to the licensed 
premises, alcoholic liquor, including, but not limited to, any spirituous, vinous, malt or 
fermented liquor, beverages, liquids or compounds, or marijuana, narcotics, controlled 
substances or other dangerous drugs. 

 
3. The licensee or manager is not on the licensed premises at all times that entertainment 

of any nature, live or otherwise, is being provided; 
 

4. Entertainment was offered at the licensed establishment during hours prohibited by 
Article XIII. of this Chapter. 

 
5. The licensee, a manager or an employee has allowed or has done nothing to prevent 

patrons from engaging in a public display or indecency in violation of State law or the 
Troy Code of Ordinances; or has allowed or done nothing to prevent any act of sexual 
intercourse, sodomy, oral copulation or masturbation; or has allowed or done nothing to 
prevent patrons or employees in engaging in acts of prostitution or negotiate for acts of 
prostitution, within the licensed premises or on any parking areas, sidewalks, walkways, 
access ways or grounds immediately adjacent to the licensed establishment, when 
licensee, manager or employee knew or should have known such displays or acts were 
taking place; 

 
6. The licensee or manager made a false statement or gave false information in connection 

with an application for a license or a renewal of a license; 
 

7. The licensee, manager, or an employee violated or permitted a violation of any provision 
of this Chapter, including the standard of conduct set forth in Article XIV of this Chapter. 

 
8. The licensee, manager or an employee of the licensed establishment is under the age of 

eighteen (18) years. 
 

9. The licensee, in the case of a corporation, is not in good standing or is not authorized to 
do business in the State; 

 
10. The licensee, manager or an employee knowingly operated the facility, part of the facility 

or allowed any adult activities in the facility of the adult use business during a period of 
time when the adult use business was suspended or revoked; 

 
11. The licensee is delinquent to the city, county or state for any taxes or fees past due; 

 
12. A licensee(s), manager, employee or independent contractor as set out in Article VI has       

been convicted of a specified criminal act.  
 

B. Nothing in this Chapter shall prohibit the city from taking any other enforcement action provided 
for by the Troy Code of Ordinances, the laws of the State, or the laws of the United States. 

 
C. A licensee shall be entitled to a hearing before the City Manager if the City seeks to suspend or 

revoke his/her or its license based on a violation of this Chapter.  The procedure for suspending 
or revoking a license is as follows: 

 
1. When there is probable cause to believe that a licensee, a manager or an employee has 

violated or permitted a violation of this Chapter to occur in or near the licensed 
establishment, the Police Department, the City Clerk, the Director of Building and 



 11

Zoning, the Planning Director, the City Treasurer, Code Enforcement, or any other city 
department, may file a written complaint with the City Manager setting forth the 
circumstances of the violation.  

 
2. The City Manager shall provide a copy of the complaint to the licensee, together with 

notice to appear before the City Manager for the purpose of a hearing on a specified 
date to show cause why the adult use business license should not be suspended or 
revoked. 

 
3. At the hearing, the City Manager may require the presence of representatives of the 

Police Department, the City Clerk, the Planning Director, the Building and Zoning 
Director, the City Treasurer, Code Enforcement, the owner, occupant, applicant or other 
interested parties, or any other individual who may have information relevant to the 
violation alleged in the complaint.  The City Manager may accept written documentation 
or hear statements and consider other evidence offered which is relevant to the 
allegations in the complaint.  The City Manager shall make findings of fact from the 
statements and evidence presented as to whether or not the alleged violation occurred. 
If the City Manager determines, based on a preponderance of evidence, that a violation 
has occurred, within twenty (20) days after the hearing, the City Manager shall issue a 
written summary based on the finding of facts. The written summary issued by the City 
Manager shall order the suspension or revocation of the adult use business license.  A 
copy of the written summary and order shall be served in person on the licensee or 
mailed by first class mail to his/her or its last known address. 

 
4. The City Manager shall have the power to administer oaths, issue appearance notices, 

and when necessary, grant continuances.  Appearance notices may be issued to require 
the presence of persons and production of papers, books and records necessary to 
make a determination concerning the allegations in a complaint. 

 
5. The written summary and order of the City Manager shall be a final decision and may be 

appealed to the Oakland County Circuit Court in accordance with State law.  Failure of 
an applicant to timely appeal the City Manager’s order of suspension or revocation 
constitutes a waiver by licensee of his/her or its right to contest the suspension or 
revocation of the adult use business license. 

 
6. In such cases where specified criminal acts are in issue, the provisions of the Michigan 

Penal Code, Chapter 750, MCL 750.1, et. seq. shall control. 
 

D. In the event of suspension, revocation or cessation of an adult use business, no portion of the 
license fee, application fee or investigation fee shall be refunded. 

 
E. When the City Manager revokes an adult use business license, the revocation shall continue for 

a one (1) year period.  The licensee shall not be issued an adult use business license for one 
(1) year from the date the revocation became effective. 

 
     XI. Display; Transferability; Change of Ownership. 
 

A. Any adult use business license issued pursuant to this Chapter shall be prominently displayed 
at all times on the premises for which the license was issued in accordance with Article V. B.7. 
of this Chapter. 

 
B. Licenses issued under this Chapter shall not be transferable except as provided herein.  Any 

transfer of ownership or control by a licensee holding an adult use business license shall result 
in termination of the license unless such licensee, within thirty (30) days prior to any such 
transfer files a written notice of such transfer accompanied by the application fee and an 



 12

investigation fee as required by Article IV this Chapter. Any such transfer shall be reported on 
forms provided by the City Clerk and shall require the names of all new principal owners and 
any information as required by Article V of this Chapter.  Approval or denial by the City Clerk of 
such transfer shall be based on the same terms as provided for in this Chapter for the approval 
or denial of an adult use business license. 

 
C. When a license has been issued to a husband and wife or to general or limited partners, the 

death of a spouse or partner shall not require the surviving spouse or partner to obtain a new 
license.  All rights and privileges granted under the original license shall continue in full force 
and effect as to such survivors for the balance of the license period. 

 
D. Each license issued under this Chapter is separate and distinct, and no person shall exercise 

any of the privileges granted under any license other than that which he/she holds.  A separate 
license shall be issued for each specific adult use business and each geographical location. 

 
     XII.  Manager; Change of Manager. 
 

A. A registered manager shall be on the premises of an adult use business at all times that 
entertainment, live or otherwise, is being provided.  It shall be unlawful for any person to work 
as a manager of an adult use business without first registering with the City Clerk.  The 
registration form shall require the applicant to provide his/her legal name and any aliases, home 
address, telephone numbers and satisfactory proof that he/she is eighteen (18) years of age. 

 
B. In the event a licensee changes the manager or any employees of an adult use business, the 

licensee shall report such change and register the new manger or any employees on forms 
provided by the City Clerk within ten (10) days of such change.  Any new employees or 
manager shall pay the investigation fee approved by resolution of City Council and shall be 
subject to approval or denial in accordance with the provisions of Article VII of this Chapter. 

 
    XIII.  Hours of Operation. 
 

It shall be unlawful for an adult use business to be open for business or for the licensee, manager or 
any employee of a licensee to allow patrons on the licensed premises from twelve o’clock (12:00) 
midnight until eight (8:00) A.M. 

 
   XIV.  Standard of Conduct. 
 

A. The following standards of conduct must be adhered to by employees of any adult use business 
that offers, conducts or maintains live entertainment: 

 
1. Clothing: No employee or entertainer mingling with the patrons or serving food or beverages 

shall be unclothed or in such attire, costume or clothing so as to expose to view any specified 
anatomical area. 

 
2. Touching, Caressing, Fondling: No employee or entertainer shall encourage or knowingly permit 

any person on the premises to touch, caress, or fondle the breasts, buttocks, anus or genitals of 
any employee, entertainer or any other person. Touching, caressing or fondling of any part of an 
employee or entertainer by a patron shall be strictly prohibited. 

 
3. Simulation of Specified Areas: No employee or entertainer shall wear or use any device or 

covering exposed to view, which simulates the breasts, genitals, anus, pubic hair or any portion 
thereof. 

 
4. Performance Standards: 

 



 13

a. No employee or entertainer shall be in such attire, costume or clothing so as to 
expose any portion of a specified anatomical area except on a stage at least 
eighteen (18) inches above the immediate floor level and removed at least six (6) 
feet from the nearest patron or behind a solid, uninterrupted physical barrier 
which completely separates the employee or entertainer from any patrons.  This 
barrier must be a minimum of one-fourth (1/4) inch thick and have no openings 
between the employee or entertainer and any patrons.  The stage shall be fixed 
and immovable. 

 
b. No employee or entertainer shall perform any obscene acts or obscene acts that 

simulate specified sexual activities or perform any prohibited activities described 
in this Chapter. 

 
5. Use of Inanimate Objects or Animals: No employee or entertainer shall use artificial devices or 

inanimate objects and/or animals to depict any of the prohibited activities described in this 
Chapter. 

 
6. Menu: There shall be posted and conspicuously displayed in every area offering entertainment 

a list of food and beverage prices. 
 

7. Alcohol and Liquor: No adult use business shall serve or engage in the sale of alcoholic 
beverages, including, but not limited to, any spirituous, vinous, malt or fermented liquor, 
beverages, liquids and compounds.  The sale or service of alcohol at an adult use business 
shall be controlled by the Michigan Liquor Control Code, M.C.L. 436.1101, et. seq., as 
amended. 

 
8. Consumption of alcohol:  It shall be unlawful to permit the consumption of alcoholic beverages 

in any adult use business except in relation to a liquor license granted and in compliance with 
the Michigan Liquor Control Code, M.C.L. 436.1101, et. seq., as amended.  

 
9. Tips:  Any tips for employees or entertainers shall be placed by a patron into a tip box which is 

permanently affixed in the adult use business and no tip may be handed directly to an employee 
or entertainer.  A licensee that desires to provide for such tips form its patrons shall establish 
one or more containers to receive tips.   

 
 
10. Tip Boxes: An adult use business that provides tip boxes shall conspicuously display in the 

common area of the premises one or more signs in letters at least one (1) inch high to read as 
follows: 

 
“EMPLOYEE AND ENTERTAINMENT TIPPING IS REGULATED BY THE CITY 
Any tips are to be placed in tip boxes and not handed directly to the employees or 
entertainers.  Any physical contact between the patron and the employee or entertainer 
is prohibited by law. Violators face maximum penalties of $500 and/or 90 days in jail.” 

  
11. Outside Visibility:  No entertainment occurring on the premises shall be visible at any time from 

outside of the premises. 
 

B. Any licensee who offers, conducts, or maintains live entertainment or an adult arcade which 
exhibits in a peep booth, a film, videocassette, compact disc, or other video reproduction, shall 
comply with the following requirements in addition to those set forth in this Chapter: 

 
1. It is the duty of the licensee of the premises to ensure that at least one employee is on duty 

and situated in each manager’s station at all times that any patron is present inside the 
premises. 



 14

 
2. It is the duty of the licensee and managers of the premises to ensure that any doors to 

public areas on the premises remain unlocked during business hours. 
 

3. The interior of the premise shall be configured in such a manner that there is an 
unobstructed view from an employee’s station of every area of the premises to which any 
patron is permitted access for any purpose, excluding restrooms.  Restrooms may not 
contain video reproduction equipment or other forms of entertainment.  If the premises has 
two (2) or more employee’s stations, then the interior of the premises shall be configured in 
such a manner that there is an unobstructed view of each area of the premises to which any 
patron is permitted access for any purpose, excluding restrooms, from at least one of the 
employee’s stations.  The view required in this Article must be by direct line of sight from the 
employee’s station.   

 
4. No alteration to the configuration of an adult use business may be made without the prior 

written approval of the Building and Zoning Director. 
 

5. It shall be the duty of the licensee, and it shall also be the duty of any agents, managers and 
employees present in the premises to ensure that the view area specified in Article XIV. B.3.  
of this Chapter remains unobstructed by any doors, curtains, drapes, walls, merchandise, 
display racks or other materials at all times or any person intentionally blocking said view 
and to ensure that no patron is permitted access to any area of the premises which has 
been designated as an area in which patrons will not be permitted in the license application 
filed pursuant to this Chapter. 

 
6. No peep booth may be occupied by more than one person at any one time. 

 
7. Peep booths must be separated from other peep booths by a solid, non-opaque, 

uninterrupted physical divider which is a minimum of one-fourth (1/4) inch thick and serves 
to prevent physical contact or visibility between patrons. 

 
    XV.Age Restrictions. 
 

Admission to an adult use business is restricted to persons of the age of eighteen (18) years of age or 
older. 

 
     XVI.Right of Entry. 
 

The filing of an application for an adult use business license shall constitute consent of the applicant 
and licensee and his/her or its agents, managers and/or employees to permit the city’s Police 
Department, Building Department, Planning Department or any other department or agent of the city to 
conduct routine inspections of any licensed adult use business during the hours the establishment is 
conducting business. 

 
Section 3. Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give 
this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this Ordinance takes 
effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force 
at the time such proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly 



 15

repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date 
of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and 
in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 5. Severability Clause
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or unconstitutional, the 
remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, whichever shall 
later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of 
the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the ________ day of ________, ________. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND  

CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
 

The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60 
of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Section 60.03 – Fee Schedule of Chapter 60. 
 
Section 60.03 - Fee Schedule is hereby amended to provide a license fee and 
renewal fee for Adult Use Businesses. 
 
Section 60.03 - Fee Schedule. Is amended by the addition of the following new 
fees:    
 
 
ITEM/SERVICE:     FEE: 
 
Adult Use Business  
 
Application Fee     $500.00 
 
Investigation Fee $500 for up to and including 4 

persons and an additional $100 
per person thereafter 

 
      

Annual License Renewal Fee     $500.00 
 
Section 3. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or 
incurred, at the time this Ordinance takes effect are hereby saved.  Such 
proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force 
at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly 
repealed or amended by this Ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date 



of this Ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this Ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any 
ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be 
held invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or 
upon publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, MI, on the______day of ________,2007. 
 
 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND  

CHAPTER 3 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
 

The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 3 
of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Section 1.141 (6) of Chapter 3 
 
Section 1.141 (6) is hereby amended to provide that a City of Troy Building 
Inspector shall have authority to issue and serve appearance tickets to Adult Use 
Businesses if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the person has 
committed a violation of Chapter 76. 
 
Section 1.141 (6) is amended by the addition of the following: 
 

Section 1.141 (6)   A City of Troy Building Inspector shall have authority to 
issue and serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil 
Infraction notice of violation and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if 
he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the person has committed a 
violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City Code. 
 
Chapter 76. Adult Use Businesses Licenses              

 
 
Section 3. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or 
incurred, at the time this Ordinance takes effect are hereby saved.  Such 
proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force 
at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This Ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly 
repealed or amended by this Ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date 
of this Ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this Ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any 
ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 



Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be 
held invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date. 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or 
upon publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, MI, on the______day of ________,2007. 
 
 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

 
C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) – Articles IV and XXII 

– Adult Business Uses 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment: 
 
David Ashland-Support 
 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the public. 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, It is recognized that there are some uses which, because of their very nature, have 
serious objectionable operational characteristics, particularly when several of them are 
concentrated under certain circumstances or when one (1) or more of them are located in near 
proximity to a residential zone, thereby having a deleterious effect upon the adjacent areas. 
Special regulation of these uses is necessary to ensure that these adverse effects will not 
contribute to the blighting or downgrading of the surrounding neighborhood. These controls are 
for the purpose of preventing a concentration of these uses within any one (1) area, or to 
prevent deterioration or blighting of a nearby residential neighborhood. These controls do not 
legitimatize activities that are prohibited by other applicable laws;  
 
WHEREAS, In regulating adult business uses, it is the purpose of this ordinance to promote the 
health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the City of Troy, and to establish 
reasonable and uniform regulations to prevent the deleterious secondary effects of adult 
business uses within the City of Troy. The provisions of this ordinance have neither the purpose 
nor effect of imposing a limitation or restriction on the content or reasonable access to any 
communicative materials, including sexually oriented materials. Similarly, it is neither the intent 
nor effect of this ordinance to restrict or deny access by adults to sexually oriented materials 
protected by the First Amendment, or to deny access by the distributors and exhibitors of 
sexually oriented entertainment to their intended market. Neither is it the intent nor effect of this 
ordinance to condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene material; and 
 
WHEREAS, Based on evidence of the adverse secondary effects of adult business uses 
presented in reports made available to the City Council, and on findings incorporated in the 
cases of City of Renton v. Playtime Theatres, Inc., 475 U.S. 41 (1986), Young v. American Mini 
Theatres, 426 U.S. 50 (1976), and other cases; and reports of secondary effects occurring in 
and around adult business uses, including, but not limited to, Tucson AZ, Garden Grove CA, 
Ellicottville NY, New York NY, Times Square (New York City) NY, Oklahoma City OK, Cleburne 
TX, Dallas TX, Houston TX, Newport News VI, and St. Croix County WI, the Planning 
Commission finds that adult business uses as a category of establishments are correlated with 
harmful secondary effects, and that the foregoing reports are reasonably believed to be 
relevant to the problems that the City of Troy is seeking to abate and prevent in the future; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Articles IV 
Definitions and XXII B-3 General Business District, pertaining to permitting Adult Business 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

Uses subject to Special Use Approval in the B-3 District, as printed on the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the amendments to Articles IV Definitions and XXII B-3 
General Business District, SHALL BE EFFECTIVE upon the adoption, publication, and 
effective date of amendments to Chapters 3, 60, and the enactment of Chapter 76. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2006-06-187 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the resolution for Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 
207) – Articles IV and XXII – Adult Business Uses be AMENDED by CORRECTING Section 
04.20.50 ESCORT by INSERTING the close parenthesis after “entertainer”. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2007-06-188 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, It is recognized that there are some uses which, because of their very nature, have 
serious objectionable operational characteristics, particularly when several of them are 
concentrated under certain circumstances or when one (1) or more of them are located in near 
proximity to a residential zone, thereby having a deleterious effect upon the adjacent areas. 
Special regulation of these uses is necessary to ensure that these adverse effects will not 
contribute to the blighting or downgrading of the surrounding neighborhood. These controls are 
for the purpose of preventing a concentration of these uses within any one (1) area, or to 
prevent deterioration or blighting of a nearby residential neighborhood. These controls do not 
legitimatize activities that are prohibited by other applicable laws;  
 
WHEREAS, In regulating adult business uses, it is the purpose of this ordinance to promote the 
health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the City of Troy, and to establish 
reasonable and uniform regulations to prevent the deleterious secondary effects of adult 
business uses within the City of Troy. The provisions of this ordinance have neither the purpose 
nor effect of imposing a limitation or restriction on the content or reasonable access to any 
communicative materials, including sexually oriented materials. Similarly, it is neither the intent 
nor effect of this ordinance to restrict or deny access by adults to sexually oriented materials 
protected by the First Amendment, or to deny access by the distributors and exhibitors of 
sexually oriented entertainment to their intended market. Neither is it the intent nor effect of this 
ordinance to condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene material; and 
WHEREAS, Based on evidence of the adverse secondary effects of adult business uses 
presented in reports made available to the City Council, and on findings incorporated in the 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft June 18, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

cases of City of Renton v. Playtime Theatres, Inc., 475 U.S. 41 (1986), Young v. American Mini 
Theatres, 426 U.S. 50 (1976), and other cases; and reports of secondary effects occurring in 
and around adult business uses, including, but not limited to, Tucson AZ, Garden Grove CA, 
Ellicottville NY, New York NY, Times Square (New York City) NY, Oklahoma City OK, Cleburne 
TX, Dallas TX, Houston TX, Newport News VI, and St. Croix County WI, the Planning 
Commission finds that adult business uses as a category of establishments are correlated with 
harmful secondary effects, and that the foregoing reports are reasonably believed to be 
relevant to the problems that the City of Troy is seeking to abate and prevent in the future; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Articles IV 
Definitions and XXII B-3 General Business District, pertaining to permitting Adult Business 
Uses subject to Special Use Approval in the B-3 District, as AMENDED and CORRECTED in 
the June 18th, 2007 Memorandum and further AMENDED by CORRECTING Section 04.20.50 
ESCORT by INSERTING the close parenthesis after “entertainer”; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the amendments to Articles IV Definitions and XXII B-3 
General Business District, SHALL BE EFFECTIVE upon the adoption, publication, and 
effective date of amendments to Chapters 3, 60, and the enactment of Chapter 76.   
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  



TO: Members of the Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: June 13, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Adult Use Businesses – Licensing Ordinance 
 

       
 
 
The Planning Commission has reviewed the proposed Adult Use Business zoning amendments, 
and has recommended approval of the revisions to provide some additional safeguards for the City 
of Troy.  A public hearing on these proposed revisions is set for the June 18, 2007 City Council 
meeting.  The recommended version of the Adult Use Business zoning amendments requires each 
proposed operator to submit to an annual licensing procedure.  Therefore, a proposed Adult Use 
Business Licensing schedule has also been prepared for City Council consideration.   
 
The enactment of a new Adult Use Business License also requires amendments to Chapter 60 
(fees) and Chapter 3 (enforcement authority), which are also submitted for Council review, in draft 
form.  Minor revisions to the formatting must still be made.  The definitions in the proposed new 
Chapter 76 mirror the definitions in the proposed Adult Use Business zoning amendments.  As a 
result, any modification to the proposed zoning text will likely require a similar change to the 
licensing ordinance.  For this reason, the proposed ordinances are provided as informational items 
at this time.  Any City Council modifications can be incorporated prior to submission of the 
ordinances for approval.  However, since it is essential that the licensing and application procedure 
are linked to the proposed zoning changes, the proposed resolution makes the effective dates of all 
Adult Use Business amendments in Chapter 3, 39, 60, and 76 the same.       
 
In addition to the definitions section, the new proposed Chapter 76 also sets forth the Adult Use 
Business Application requirements, as well as the investigation process.  The proposed ordinance 
also specifies the factors that can be considered in deciding whether or not to grant a requested 
special use approval for an Adult Use Business.  Grounds for suspension of a license are also set 
forth in the proposed Chapter 76, as well as the required standard of conduct.   
 
Please let us know if you have any questions or concerns about the proposed Adult Use Business 
Licensing ordinance.  Absent objections from City Council, this item will be brought back as an 
action item on a subsequent City Council agenda.  
         
 
 

 1



 1

 
 
 
DATE: June 12, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) – 

Articles IV and XXII – Adult Business Uses 
 
 
Background: 
 
• The Planning Commission held a public hearing for this item at the May 1, 2007 Regular 

meeting and recommended approval of ZOTA 207.   
 
• Presently, adult use businesses are not regulated by the Zoning Ordinance.  The attached 

map indicates all property currently zoned B-1, B-2, B-3, H-S, O-1, O-M and O-S-C that 
could be used for adult business uses under current Zoning Ordinance provisions. 

     
• Regulating adult use businesses is complicated by the fact that courts have consistently 

held that such businesses are engaged in expressive conduct and therefore protected by 
the First Amendment.  Court decisions have determined that communities can regulate 
these uses based on the secondary effects associated with a concentration of these uses.  
Specifically, secondary effects include higher crime rates and lower property values. 

 
• A number of communities in the United States have completed studies that document the 

secondary effects of sexually oriented businesses.  The National Law Center for Children 
and Families prepared summaries of reports prepared by eleven communities in the 
United States (see attached). 

 
• The draft text amendment defines the types of uses and activities that are considered adult 

use businesses.  These uses would be permitted subject to special use approval in the B-3 
district.  The standards limit potential sites to those parcels located at least 1000 feet to 
another adult use business and at least 500 feet from a church, school or childcare facility, 
public park or any residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential purposes.  
There are 28 parcels totaling approximately 118.49 acres available to be used for adult 
business uses. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



 2

• This item is tie-barred with the proposed new Chapter 76, Adult Use Business License, of 
the Code of the City of Troy. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The proposed amendment is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and 

safety of the community). 
 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council can approve, deny or modify the proposed text amendment. 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 

Attachments: 
1. Draft ZOTA 207. 
2. Letter prepared by L. Brooks Patterson, Oakland County Executive, February 18, 2003. 
3. Memo prepared by City Attorneys Office. 
4. Summary of reports prepared by the National Law Center for Children and Families. 
5. Map: All parcels currently zoned B-1, B-2, B-3, H-S, O-1, O-M & O-S-C. 
6. Map: All B-3 zoned parcels in Troy. 
7. Map: B-3 zoned parcels not excluded by the proposed ordinance. 
8. Minutes from May 1, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 

 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 207 Sexually Oriented Businesses\CC Public Hearing 06 18 07.doc 



 1

CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the Code of the 
City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article IV and Article XXII of Chapter 39 
Article IV – “Definitions” and Article XXII – “B-3 General Business District” of Chapter 39 of the Code 
of the City of Troy are hereby amended to provide definitions and to regulate adult use businesses by 
special use approval in the B-3 General Business subject to specific conditions and requirements. 
 
Article IV is amended by the addition of the following new sections: 

 
ARTICLE IV – DEFINITIONS 

 
04.20.04A ADULT ARCADE:  An establishment where, for any form of consideration, one or more 

still or motion picture projectors, slide projectors, compact discs or similar machines, or 
other image producing machines, (whether coin-operated, slug-operated or 
electronically, electrically, internet or mechanically controlled), for viewing by five (5) or 
fewer persons each, are used to show films, motion pictures, video cassettes, compact 
discs, slides or other photographic reproductions which are characterized by the 
depiction or description of “specified sexual activities” or “ specified anatomical areas”. 

 
04.20.04B  ADULT BOOK STORE, ADULT NOVELTY OR RETAIL STORE OR ADULT VIDEO 

STORE:  
 

1. An establishment which, as one of its principal business purposes, offers any one 
or more of the following for sale, rental, or viewing at the site, for any form of 
consideration: 

 
a. Books, computer diskettes, tapes or hard drives, magazines, periodicals or 

other printed material, films, motion picture, video cassettes or video 
reproduction, slides or other visual representations which depict or describe 
“specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical areas”; and/or 

 



 2

b. Instruments, devices, or paraphernalia which are designed for use in 
connection with “specified sexual activities”; and/or 

 
c. Items, materials, gimmicks, or paraphernalia depicting, displaying, advertising 

or packaged as “specified sexual activities” or depicting or describing  
“specified anatomical areas”. 

 
2. For purposes of this section, “principal business purpose” means: 
 

a. The devotion of a significant or substantial portion of its stock-in-trade or 
interior floor space; or 

 
b. The receipt of a significant or substantial portion of its revenues from; or 

 
c. The devotion of a significant or substantial portion of its advertising 

expenditures to the promotion of the sale, rental or viewing, of books, 
magazines, periodicals or other printed matter, or photographs, film, motion 
pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, slides or other visual 
representations, items, materials, gimmicks, or paraphernalia which are 
characterized by the depiction, description display, advertising or packaging 
of “specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical areas”.  

 
3. An establishment may have other principal business purposes that do not involve 

the offering for sale, rental or viewing of materials depicting or describing 
“specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical areas”, and still be 
categorized as an adult bookstore, adult novelty or retail store or adult video 
store.  Such other business purposes will not serve to exempt such 
establishment from being categorized as an adult bookstore, adult novelty store 
or adult video store, so long as the establishment falls within the definition of an 
adult bookstore, adult novelty store or adult video store as set forth above. 

 
04.20.04C ADULT CABARET:  A nightclub, club, bar, restaurant or similar commercial 

establishment which features one or more of the following:  
 

1. Person(s) who appears nude or in a state of nudity or semi-nudity; 
 

2. Live performances which are characterized by the exposure of “specified 
anatomical areas” or by “specified sexual activities”; 

 
3. Films, motion pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, slides or other 

photographic reproductions which are characterized by the depiction or 
description of “specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical areas”. 

 
04.20.04D ADULT MOTEL:  A motel, hotel or similar commercial establishment which:  

 
1. Offers accommodations to the public for any form of consideration and provides 

patrons with closed-circuit television transmissions, films, motion pictures, video 
cassettes, compact discs, slides or other photographic reproductions which are 
characterized by the depiction or description of “specified sexual activities” or 



 3

“specified anatomical areas” and which advertises the availability of this adult 
type of material by means of a sign, visible from the public right of way, or by 
means of any off-premises advertising, including but not limited to newspapers, 
magazines, pamphlets or leaflets, radio or television; and/or 

 
2. Permits patrons to be filmed or photographed performing sexually explicit 

activities or displaying “specified anatomical areas”, including transmission over 
the World Wide Web; and/or 

 
3. Offers a sleeping room for rent for intervals of time less than ten (10) hours; 

and/or 
 

4. Allows a tenant or occupant to subrent a sleeping room for intervals of less than 
ten (10) hours. 

 
04.20.04E ADULT MOTION PICTURE THEATER:  A commercial establishment where films, 

motion pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, slides of  “specified sexual activities” or 
depictions or descriptions of “specified anatomical areas” are regularly shown for any 
form of consideration. 

 
04.20.04F ADULT THEATER:  A theater, concert hall, auditorium or similar commercial 

establishment which, for any form or consideration, regularly features persons who 
appear in a state of nudity or live performances which are characterized by exposure of 
“specified anatomical areas” or by “specified sexual activities.”  This definition does not 
include a theater which features occasional live nude performances with serious literary, 
artistic, or political value and that have no adverse secondary effects. 

 
04.20.04G ADULT USE BUSINESS:  An adult arcade, adult bookstore, adult novelty or retail store, 

adult video store, adult cabaret, adult motel, adult motion picture theater, adult theater, 
escort agency, nude modeling studio and/or a sexual encounter establishments and any 
business determined by the Planning Director to be an adult use, due to the activities of 
the business which involve characteristics of adult uses, such as nudity, semi-nudity, 
exposure of “specified anatomical areas” and/or “specified sexual activities”.  The 
definition of “adult use business” shall not include an establishment where a medical 
practitioner, psychologist, psychiatrist or similar professional person licensed by the 
State engages in medically approved and recognized sexual therapy. 

 
04.20.46A EMPLOYEE:  A person who works or performs in and/or for an adult use business, 

regardless of whether or not said person is paid a salary, wage or other compensation 
by the operator of said business. 

 
04.20.46B ENTERTAINER:  A person who performs some type of activity or pose with the intent of 

allowing others to witness that activity or pose. 
 
04.20.46C ENTERTAINMENT:  A performance of some type of activity, including, but not limited 

to, singing, dancing, acting, mime, comedy, recitations, demonstrations, magic tricks, 
modeling, posing, exhibition, with or without inanimate objects or animals, with the intent 
of allowing others to witness that activity in live or reproduced format. 



 4

04.20.50 ESCORT:  A person who, for consideration in any form, agrees or offers to act as a 
companion, guide, or date for another person, (or who agrees to privately perform as an 
entertainer, including but not limited to, the modeling of lingerie, the removal of clothing, 
and the performance of a dance or skit.   Under this definition, “privately” shall mean a 
performance for an individual and, that individuals guests. 

 
04.20.50A ESCORT AGENCY:  A person or business that furnishes, offers to furnish or advertises 

the furnishing of escorts as one of its primary business purposes, for a fee, tip or any 
other form of consideration. 

 
04.20.54 ESTABLISHMENT:  In regard to an adult use business, means and includes any of the 

following: 
 

1. The opening or commencement of any such business as a new business; 
 

2. The conversion of an existing business, whether or not an adult use business, to 
any adult use business; 

 
3. The addition of any adult use business activities to any other existing adult use 

business; or 
 

4. The relocation of an adult use business. 
 

04.20.76 LICENSEE: The individual listed as an applicant on the application for an adult use 
business license, or a person in whose name a license to operate an adult use business 
has been issued.  

 
04.20.76A LICENSING OFFICER: The Clerk of the City of Troy or his/her designee. 
 
04.20.104 MANAGER:  An operator, other than a licensee, who is employed by an adult use 

business to act as a manager or supervisor of employees, or is otherwise responsible 
for the operation of the adult use business. 

 
04.20.114A NUDE MODELING STUDIO:  Any place where a person appears in a state of nudity or 

displays “specified anatomical areas”, and is provided money or any form of 
consideration to be observed, sketched, drawn, painted, sculpted, photographed or 
similarly depicted by other persons. This includes modeling studios that provide for 
nude modeling on an occasional basis, but it does not include modeling studio whose 
primary function is to provide art classes as part of a college, university or educational 
institution and which is certified by the State of Michigan. 

 
04.20.114B NUDITY OR STATE OF NUDITY:  
 

1. The exposure of human male or female genitals, pubic area, buttocks, anus or 
the areola or nipple of the female breast; and/or 

 
2. A state of dress which fails to opaquely and fully cover human male or female 

genitals, pubic area, buttocks, anus or the areola or nipple of the female breast. 



 5

04.20.121A OPERATOR:  Includes the owner, licensee, manager, or person in charge of any 
premises. 

 
04.20.122A PEEP BOOTH:  An adult motion picture theater with a viewing room or cubical of less 

than one hundred fifty (150) square feet of floor space. 
 
04.20.124A PERSON:  An individual, proprietorship, partnership, corporation, limited liability 

company, association or other entity. 
 
04.20.127A PREMISES OR LICENSED PREMISES:  Any premises that requires an adult use 

license and that is classified as an adult use business. 
 
04.20.127B PRINCIPAL OWNER:  Any person owning, directly or beneficially: a) ten percent (10%) 

or more of a corporation’s equity securities; b) ten percent (10%) or more of the 
membership interests in a limited liability company; or c) in the case of any other entity, 
ten percent (10%) or more of the ownership interests in the entity. 

 
04.20.127C PRIVATE ROOM:  A room in a hotel/motel that is not a peep booth, has a bed, a 

bathtub, a shower, a toilet and/or a sink in the room or adjacent room, and is used 
primarily for lodging. 

 
04.20.128A SEMI-NUDE:  A state of dress in which clothing covers no more than the genitals, pubic 

region, and areola of the female breast, as well as portions of the body covered by 
supporting straps or devices. 

 
04.20.130A SEXUAL ENCOUNTER ESTABLISHMENT:  A business or commercial establishment 

that as one of its primary business purposes, offers a place where two (2) or more 
persons may congregate, associate, or consort for the purpose of “specified sexual 
activities” or the exposure of “specified anatomical areas” or any activities when one or 
more or the persons is in a state of nudity or semi-nudity and/or permits patrons to 
display or be filmed or photographed performing “sexually explicit activities” or 
displaying “specified anatomical areas” for recording or transmission over the World 
Wide Web or any other media, for any form of consideration.  A hotel/motel will not be 
classified as a sexual encounter establishment, by virtue of the fact that it offers private 
rooms for rent. 

 
04.20.132A SPECIFIED ANATOMICAL AREAS: 
 

1. Less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, pubic region, 
buttocks, anus or female breasts below a point immediately above the top of the 
areola; and/or 

 
2. Human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely and 

opaquely covered. 
 
04.20.132B SPECIFIED CRIMINAL ACTS:  Sexual crimes against children, sexual abuse, criminal 

sexual conduct, rape, crimes classified as sexual crimes by the State of Michigan or any 
other state, or crimes connected with another adult use business, including but not 
limited to, the distribution of obscenity, prostitution and/or pandering. 



 6

04.20.132C SIGNIFICANT OR SUBSTANTIAL PORTION:  Means thirty (30) percent or more of the 
term modified by such phrase.  

 
04.20.133C SPECIFIED SEXUAL ACTIVITIES: 
 

1. The fondling or other intentional touching of human genitals, pubic region, 
buttocks, anus or female breasts: and/or 

 
2. Sex acts, actual or simulated, including but not limited to, intercourse, oral 

copulation or sodomy; and/or 
 

3. Masturbation, actual or simulated; and/or 
 

4. Human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation, arousal or tumescence; and/or 
 

5. Excretory functions as part of or in connection with any of the activities set forth 
in subsections (1) through (4) of this definition. 

 
04.20.146 TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP OR CONTROL OF AN ADULT USE BUSINESS:   

 
1. The sale, lease or sublease of the business; and/or 

 
2. The transfer of securities which constitute a controlling interest in the business, 

whether by sale, exchange or similar means; and/or 
 

3. The establishment of a trust, management arrangement, gift or other similar legal 
device which transfers ownership or control of the business, except for transfer 
by bequest or other operation of law upon the death of a person possessing the 
ownership or control. 

 
 
Article XXII is amended by the addition of the following new section: 
 
 

ARTICLE XXII – GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 
 

22.30.08 Adult use business, as defined in this section, shall be permitted subject to the 
conditions set out herein: 

 
A) The purpose and intent of this section is to regulate adult use businesses, to 

promote the health, safety, morals and general welfare of the citizens of the City, 
and to establish reasonable and uniform regulations to prevent the deleterious 
location and concentration of adult use businesses within the City, thereby 
reducing or eliminating the adverse secondary effects from such adult use 
businesses.  The provisions of this section have neither the purpose nor effect of 
imposing a limitation or restriction on the content of any communicative 
materials, including adult materials.  Similarly, it is not the intent nor effect of this 
section to restrict or deny access by adults to adult materials protected by the 
Constitution of the United States or the Michigan Constitution, or to deny access 



 7

by the distributors and exhibitors of adult entertainment or adult use businesses 
to their intended market.  It is also not the intent nor effect of this section to 
condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene material. 

 
B) It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated an adult use business in 

any location in the City, except as provided in Troy’s Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 
39, Article XXII, Section 22.30.08 of the Code of Ordinances. 

 
C) It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated an adult use business 

within five hundred feet (500’), measured from the nearest lot line to the nearest 
lot line on a straight-line basis, of any of the following: 

 
1. A church; 

 
2. A school or childcare facility; 

 
3. A public park (not including public trails); 

 
4. Any residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential purposes. 

 
D) It shall be unlawful to cause or permit the operation of an adult use business 

within one thousand feet (1,000’) of another adult use business.  The distance 
between any such businesses shall be measured from the nearest lot line to the 
nearest lot line on a straight-line basis. 

 
E) It shall be unlawful to cause or permit the operation or maintenance of more than 

one adult use business in the same building, structure or portion thereof. 
 

F) All off street parking areas and entry door areas of adult use businesses shall be 
illuminated from dusk until the closing time of the business with a lighting system 
which provides an average maintained horizontal illumination of one foot-candle 
of light on all parking surfaces and/or walkways.  This requirement level is to help 
ensure the personal safety of patrons and employees and to reduce the 
incidence of vandalism and other criminal conduct. 

G) The premises of all adult use businesses, except adult motion picture theaters, 
shall be equipped with overhead lighting fixtures of sufficient intensity to 
illuminate every place where patrons are permitted, at an illumination level of not 
less than two (2) foot-candles of light, as measured at the floor level. 

H) Adult motion picture theaters shall be equipped with overhead lighting fixtures of 
sufficient intensity to illuminate every place where patrons are permitted at an 
illumination level of not less than one foot-candle of light, as measure at the floor 
level. 

 
I) No person shall conduct an adult use business without first having obtained an 

annual adult use business license from the City. 



 8

J) No person(s) shall reside on or permit any other persons to reside on the 
premises of an adult use business. 

 
K) All adult use businesses shall be subject to the same requirements of the Zoning 

Ordinance. 
 

L) An adult use business lawfully operating is not rendered a nonconforming use by 
the subsequent location of a church, school, childcare facility, public park, 
residential district, or a residential lot within five hundred feet (500’) of the adult 
use business.  However, if the adult use business ceases operation for a period 
of one hundred eighty (180) days or more, regardless of any intent to resume 
operation, it may not recommence operation in that location, unless it achieves 
conformity with the City of Troy Ordinances.  

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance 
shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter 
instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting 
this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may 
be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon the adoption, publication and effective date of amendments 
to Chapters 3, 60, and the enactment of Chapter 76 relating to Adult Business Uses. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of 
_____________, ____. 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 207 Sexually Oriented Businesses\CC Public Hearing Draft 05 09 07.doc 

















































JO
H

N
R

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

K
S R

O
C

H
E

S
TE

R

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

BIG BEAVER

I75

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207)
PROPERTY POTENTIALLY
AVAILABLE FOR ADULT USE BUSINESSES 
UNDER EXISTING ORDINANCE

³ 0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,0001,000
Feet

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.
REVISION DATE:  04-24-2007

KEY
PARCELS CURRENTLY ZONED
B-1, B-2, B-3, H-S, O-1, O-M, & O-S-C



JO
H

N
R

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

K
S

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

BIG BEAVER

I75

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S
SOUTH BLVD ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207)

ALL PROPERTY CURRENTLY ZONED B-3

³ 0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,0002,500
Feet

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.
REVISION DATE:  04-24-2007

KEY
PROPERTY CURRENTLY B-3 ZONED 



C
R

O
O

K
S

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

JO
H

N
R

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

M
A

IN

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

I75

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

FOURTEEN MILE

MAPLE

BIG BEAVER

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207)
PARCELS CURRENTLY ZONED B-3
AVAILABLE FOR ADULT USE BUSINESSES 
UNDER PROPOSED ORDINANCE - 500 FT.

³ 0 1,000 2,000500
Feet

PROPOSED STANDARDS:
THE PROPERTY IS ZONED B-3 AND
A MIN. OF 500 FT FROM:
  1) CHURCHES
  2) SCHOOLS AND CHILDCARE FACILITIES
  3) PUBLIC PARKS
  4) RESIDENTIALLY ZONED OR USED PARCELS
IN TROY OR ABUTTING COMMUNITY

NOTE:
PARCELS CONTAINING ANY PORTION OF B-3 ZONING 
ARE CONSIDERED TO BE B-3 PARCELS FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS MAP
  

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.
REVISION DATE:  04-26-2007

KEY
B-3 ZONED PARCELSPARCELS AVAILABLE UNDER
PROPOSED ORDINANCE



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207) – 
Proposed Article 22.30.08  Adult Business Uses 
 
Mr. Miller briefly reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to adult business uses.  He summarized the impacts of distance 
requirements of adult business uses from a church, school, childcare facility, 
public park or any residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential 
purposes, ranging from 500 feet to 1,000 feet.   
 
Ms. Lancaster detailed the legal aspects of an adult business use text 
amendment in relation to the First Amendment.  She addressed court decisions 
based on the secondary effects associated with a concentration of adult business 
uses, and what the courts look for when an ordinance is challenged.  Ms. 
Lancaster said courts recognize the need for a balance between the First 
Amendment and deleterious affects of an adult business use.  She said the 
bottom line is the Zoning Ordinance must be content-neutral, and the City cannot 
deny the First Amendment use or access to our City to have these uses.  The 
Legal Department recommends a distance requirement of 500 feet of adult 
business uses from a church, school, childcare facility, public park or any 
residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential purposes. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Ms. Kerwin said the Legal Department and Planning Department served the City 
very well in their recommendations on adult business uses, and the need to have 
an ordinance in place.  It is recognized that adult business uses have a 
deleterious effect on surrounding properties.  Ms. Kerwin said that personally, as 
an advocate for youth, she could not support the 500-foot distance requirement 
from a church, school, childcare facility, public park or residential zoning. 
 
Mr. Vleck indicated he would favor a minimal of 600 feet from a church, school, 
childcare facility, public park or residential zoning.   
 
Mr. Hutson addressed the viewpoint of a judge, and questioned if anything in 
excess of 600 feet from a church, school, childcare facility, public park, or 
residential zoning would stand up to a test in court.  He indicated the safest 
course to take would be to adopt an ordinance with the 500-foot distance, as 
recommended by the Legal Department.  Mr. Hutson said he would not support 
anything over 600 feet.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

Ms. Troshynski said her concern is with the concentrations of adult business 
uses along Big Beaver, Maple and 14 Mile Roads.  She asked if there were other 
options that could be considered in that respect.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said the uses cannot be zoned out of business, and the court 
wants an ordinance that is content-neutral.  She said the City could amend the 
ordinance to allow adult business uses in other zoning districts, but she is not 
sure that would help with the concentration aspect.  Ms. Lancaster said an open 
mind must be kept in terms of providing access for such a use.   
 
Chair Schultz said he would support the recommendation of the City Attorney’s 
office.  He said it is understood that the majority of residents do not want any 
adult business use in our City, but they cannot be prohibited.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-089 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To move the adoption of Proposed Resolution # PC-2007-05 
relating to Article 22.30.08, and that the motion should recognize when it is voted 
upon, that the written resolution is the one moved.   
 

WHEREAS, it is recognized that there are some uses which, because of their 
very nature, have serious objectionable operational characteristics, particularly 
when several of them are concentrated under certain circumstances or when 
one (1) or more of them are located in near proximity to a residential zone, 
thereby having a deleterious effect upon the adjacent areas. Special 
regulation of these uses is necessary to ensure that these adverse effects will 
not contribute to the blighting or downgrading of the surrounding 
neighborhood.  These controls are for the purpose of preventing a 
concentration of these uses within any one (1) area, or to prevent deterioration 
or blighting of a nearby residential neighborhood. These controls do not 
legitimatize activities that are prohibited by other applicable laws.  
 
AND WHEREAS, in regulating adult business uses, it is the purpose of this 
ordinance to promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of 
the City of Troy, and to establish reasonable and uniform regulations to 
prevent the deleterious secondary effects of adult business uses within the 
City of Troy. The provisions of this ordinance have neither the purpose nor 
effect of imposing a limitation or restriction on the content or reasonable 
access to any communicative materials, including sexually oriented materials. 
Similarly, it is neither the intent nor effect of this ordinance to restrict or deny 
access by adults to sexually oriented materials protected by the First 
Amendment, or to deny access by the distributors and exhibitors of sexually 
oriented entertainment to their intended market. Neither is it the intent nor 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

effect of this ordinance to condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene 
material.  
 
AND WHEREAS, based on evidence of the adverse secondary effects of adult 
business uses presented in reports made available to the Planning 
Commission, and on findings incorporated in the cases of City of Renton v. 
Playtime Theatres, Inc., 475 U.S. 41 (1986), Young v. American Mini 
Theatres, 426 U.S. 50 (1976), and other cases; and reports of secondary 
effects occurring in and around adult business uses, including, but not limited 
to, Tucson AZ, Garden Grove CA, Ellicottville NY, New York NY, Times 
Square (New York City) NY, Oklahoma City OK, Cleburne TX, Dallas TX, 
Houston TX, Newport News VI, and St. Croix County WI, the Planning 
Commission finds that adult business uses as a category of establishments 
are correlated with harmful secondary effects, and that the foregoing reports 
are reasonably believed to be relevant to the problems that the City of Troy is 
seeking to abate and prevent in the future. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends to the City Council that Articles IV DEFINITIONS and XXII B-3 
GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, pertaining to permitting Adult Business 
Uses subject to Special Use Approval in the B-3 District, be approved as 
printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning 
Commission Public Hearing Draft.  

 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski, Wright 
No: Kerwin, Vleck 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he is in agreement with the motion with the exception that he 
would like to see a distance of 600 feet from a church, school, childcare facility, 
public park or any residential zoning district, or any parcel used for residential 
purposes. 
 

 



TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: July 2, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: In re Collins and Aikman Corporation, et al.  
 

 
 
 

 The City of Troy has recently received a complaint for an adversary proceeding in the 
continuing Collins and Aikman Chapter 11 bankruptcy case.  According to the allegations 
contained in this complaint, Collins and Aikman is seeking to have the 2004 and 2005 
property taxes (totaling $201,997.83), declared as unsecured liens.  Since the taxes have 
already been paid, it is possible that this adversary proceeding was filed in error, since the 
same petition was filed against other Michigan municipalities.  We have asked for an 
immediate dismissal of the case, and the attorneys representing Collins and Aikman are 
considering our request.  In the meantime, our response to the complaint is due on or before 
July 16, 2007.  In the event that Collins and Aikman does not voluntarily dismiss this case 
against the City, we would request permission to join in a coordinated defense with other 
Michigan municipalities, who have hired Sandra Hamilton (Nantz, Litowich, Smith, Girard and 
Hamilton, P.C.) to represent their interest.  Ms. Hamilton is a very respected attorney who 
represents other municipalities in the bankruptcy courts.  Although the cost of this 
coordinated defense is unlikely to exceed $10,000, litigation is sometimes unpredictable.  
Therefore, we have proposed a resolution hiring Sandra Hamilton for your consideration.   
 
 If you have any questions, please let us know.  

campbellld
Text Box
F-07





       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 9, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
G-1 No Announcements of Public Hearing  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
July 2, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Request for Street Name Change 
    Daley Street south of Big Beaver to Behr Drive 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 We have received a request from Behr America, Inc. to change the name of that portion of Daley 

Street located south of Big Beaver Road to Behr Drive.  The street naming committee reviewed 
this issue and agrees that the industrial portion of the street south of Big Beaver should have a 
different name than the residential portion of the street located north of Big Beaver.  However, 
choosing to name the street after a company located on that street when they are not the only 
owner/tenant on the street would be without precedent in the City of Troy.  While there is no 
objection from the street naming committee based upon a conflict with existing street names there 
is also some concern that there may be some confusion with using the non-traditional spelling of 
Behr versus Bear.  Although this item does not require a public hearing on the matter we did send 
out letters to all the owners/tenants on the street to notify them of the request and gather their 
input.  The letter is attached for your reference.  This item will appear on your agenda for the July 
23, 2007 meeting. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The owners and occupants on the street will have the expense of changing addresses with their 

suppliers and customers and the cost of new stationary and letterhead. 
 The city will have the cost of staff time to change all the records on the properties to reflect the 

new street name. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Under the Provisions of the Land Division Act (P.A. 288 of 1967 as amended, MCL 560.256) and 

Chapter 2 of the Troy City Code, City Council has the authority to change the name of a platted 
public street. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



Policy Considerations: 
 
 Wherever possible we try to avoid non-continuous segments of streets with the same name. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council can deny the request. 
 City Council can approve the name change to Behr Drive. 
 City Council can approve a name change to some other name.  

 







June 14, 2007 
 
«Contact_Name» 
«Owner_Name» 
«Owner_Address» 
«Owner_City», «Owner_State» «Owner_Zip» 
 
Re: «Street_Number» «Street_Name» 
 
Dear Daley St Property Owner/Tenant: 
 
The City of Troy has received a request from a neighbor of yours, Behr 
America, to change the name of the portion of Daley Street located south 
of Big Beaver Road.  Their request is to rename the street to Behr Drive.  
In general, staff is in favor of renaming the southern portion of the street 
since that would end the possible confusion with the residential portion 
that is located north of Big Beaver Road.  However, it would be unusual 
for the City to name a street after a particular adjacent property owner 
when they are not the only business addressed on that street. 
 
This item will be forwarded to the Troy City Council at their July 23, 2007 
meeting.  We are interested in your comments on this matter so that we 
can forward them to City Council at the same time.  Please feel free to 
send any comments to me by July 13, 2007, so that I can include them 
with the request. 
 
Should City Council decide to change the street name, that action would 
include an “effective date” approximately 90 days out so that change of 
address notices could be accomplished before the change would take 
effect. 
 
Please feel free to contact me at 248-680-7229 if you have any questions 
regarding this matter. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
Mark Stimac, R.A., C.B.O. 
Director of Building and Zoning 
 



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 9, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: 
 
H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-01



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 9, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-01



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final  July 25, 2005 
 
A meeting of the Troy Charter Revision Committee was held Monday, July 25, 2005, at 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Chairman Bliss called the Meeting to order at 3:00 
PM. 

 
Roll Call:  PRESENT: Daniel H. Bliss, Jerry E. Bloom, Robert Noce, Cynthia A. 

Wilsher 
 ABSENT: Lillian Barno, Shirley Kanoza, Mark R. Solomon 

ALSO PRESENT: City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Clerk Tonni 
Bartholomew, and Deputy Clerk Barbara Holmes 

 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Members Barno, Kanoza and Solomon 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-018 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Bloom 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Barno, Kanoza and Solomon absence at the meeting of the 
Charter Revision Committee meeting of July 25, 2005 be EXCUSED.  
 
Yes: Bliss, Bloom, Noce, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Monday, June 20, 2005 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-019 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Bloom 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Minutes of Monday, June 20, 2005 are 
hereby APPROVED as presented. 
 
Yes: Bloom, Noce, Wilsher, Bliss 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS: 
 
a) Vote on Proposal #10 (86 words) 

Section 4.2.5 – Study Sessions 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-020 
Moved by Bloom 
Seconded by Noce 

-1- 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final  July 25, 2005 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #10 to read as follows: 
 

Shall Section 4.2.5,Study Meetings, be created to provide for Study meetings of 
Council with the meetings to be called by the Clerk on the written request of the 
Mayor, or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written 
notice to each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual place of 
residence; but a study meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of the 
Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing? 
 

Yes: Bloom, Noce, Wilsher, Bliss 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) Vote on Proposal #11 (27 words) 

Section 4.3.5 – Business at Study Sessions 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-021 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Bloom 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #11 to read as follows: 
 

Shall Section 4.3.5, Business at Study Meetings, be created to limit the business 
transacted at any Study meeting of the Council to no action taken? 

 
Yes: Noce, Wilsher, Bliss, Bloom 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
c) Vote on Proposal #12 (70 words) 

Section 5.13 – Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinance to 
Electors 

 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-022 
Moved by Noce 
Seconded by Bliss 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #12 to read as follows: 
 

-2- 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final  July 25, 2005 
 

Shall Section 5.13, Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinance to Electors, 
be amended to implement election consolidation revisions to Michigan Election Law, 
by providing for the scheduling of the election in accordance with State Election Law 
and striking “within sixty days from such date of presentation for the submission of 
the initiative proposal” with the submittal to be made by an affirmative vote of the 
Council members elect? 
 

Yes: Wilsher, Bliss, Bloom, Noce 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
d) Vote on Proposal #13 (35 words) 

Section 5.13.5 – Submission of Council Initiated Advisory Ballot Questions to 
Electors 

 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-023 
Moved by Bloom 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #13 to read as follows: 
 

Shall Section 5.13.5, Submission of Council Initiated Advisory Ballot Questions to 
Electors, be created to provide a mechanism for the City Council to place 
nonbinding, legislative advisory ballot questions on the Regular City Election Ballot, 
by an affirmative majority vote of members elect? 
 

Yes: Bliss, Bloom, Noce, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
e) Vote on Proposal #14 (41 words) 

Section 12.3 – Restriction on Powers to Lease Property 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-024 
Moved by Bloom 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby SUPPORTS the proposed 
language for Recommended Charter Revision Proposal #14 to read as follows: 
 

Shall Section 12.3, Restriction on Powers to Lease Property, be amended to include 
long term use agreements as an additional type of ownership that is subject to the 

-3- 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final  July 25, 2005 
 

City’s same restriction on powers to lease property procedure for renting or leasing 
of public property? 
 

Yes: Bloom, Noce, Wilsher, Bliss 
No: None 
Absent: Barno, Kanoza, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Make Recommendation to City Council 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-025 
Moved by Wilsher 
Seconded by Noce 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS that Troy City 
Council authorize City Staff to prepare ballot language for the November 8, 2005 Election 
to include explanation of Charter Amendments for those sections that are proposed for 
amendment due to the implementation of Election Consolidation under State Statute. 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: None Present 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 3:27 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Daniel H. Bliss, Chair  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

-4- 



RETIREE HEALTH CARE BENEFITS PLAN & TRUST MINUTES –Final March 14, 2007 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, March 14, 2007, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:50 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Nancy Bowren 
 Mark Calice 
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 Martin F. Howrylak 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 
 Phillip L. Nelson 
  
 
   
MINUTES
 
Resolution # RH – 2007 – 3 - 001 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Geise  
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the December 13, 2006 meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS  - ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE - CHAIR
 
Resolution # RH – 2007 – 03 - 002 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That Tom Houghton serve as Chair and Mark Calice serve as Vice – Chair. 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
 
 
 
The next meeting is June 13, 2007 at 1:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 12:55 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



RETIREE HEALTH CARE BENEFITS PLAN & TRUST MINUTES –Final March 14, 2007 
 
 

 2

 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Houghton, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust\2007\3-14-07 Minutes_Final.doc 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        May 3, 2007 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
May 3, 2007 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member Jo Rhoads, Member  
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member   David Ogg, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member Betty Coven, Member  
 Frank Shier, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Absent: None    
   
Visitors:  None 
 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2007-5-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads  
Seconded by Pauline Noce  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of April 5, 2007 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  9       
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
None 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that 31 people are signed up for the “learn to 
play” sessions and 11 are registered for the leagues.   League information will appear in the 
summer issue of Troy Today which is mailed in mid-May.  It is anticipated that the lines will be 
painted on the shuffleboard courts early next week.  A ribbon cutting ceremony is scheduled 
for Tuesday, May 15 at 12:30 p.m.   
 
Lunch Visits:  No report.  
 
AEDs:  Bud Black asked if Carla had anything to report and how long they should wait to hear 
from Carol Anderson.  Carla reported that Carol was working on it and would respond soon. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        May 3, 2007 

2 

New Business 
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was just one suggestion about retaining exercise 
instructor Ilene Hill.  She will not be teaching here after all as she has a contract with an 
exercise company that prohibits it. 
 
Handicap Parking:  James Berar reported that all handicap parking spaces were taken and 
he needs to park close to the building.  Mr Berar says he did not say anything about 
handicap parking.  There was discussion about changing the meeting time, but the time was 
already changed once for this reason.  The Committee voted to put a recommendation in 
writing to Carol Anderson to add four handicap parking spaces at the east entrance just north 
of the entranceway and also to get a third scooter for the building that would be kept by this 
entranceway.  Bud Black will write the memo. 
 
Hospitality Committee:  Betty Cover reported that five people attended the last meeting and 
a Cinco de Mayo celebration is planned for May 8 with music, food and decorations.  The 
Committee is seeking donations from businesses to fund this event.        
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  Merrill Dixon reported that the budget was discussed. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that the annual senior volunteer banquet was held on April 
19 and 150 attended.  Twenty-one AARP trained volunteers prepared 418 tax returns for low-
income Troy residents this year.  There is no charge for the service.  SHARP has had 81 
requests for service.  This is an average of almost six requests per week.  The bi-annual visit 
from the paper shredder drew 140 participants. 
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that things are going well.    
 
OLHSA:  No report 
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they are preparing for 
their June breakfast meeting with the legislatures.   
 
Comments 
 
Frank Shier commented that he felt that the handicap parking discussion was too long.  He 
also announced the upcoming Heart of the Hills Players show May 17-19. 
 
Pauline Noce reported that the Supper Club had a very nice dinner. 
 
Bud Black commented that he hoped JoAnn Thompson and Merrill Dixon could hold the 
ribbon for the bocce/shuffleboard ribbon cutting ceremony. 
 
JoAnn Thompson reported that the supper club is going well with 14 members and there has 
been interest shown in forming an Eat Out Club.   
 
James Berar commented that everyone should get involved with the city budget process. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        May 3, 2007 

3 

 
Betty Cover reported that the Cross Train Your Brain program is going well. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:35 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final May 9, 2007 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, May 9, 2007, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:15 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT:  Nancy Bowren 
     Mark Calice 
     Michael Geise 
     Thomas Houghton, Chair 
     Martin Howrylak 
     John M. Lamerato 
     William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 
 
TRUSTEES ABSENT:  Phillip L. Nelson 
 
ALSO PRESENT:   John Grant, UBS      
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2007 – 05 - 18  
Moved by Lamerato    
Seconded by Bowren 
 
RESOLVED, That Phillip Nelson be excused. 
 
Yeas:  All 6 
Absent: Nelson 
 
   
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2007 – 05 - 19  
Moved by Houghton    
Seconded by Lamerato 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the April 11, 2007 meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All  6 
Absent: Nelson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final May 9, 2007 
 
 

 2

OTHER BUSINESS – DECEMBER 31, 2006 PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
John Grant, UBS, reviewed with the board the December 31, 2006 investment 
performance report. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – “RETIREE CONNECTION” 
 
The board reviewed and concurred with the content and the idea of having the “Retiree 
Connection” added to the city’s web site. 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2007 – 05 - 20 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board sell the following investments: 
 
Sell: Biomet Inc. 
 
Yeas:  All 6 
Absent: Nelson 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
 
The next meeting is June 13, 2007 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:05 p.m.  
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Thomas Houghton, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2007\5-09-07 Minutes_Final.doc 



 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD—FINAL MAY 10, 2007 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday, May 10, 2007 in 
the Office of the Library Director.  Lynne Gregory, Chairman, called the meeting to order 
at 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Heather Eisenbacher 
 Kul B. Gauri 
 Lynne Gregory 
 Nancy Wheeler 
 Audre Zembrzuski 
 
 Arthi Krishna, Student Representative 
 
 Phillip Kwik, Interim Library Director 
 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
 
REVIEW OF MINUTES FROM LAST BOARD MEETING 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-05-01 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the April 12, 2007, meeting be approved as 
presented. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
REVIEW OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-05-02 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, that the Agenda be approved. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no Postponed items. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD—FINAL MAY 10, 2007 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
The Board elected its officers for the upcoming year. 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-05-03 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, that nominations for Library Advisory Board officers be opened. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Wheeler nominated Gauri for Chair. 
Eisenbacher nominated Zembrzuski for Vice Chair. 
Gregory nominated Wheeler for Secretary. 
 
All accepted the nominations. Nominations were closed. 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-05-04 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, that the slate of officers nominated be elected. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
There was a discussion, continued from the April meeting, regarding the Library facility 
and possible expansion plans. 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-05-05 
Moved by Gauri 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, that the Library Advisory Board concurs with the City Manager’s 
recommendation to hire a consultant to further study the various options 
regarding Library expansion, some of which are laid out in the City Council 
Action Report of 3/12/2007, subject:  Library Issues.  The Library Advisory Board 
concurs with the Lifetime Learning Committee of the Troy Futures Report 
recommending replacing or enlarging the Troy Public Library.  The Library 
Advisory Board supports the exploratory efforts of the Friends of the Troy Public 
Library in regards to replacing or enlarging the Troy Public Library.  The Library 
Advisory Board acknowledges and agrees with library patrons who have stated, 
through Comment Cards and the Patron Satisfaction Survey conducted in March 

 2



 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD—FINAL MAY 10, 2007 
 
2007, the need for expanded space in order to meet the public demand for 
services. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report 
The City has hired a new Library Director, Cathy Russ. Russ began her career as a 
Troy Library page in 1991. Since then, she has served as Circulation Head, Bloomfield 
Township Public Library; Director, Center Line Public Library; Assistant Director, 
Macomb County Library; and Director, Chelsea District Library. Russ wrote, “Being 
director of TPL is honestly a dream come true.” Her start date is June 4, 2007. 
 
The Library has purchased three pieces of Adaptive Technology – a reader, a 
magnifying machine, and special software – which service patrons who are visually or 
hearing impaired. This equipment is housed in the Technology Center. Board members 
expressed an interest is having a demonstration at a future meeting. 
 
The Library will join the statewide MelCat system at the end of May or early June. This 
will give Library patrons access to materials from other libraries across the state. MelCat 
is a project of the Library of Michigan. 
 
Board Member Comments 
Gregory commented on the various library and school district millages held across 
Southeastern Michigan on Tuesday, May 8. 
 
Zembrzuski expressed her frustration about VHS tapes being returned to the Library 
without being rewound. There was a brief discussion on possible solutions to this issue. 
 
The Board members discussed membership in, and the Annual Dinner of, the Public 
Library Trustee Association of Oakland County. 
 
Student Representative Comments 
None. 
 
Suburban Library Cooperative 
The Roseville Library is eliminating some staff computers for budgetary reasons. 
 
The SLC is upgrading one of its computers with a Dell. 
 
Tammy Turgeon, Director of the Suburban Library Cooperative, has resigned to take 
the position as director of the Sterling Heights Public Library. Kristen Valyi-Hax has 
been named the interim director. The position will be posted. 
 
The SLC discussed the ProMed delivery service.  

 3



 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD—FINAL MAY 10, 2007 
 
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library 
Mary Kerwin of the Friends of the Troy Public Library invited all Board members and 
friends to the Annual Meeting of the Friends, Tuesday, May 15. At the meeting, the 
Friends will show their slideshow, “The Need for a Library of Tomorrow, Today.” 
 
Kerwin also shared her thoughts about the May library millages in Southeastern 
Michigan. She suggested that in order for such a millage to pass in these difficult 
economic times, the community/voters need to see a “compelling need” for such a 
project. She also said that it helps to have a united Board and Council in selling such a 
millage to the voters. 
 
Gifts 
None. 
 
Informational Items 
May TPL Calendar 
 
Visitors’ Comments 
24 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
There was no public participation. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-05-06 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, that the Board meeting be adjourned. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:38 P.M. 
 

 
_____________________________________ 
Lynne Gregory 
Chairman 
 
 
[Phillip Kwik] 
Recording Secretary 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                   MAY 15, 2007 

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order on Tuesday, May 15, 2007 at 7:30 P.M., in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Marcia Gies 
   Matthew Kovacs (Arrived at 7:50 P.M.) 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ABSENT:  Glenn Clark 
   Christopher Fejes 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Fejes from this meeting as he is out of town. 
 
Yeas:  4 –Gies, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
Absent: 2 – Clark, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. FEJES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF APRIL 17, 2007 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of April 17, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Gies, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
Absent: 2 – Kovacs, Clark  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve Item #3 and #4 in accordance with the suggested resolutions 
printed in the Agenda Explanation. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                   MAY 15, 2007 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 2 – Kovacs, Clark  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEM #3 AND #4 FOR A PERIOD OF THREE (3)-YEARS 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 - RENEWAL REQUESTED.  REVEREND SIMION TIMBUC, BETHESDA 
ROMANIAN PENTECOSTAL CHURCH, 2075 E. LONG LAKE, for relief of the 4’-6” 
high masonry screening wall required along the east side of off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board of the 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall required along the east side of off-street 
parking.  This relief has been granted on a yearly basis since May 1998.  This item last  
appeared before this Board at the meeting of May 2004 and was granted a three-year 
(3) renewal. 
 
MOVED, to grant Reverend Simion Timbuc, 2075 E. Long Lake, a three (3) year 
renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall required along the east side of 
off-street parking. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  REVEREND PAUL STOVER, 2601 E. SQUARE 
LAKE, for renewal of relief to provide a berm in place of the 4’-6” high wall on the west 
side of off-street parking and deletion of the 4’-6” high wall required along off-street 
parking on the north side of the property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board to provide a berm in place of the 4’-6” high wall on the west side of off-street 
parking and deletion of the 4’-6” high wall required along off-street parking on the north 
side of the property.  This relief was originally granted in 1995 based on the fact that the 
property immediately north of the parking lot is wetlands and has substantial growth.  
This item last appeared before this board at the meeting of May 2004 and was granted 
a three (3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no 
complaints or objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Reverend Paul Stover, 2601 E. Square Lake, a three (3) year renewal 
of relief to provide a berm in place of the 4’-6” high wall on the west side of off-street 
parking and deletion of the 4’-6” high wall required along off-street parking on the north 
side of the property. 
 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                   MAY 15, 2007 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  RANDALL A. WHINNERY, 2078 TUSCANY, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of an existing residence that 
will result in a 29’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum 
rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
The petitioner was not present.  The Chairman moved this request to the end of the 
agenda, Item #11, to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  VISION QUEST COUNSELING, 3455 LIVERNOIS 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new office building 
without a 6’ high screening wall along the eastern, approximately 250’ of the site, as 
required by Section 39.70.10.  
 
The petitioner was not present.  The Chairman moved this request to the end of the 
agenda, Item #12, to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JASON BELL OF BEAUMONT SERVICES 
COMPANY, LLC REPRESENTING WILLIAM BEAUMONT HOSPITAL, 44201 
DEQUINDRE, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a pedestrian bridge across 
Dequindre that will go right out to (and over) the front property line along Dequindre with 
the support tower located 18’ from the property line, where Paragraph D of Section 
18.30.04 requires that a main building be located no closer than 200’ to a public street. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a pedestrian bridge across Dequindre Road at 44201 Dequindre.  This hospital facility is 
located within the C-F (Community Facilities) Zoning District.  Paragraph D of Section 
18.30.04 requires that a main building be located no closer than 200’ to a public street.  
The site plan submitted indicates that the enclosed pedestrian bridge will go right out to 
(and over) the front property line along Dequindre and that the support tower will be 
located 18’ from this property line. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked what the distance was of the right of way line on Dequindre Road. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the right of way is 120’ for Dequindre Road. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how far the support for the bridge would be from the actual 
pavement of Dequindre Road. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that it would be approximately 46’ from the edge of the pavement. 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                   MAY 15, 2007 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the petitioner had received approval from the City of Sterling 
Heights and the Oakland Road Commission. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that it was his understanding they had received approval from 
both the City of Sterling Heights and the Oakland County Road Commission.  Mr. 
Stimac also said that City Council has final approval of the final site plan. 
 
Jason Bell of Beaumont Services and Craig McEwen of Harley Ellis Devereaux were 
present.  Mr. Bell said that the fundamental purpose of this bridge is so that staff can 
traverse both facilities.  They are planning to locate outpatient services to the Sterling 
Heights side of the hospital.  This would enable staff to move from one location to 
another without the use of shuttle buses or automobiles. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked where this bridge would connect. 
 
Mr. Bell explained that it would open into an atrium on the Sterling Heights side and 
connect into the second floor of the main entrance of the hospital on the Troy side. 
 
Mr. McEwen said that the bridge does create the ability to go back and forth between 
the two facilities.  The bridge is not to be used so much for parking on one side and 
working on the other, but to enable staff to go back and forth between the two buildings 
without the use of a shuttle bus or automobile..   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if it was going to be strictly a walking bridge or if a moving sidewalk 
would be put into it. 
 
Mr. McEwen said that it is a walking bridge that will be about 14’ wide.  It will also slope 
down slightly to the Sterling Heights side.  Mr. McEwen said that they have received 
approval from the Oakland County Road Commission. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Jason Bell of Beaumont Services Company, LLC representing William 
Beaumont Hospital, 44201 Dequindre, relief of the Ordinance to construct a pedestrian 
bridge across Dequindre that will go right out to (and over) the front property line along 
Dequindre with the support tower located 18’ from the property line, where Paragraph D 
of Section 18.30.04 requires that a main building be located no closer than 200’ to a 
public street. 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                   MAY 15, 2007 

Item #7 – con’t. 
 

• Bridge will increase staff and patient safety. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Wright, Courtney, Gies, Maxwell 
Absent: 2 – Clark, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if it was possible for the Board to combine the next three (3) items at 
the same time since it is one petitioner. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the items could be presented as one, but that a separate motion 
and vote would be required for each address as each variance is different. 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  SPALDING DEDECKER AND NOWAK & FRAUS, 
ON BEHALF OF THE OWNERS DAVID & JANE BISHOP, 1147 GARWOOD, for relief 
of the Ordinance to maintain a home that was constructed 7.60’ from the east property  
line. 
 
ITEM #9 - VARIANCE REQUEST.  SPALDING DEDECKER AND NOWAK & FRAUS, 
ON BEHALF OF THE OWNER, SUZANNE FARRAN, 1161 GARWOOD, for relief of 
the Ordinance to maintain a home that was constructed 7.39’ from the east property 
line. 
 
ITEM #10 - VARIANCE REQUEST.  SPALDING DEDECKER AND NOWAK & 
FRAUS, ON BEHALF OF THE OWNERS, MARK & KATHLEEN PETERSON, 1175 
GARWOOD, for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a home constructed 7.30’ from the 
east property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to maintain 
homes that were constructed 7.60, 7.39 & 7.30’, respectively, from the east property 
line.  Section 30.10.04 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum 10’ side yard 
setback in the R-1C Zoning District.  Updated surveys have been submitted showing 
this existing home is only 7.30’ from the east property line and not in compliance with 
the minimum side yard setback. 
 
Mr. Stimac further explained that at the time the lots are platted, lot irons are placed at 
each corner of the lot.  Lot #6, #7 and #8 were platted showing 80’ in width.  Rather 
than the lot stakes placed in the correct locations, the lots were staked approximately 
two and one-half (2 ½’) to east of where they should have been placed. 
 
The “As-Built” surveys submitted to the Building Department indicated that each home 
was constructed on the lot indicating a 10’ side yard setback.  It has since been 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                   MAY 15, 2007 

ITEMS #8, #9 & #10 – con’t. 
 
determined that these “As-Built” surveys were in error as they were based on the 
incorrect placement of the lot irons.  
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the Building Department was sure these lots were the only lots 
that were incorrect. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the home on the lot to the east was placed correctly as it was 
surveyed from the other end of this subdivision. 
 
Mr. David Miller from Nowak & Fraus and Mr. George Platz of Spalding DeDecker were 
present.  Mr. Miller stated since they discovered this error they have gone back and 
surveyed each additional lot in the subdivision and made sure that they were positioned 
correctly.  Mr. Miller said that the only lots involved are the lots before the Board tonight. 
Mr. Miller also stated that the homeowners were not aware that this was a problem and 
if these variances are granted, they will set out new lot irons indicating the correct 
dimensions of each lot. 
 
In order, to have these lots conform part of each house would have to be removed and 
this would be an extreme difficulty. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.   
 
Mr. Chan Chung of 1189 Garwood was present.  Mr. Chung said that his home is the lot 
right next to these lots.  Mr. Chung said that he feels he is a victim because he does not 
think there is enough room between his home and the home next door.  Mr. Chung also 
wanted to know how this happened and how to fix the system so that it would not 
happen again. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that it was simply an unintentional error. 
 
No one else wished to speak and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals for each request.  There are no written objections. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that obviously this was not a mistake on the homeowners’ parts and 
he does not feel that they should have to be penalized for this mistake. 
 
ITEM #8 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                   MAY 15, 2007 

ITEM #8 
 
MOVED, to grant Spalding DeDecker and Nowak & Fraus, on behalf of the owners, 
David and Jane Bishop, 1147 Garwood, for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a home 
that was constructed 7.60’ from the east property line where a 10’ minimum side yard 
setback is required by Section 30.10.04. 
 

• Error in size of side yard setbacks was an honest mistake. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Literal enforcement does preclude full enjoyment of the property and 

conformance would be unnecessarily burdensome.  
• A 20’ total side yard setback must be maintained. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #9 
 
Motion by Kovacs. 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Spalding DeDecker and Nowak & Fraus, on behalf of the owner, 
Suzanne Farran, 1161 Garwood, relief of the Ordinance to maintain a home that was 
constructed 7.39’ from the east property line where a 10’ minimum side yard setback is 
required by Section 30.10.04. 
 

• Error in size of side yard setbacks was an honest mistake. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Literal enforcement does preclude full enjoyment of the property and 

conformance would be unnecessarily burdensome.  
• A 20’ total side yard setback must be maintained. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney 
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                   MAY 15, 2007 

ITEM #10 
 
MOVED, to grant Spalding DeDecker and Nowak & Fraus, on behalf of the owners, 
Mark & Kathleen Peterson, 1175 Garwood, relief of the Ordinance to maintain a home 
constructed 7.30’ from the east property line where a 10’ minimum side yard setback is 
required by Section 30.10.04. 
 

• Error in size of side yard setbacks was an honest mistake. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Literal enforcement does preclude full enjoyment of the property and 

conformance would be unnecessarily burdensome.  
• A total of a 20’ total side yard setback must be maintained. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #11 (#5) - VARIANCE REQUEST.  RANDALL A. WHINNERY, 2078 TUSCANY, 
for relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of an existing residence 
that will result in a 29’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ 
minimum rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
The petitioner was not present.  The Chairman moved this request to the end of the 
agenda, Item #11 to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that this item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of 
April 17, 2007 and was postponed to allow the petitioners to look into other possibilities.  
Mr. Stimac did meet with the homeowners, but as of today, the Building Department has 
not received any revised plans or a request to cancel this request. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Randall A. Whinnery, 2078 Tuscany, for relief of 
the Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of an existing residence that will 
result in a 29’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear 
yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts until the meeting of June 19, 2007. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                   MAY 15, 2007 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF JUNE 19, 2007 
CARRIED. 
 
ITEM #12 (ITEM #6) – VARIANCE REQUEST.  VISION QUEST COUNSELING, 3455 
LIVERNOIS (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new 
office building without a 6’ high screening wall along the eastern, approximately 250’ of 
the site, as required by Section 39.70.10.  
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new office building.  This property has been rezoned to O-1 (Low-Rise Office) Zoning 
District.  Section 39.70.10 requires that a 6’ high masonry screen wall be provided 
between this property and the R-1B zoned property to the north.  The site plan 
submitted does not indicate the wall for the eastern, approximately 250’ of the site. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if a variance could be granted for this property with a time constraint. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that because it is a screening wall, the Board has the authority to grant 
a variance for one-year initially and then if all conditions are met, the Board would have 
the ability to renew the variance for a period up to three (3) years. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that it appears this parcel sits quite a bit higher than the residential 
property. 
 
Mr. Stimac indicated that it is in fact, elevated above Livernois. Mr. Stimac said that he 
did not if was elevated as much above the subdivision.  Right now he does not know 
how the building will mirror conditions on the land.  
 
Mr. Brandon Kaufman of Fenn & Associates, was present.  Mr. Kaufman stated that 
they want to construct a very nice office building.  The site actually goes up and then 
goes back down and there is a 7’ difference in this slope.  The homeowners have asked 
that they construct the building as low as possible.  Right now they are planning to 
remove a large amount of dirt to make the building as unobtrusive as possible.  They do 
plan to make the site symmetrical with the back yards of the homeowners.  There is a 
wall and a significant amount of natural screening.   
 
Mr. Kaufman said that they have worked very hard with the homeowners and they do 
not want a wall.  The homeowners have asked to leave as much natural vegetation as 
possible.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                   MAY 15, 2007 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by 
 
MOVED, to grant Vision Quest Counseling, 3455 Livernois, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new office building without a 6’ high screening wall along the eastern, 
approximately 250’ of the north property line where it abuts residentially zoned property, 
as required by section 39.70.10 for a period of one-year. 
 

• Not contrary to public interest. 
• Absent a variance, significant natural features will be affected. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE FOR A PERIOD OF ONE-YEAR CARRIED 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Clark from tonight’s meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. CLARK CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:15 P.M. 
 
 
              
     Mark Maxwell, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
     Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 10



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 22, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on May 22, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Wayne Wright 
Mary Kerwin 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski (arrived 7:40 p.m.) 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-092 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
No: None 
Absent: Troshynski (arrived 7:40 p.m.), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-093 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
No: None 
Absent: Troshynski (arrived 7:40 p.m.), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 22, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES – May 1, 2007 Regular Meeting 
 
Ms. Kerwin requested that the following comment be incorporated in the last 
paragraph on page 6:  “It is recognized that adult business uses have a deleterious 
effect on surrounding properties.” 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-094 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the May 1, 2007 Regular meeting minutes as revised.   
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
No: None 
Abstain: Littman 
Absent: Troshynski (arrived 7:40 p.m.), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Chair Schultz reported Mr. Wright’s account of the May 15, 2007 Board of Zoning 
Appeals (BZA) meeting, as follows:   
• Approved variance for proposed William Beaumont Hospital pedestrian bridge. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the May 16, 2007 Downtown Development Authority 
(DDA) meeting.   
• Approved timeline for implementation of Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
• Approved Development Plan #6.  Recommend to City Council [June 4, 2007 

meeting].  
 
A brief discussion followed. 
 
[Ms. Troshynski arrived at 7:40 p.m.] 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the following City Council action items. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 22, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

• Conditional Rezoning CR-001 – Troy Medical Office Building, West Side of 
Livernois, North of Big Beaver, Section 21 – R-1B to O-1 – Approved. 

• Rezoning Application Z 726 – 190 East Maple, South side of Maple, East of 
Livernois [Michigan Chandelier], Section 34 – B-2 to M-1 – Approved. 

• Final Stone Haven Park Site Condominium Review – South of Wattles, West of 
Crooks, Section 20 – R-1B – Approved. 

• Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 229) – Article XXVIII, Automobile 
Rental Establishments in the M-1 Light Industrial District – Approved. 

• Site Plan 909 – Consent Judgment Amendment for Property at Northwest 
Corner of Crooks and Big Beaver Road, Starbucks Coffee – Approved. 

• Conditional Rezoning 002 – Troy Grand Villas, West Side of Rochester Road, 
North of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to R-1T – Approved.   

• Rezoning Application (Z 625-B) – Southwest Corner of Square Lake and Niles, 
Section 9 – R-2 to O-1 – No action. 

 
Mr. Savidant reported on Smart Growth Readiness Assessment Tool (SGRAT).  A 
public input meeting is scheduled on June 21, 2007 at the Management Education 
Center (MEC) in Troy.  
 
Mr. Savidant addressed agenda items on the June 5, 2007 Special/Study meeting: 
• Big Beaver Road District Overlay [Carlisle/Wortman representatives]. 
• ULI Project [University of Michigan representatives]. 
 
Briefly discussed were: 
• Status of Rezoning Request Z 725, South Side of Wattles, East of Livernois, 

from R-1C to O-1. 
• Milestones of draft Master Plan. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SU 328) – Existing Clark Station, Northeast corner of Maple 
and Livernois, Section 27, Zoned H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the revisions that were made to the site plan.  He reported 
the Planning Department recommends approval of the site plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner, Jason Longhurst of Nowak & Fraus, 1310 N. Stephenson Highway, 
Royal Oak, was present.  Mr. Longhurst addressed the site plan modifications in 
relation to the concerns expressed by members at the May 1, 2007 Regular 
meeting. 
 
Chester Stempien, project architect, 29895 Greenfield Road, Southfield, addressed 
the building material and screen wall.   
 
Mr. Strat asked if a study was done on the location of the pumps.  He addressed 
access to the pumps and internal congestion.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 22, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Stempien addressed the underground tanks in relation to the building.  He noted 
the size of the lot is very limited for reconfiguration.  
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-095 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that the proposed 
Clark Station improvements, located on the northeast corner of Maple and Livernois, 
located in Section 27, on approximately 15,457 square feet in area, within the H-S 
zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Tagle, Troshynski 
No: Strat, Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck cited safety concerns with the internal traffic circulation and location of the 
pumps.   
 
Mr. Strat agreed a dangerous situation exists for internal traffic because of the 
pump locations and screen wall.  
 
Chair Schultz agreed with the comments relating to traffic circulation and the screen 
wall, but said it was time to move the site plan along.   
 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 

9. PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT – Southwest corner of Maple and Combermere, 
Section 34 – M-1 
 
Mr. Savidant provided an overview of the subject site and the intent of the owner.   
 
Robert Campbell of 386 E. Maple, Troy, was present.  Mr. Campbell provided a 
history of the subject property and indicated his intent to improve the site.  He said 
the existing building and house would most likely be demolished and the site 
developed as a non-industrial use; i.e., office, bank, medical office.   
 
Discussion followed.  The members concurred: 
• That the site should be developed as a whole; not piecemeal. 
• That timing the development to coincide with the new Master Plan would be 

advantageous to both the City and the petitioner.  
• That submission of a conditional rezoning application would be a viable 

alternative. 
 
Mr. Savidant indicated the Planning Department would be happy to discuss the 
conditional rezoning process with the petitioner. 
 
Chair Schultz welcomed the petitioner to discuss the matter at a future study 
meeting.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 22, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 231) – Restaurants in the M-1 
Light Industrial District 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial District. 
 
Discussion followed. 
 
It was the consensus of the members that locations of restaurants in the M-1 district 
should not be restricted to major thoroughfares.  It was also agreed to incorporate 
text that would require access through the restaurant for outside seating areas.   
 
A June public hearing will be scheduled. 
 
 

11. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 230) – Freestanding tower 
structures and antennas in parks and on school property 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
wireless communication towers on school property and City parks.  The Legal 
Department determined that it is within the City’s purview to regulate freestanding 
towers on school property.  
 
Ms. Lancaster will research if the law has changed on whether schools are required 
to go before the City for site plan approval.   
 
It was agreed to stipulate the required setback for towers from residential to two (2) 
times the height of the structure.  
 
 

12. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking of 
Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
commercial vehicles.   
 
Discussion followed. 
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Schultz requested a recess at 9:10 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:15 p.m. 

___________ 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 22, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

By a straw vote, the following was agreed on. 
 
Commercial Vehicle Definition:   
• Any vehicle over 10,000 gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) and used for 

commercial purposes. 
• Any vehicle required by law to have commercial driving license (CDL) and 

required to display identification [company name and phone number]. 
• Any vehicle containing advertising. 
 
Restrictions:   
• Vehicle must be stored within a garage, 12 months out of the year. 
• Vehicle must be permanently screened within the required building setbacks 

applicable to zoning district. 
• Any vehicle requiring a commercial driving license [CDL plate] is prohibited. 
• Stipulate signage requirements if not covered by vehicle advertising. 
• Vehicle must be owned or operated by resident who resides in home where 

vehicle is stored. 
• More than one vehicle is allowed per household as long as all restrictions are 

met.  
• Recreational vehicles apply.  
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

14. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
General comments were made on the productivity of tonight’s meeting.   
 
Mr. Tagle addressed the report submitted by Mr. Littman on the American Planning 
Association (APA) conference.  He also talked about the need to “wordsmith” the 
Zoning Ordinance.  
 
There was general discussion on the procedure to “wordsmith” the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Ms. Kerwin shared comments on the Michigan Association of Planning (MAP) Risk 
Management seminar she attended.  She also addressed public art in relation to the 
Master Plan and Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Mr. Littman offered to distribute material he received at the APA conference.   
 
There was general discussion on the Hooters Restaurant matter.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 22, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:55 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\05-22-07 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL MAY 22, 2007 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Advisory Committee was held 
Tuesday, May 22, 2007 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to 
order at 7:04 pm. 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
 

Members Present:  Alison Miller 
    Jeff Stewart 
    Mike Gonda 
    Bob Berk 
    Jim Hattan 
    Bob Preston 
    Jeff Super 
    Dan O’Brien 

 
Members Absent:  Sandy Macknis 
 
City Staff Present:  Cindy Stewart 

Bob  Matlick 
    Gerry Scherlinck 
    Jeff Biegler 
 

Guests:   Doris Schuchter 
    Mimi Ashamalla 
    Diana McKay 
 
 

 
Excuse Members Absent 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-05-23 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Jeff Stewart 
 
Resolved, that Sandy Macknis is excused. 

      MOTION CARRIED 
 

Additions/Deletions to Agenda 
 

None 
Budget – June meeting  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL MAY 22, 2007 

 
Approval of Minutes 

 
RESOLUTION #TD-05-24 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Jeff Stewart 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of April 24, 2007 are approved as submitted. 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

New Business 
 

None 
 
Old Business 
 
a. Contract Updates 
 
Fireworks permit in and turned over to Assistant Chief Dave Roberts 
 
Question from 2006 line item account 7942 for $7350 was from Mad Power for a 
generator and turned in late. 
 
Porta-John Company called Bob Berk, referred to Purchasing, bid going out in 
June.  
 
Electrical - Mike Gonda, Bob Berk and Jeff Biegler will be meeting with Jeff 
Winarski re: Electrical Specs.  
 
Committee Reports: 
Operations (Mike Gonda) – Pepsi will donate product, but less than 2006 -  
50 cases water, 10 cases diet, 10 cases regular & 5 cases Sierra Mist 
 
Nino Salvaggio has approved in-kind product (cheese, fruit, veggie & shrimp 
trays for the trailer). 
 
Entertainment (Jeff Stewart) is all booked except for one spot. Main tent is 
booked (under budget), Outdoor Stage (booked way under budget).  
 
Special Needs taken care of, volunteers committed, cakes donated for theme 
(“Everyone’s Birthday”). 
 
Amusement Rides (Bob Berk) - Vendor contract is up this year. RFQ should be 
done close to Sept/Oct. Jeff Biegler has old specs to compare.  
 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL MAY 22, 2007 

Fireworks (Bob Matlick) - permit info turned into Asst. Chief Dave Roberts.  
 
Police (Gerry Scherlinck) – all set. 
 
Parade (Diana McKay & Doris Schuchter) – Many groups have been contacted 
(School groups, Boys & Girls Club, Troy & Athens Bands).  Many are committing 
to floats.  Parade will start off Oakland County Honor Guard, followed by Service 
men and women, and the Marine Band – salute to military! 
 
Kmart will donate small flags to use along the route. Called Wal-Mart and other 
merchants, hope to get donations, merchandise.  
 
Lincoln Mercury contact working with Diana to play dice game in the park to win 
one year car lease. This will be on site after Parade. 
 
Cub Scouts will hand out raffle tickets to parade goers. Prizes for kids and adults  
 
Prize giveaways at Outdoor Stage from 11 am - 12 pm. Mayor Schilling is trying 
to get Council together on a float.  Dan O’Brien has a contract for a flatbed trailer. 
Alison can help with getting convertibles for Miss Troy winners and Mr. Troy 
(Jaguar and Lincoln-Mercury North Brothers). 
 
Petting Zoo (Bob Preston) - still pursuing info on the Petting Zoo.  Will check 
MFEA, Internet, and a contact Mike has through the Parade Company.  
 
Shuttles (Jeff Super) - Diana McKay requests golf carts to help with the Parade.  
 
Cutest Toddler/Cutest Infant Contest (Alison Miller) - Plans to change ages: 
infant to 1 year and toddler 1 - 3 years.  No photos will be returned by mail. If 
they want them back they can pick them up from the Community Center.  
 
Display will be at the Community Center only (not Library) before being moved to 
Troy Daze. 
 
New Car Show (Alison Miller) - Some dealers (5-6) would still like to be part of 
Troy Daze in some way.  Is there any place we can put them? Mike & Bob will 
work on this.  Also she will need a small tent near this area.  
 
Miss Troy Pageant - Troy Schools turned down Danielle’s request to use Boulan 
School for pageant. Cindy spoke with Tim and he will try to get approval for the 
use.  
 
Sponsors (Cindy Stewart) – National City, Comcast, WOW, ITC Transmission, 
Henry Ford Hospital, Tringali Sanitation.  All packets have gone out.  
 



TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES FINAL MAY 22, 2007 

Publicity – get info on your events to Cindy for press releases and festival 
booklet.  
 
Booths (Bob Berk) - 40% sold 

4 open food booths 
Outdoor booths still open 

 
Jim Hattan - Idea for softball tournament.  Concern that space/logistics will not be 
able to accommodate this, due to rides and Arnold’s trailers. Jim will look into this 
idea for future years or football tournament at Boulan School for middle school 
aged kids.   
 
Public Comment – NONE 
 
Member Comment – NONE 
 

  
Adjourn 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-05-25 
Moved by Jeff Super 
Seconded by Mike Gonda 
 
RESOLVED, that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee meeting of May 22, 2007 is 
adjourned. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:25 pm. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Bob Berk, Co-Chairperson 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 

 
 
 
REMINDER: Next meeting – June 26, 2007 at 7:00 PM 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 5, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on June 5, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mary Kerwin 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark M. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan T. Motzny. Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Pamela L. Valentik, Economic Development Specialist 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Chair Schultz said the agenda was revised to include the Master Plan Update as 
item # 6. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-096 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the revised Agenda. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 5, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PRESENTATION 
 
Pamela L. Valentik, the City of Troy Economic Development Specialist, gave a brief 
introduction and presentation on the focus and role of her position with the City. 
 
 

5. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 351) – Proposed Mitchell’s Ocean Club Restaurant, 
Southwest corner of Big Beaver and Coolidge, Section 30, Zoned O-S-C (Office-
Service-Commercial) District 
 
Messrs. Littman and Schultz disclosed no conflict of interest with the proposed 
development.  Mr. Littman’s daughter works at Mitchell’s Fish Market in Rochester 
Hills.  Chair Schultz was formerly employed by a business that was a tenant of the 
owner of the subject property in another city.  
 
Mr. Miller gave a brief introduction of the application and a history of the parking.  
He said a full report on the Special Use and Site Plan application would be provided 
at the June 12, 2007 Regular meeting at which a public hearing is scheduled.  Mr. 
Miller said the proposed site plan meets all ordinance requirements with the 
exception of parking.  The site is short approximately 350 parking spaces; however, 
this number needs to be confirmed.  Mr. Miller said the item is before the members 
tonight to discuss the relationship of the proposed project with the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study.   
 
The petitioner, Larry Nemer of 26877 Northwestern Hwy, Southfield, was present.  
Mr. Nemer addressed the proposed restaurant location with respect to the office 
complex in terms of tenancy, visibility, signage and access.  He indicated frontage 
off of Coolidge Road would be more beneficial to the office complex.  Mr. Nemer 
said there is an abundance of parking on site, and confirmed that Somerset 
Collection owns the Golfview parcel for overflow parking.   
 
Keith Rogers, consultant for Restaurant Development Advisors, 6162 Birchcrest 
Lane, Commerce, was present.  Mr. Rogers briefly addressed the proposed 
restaurant location in terms of the Coolidge Road frontage and office entranceway.  
He provided a brief introduction to the restaurant operation and various locations 
throughout the country.  Mr. Rogers said valet parking would be provided should the 
restaurant open during lunch hours.  
 
Discussion followed. 
 
The members expressed their preference to locate the restaurant closer to the Big 
Beaver Road frontage, and encouraged its correlation to the Big Beaver Corridor 
Study.   
 
Mr. Vleck indicated he is not prepared to support a reduction of required parking 
spaces should the petitioner go forward with the Coolidge Road frontage. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 5, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Nemer questioned the timeline of the Big Beaver District Overlay.   
 
Chair Schultz replied that would be under discussion in the following agenda items.  
 

 
___________ 

 
Chair Schultz requested a recess at 8:45 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:55 p.m. 

___________ 
 

 
6. CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN UPDATE 

 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., the City’s Planning 
Consultant, gave a progress report on the Master Plan Update and provided a work 
plan timeline.  
 
• Text – 80% complete. 
• Existing land use inventory – Complete. 
• Smart Growth Readiness Assessment Tool (SGRAT) public input workshop – 

June 21. 
• Findings of public input workshop – July. 
• Draft goals and policies – July. 
• Finalize goals and policies – September. 
• Draft Plan for review and comment – October. 
• Revised Draft Plan – November. 
 
Mr. Miller gave an update on the SGRAT invitations and responses received.  
 
Chair Schultz stated the workshop is a City event in which Planning Commission 
members are participants.  He indicated the Planning Commission is not hosting the 
event, nor is the event a part of their meeting schedule. 
 
Mr. Carlisle provided details on the SGRAT workshop and the workshop packets 
that will be provided to participants in advance of the workshop.   
 
 

7. PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Big Beaver Overlay 
District – Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., the City’s Planning 
Consultant, presented a PowerPoint analysis of current zoning code requirements 
in relationship to the goals and strategies identified for specific geographic areas of 
the Big Beaver Corridor and discussed various zoning alternatives.  He asked for 
direction from the members on two form based zoning alternatives for a Corridor 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 5, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Overlay Zone with both Conventional and Form Based Zoning Regulations that is 
either (1) permissive or (2) mandatory. 
 
Discussion followed. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-097 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That for Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 232), the 
Planning Commission go with Alternative #2 with emphasis on making it mandatory; 
that there would be protection for the non-conforming structures already in 
existence; that there would be within this code discretion built into it for flexibility by 
the Planning Commission; and that it also include residential districts.  
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
A brief discussion followed on procedure and means of accomplishment.   
 
 

8. PROPOSAL OVERVIEW – Walkable Urbanism Strategic and Implementation Plan 
 
Ted Wilson of 5038 Kellen Lane, Bloomfield Hills, representative of the Chamber of 
Commerce, introduced three students from the University of Michigan’s Taubman 
College of Architecture and Urban Planning: 

• Ross Davidson 
• Michelle Elder 
• Eric Beckett 

 
Mr. Davidson provided an overview of the Walkable Urbanism Strategic and 
Implementation Plan for the City of Troy.  The focus of the project is a future multi-
modal transit center at the southwest corner of Maple Road and Coolidge Highway. 
 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Ted Wilson of 5038 Kellen Lane, Bloomfield Hills, said the Maple Road Corridor 
Study is at the publishers and should be ready shortly.  He indicated it might be 
appropriate to extend Master Plan workshop invitations to Lawrence Tech 
University participants of the Maple Road Corridor Study.  Mr. Wilson extended an 
invitation to members to attend a Chamber of Commerce/Real Estate Community 
function at LaSalle Bank.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 5, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Motzny said it was an interesting meeting to cover for Sue Lancaster. 
 
Mr. Hutson addressed the discussion on Agenda item # 5.   
 
Mr. Vleck comments on the productivity of tonight’s meeting. 
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed scheduling future meetings to focus on major projects.   
 
Ms. Troshynski said it is okay to think outside of the box because it allows us to get 
on top of the box.   
 
Mr. Miller asked members to email comments on scheduling meetings earlier in the 
evening.  He announced that the PUD application for the Pavilions of Troy was 
received by the Planning Department on June 1.  Mr. Miller addressed City council 
action on the Village of Somerset and Grand Troy Villas.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed Caswell Town Center PUD with respect to what appears to be 
a permanent exit onto Hartwig.   
 
Mr. Miller said he would look into the matter.  
 
Brief comments were made on the length of validity of a BZA variance.   
 
Chair Schultz said he would contact the Planning Department to review alternative 
meeting dates.   
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:50 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\06-05-07 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 5, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on June 5, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mary Kerwin 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark M. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan T. Motzny. Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Pamela L. Valentik, Economic Development Specialist 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Chair Schultz said the agenda was revised to include the Master Plan Update as 
item # 6. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-096 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the revised Agenda. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 5, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PRESENTATION 
 
Pamela L. Valentik, the City of Troy Economic Development Specialist, gave a brief 
introduction and presentation on the focus and role of her position with the City. 
 
 

5. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 351) – Proposed Mitchell’s Ocean Club Restaurant, 
Southwest corner of Big Beaver and Coolidge, Section 30, Zoned O-S-C (Office-
Service-Commercial) District 
 
Messrs. Littman and Schultz disclosed no conflict of interest with the proposed 
development.  Mr. Littman’s daughter works at Mitchell’s Fish Market in Rochester 
Hills.  Chair Schultz was formerly employed by a business that was a tenant of the 
owner of the subject property in another city.  
 
Mr. Miller gave a brief introduction of the application and a history of the parking.  
He said a full report on the Special Use and Site Plan application would be provided 
at the June 12, 2007 Regular meeting at which a public hearing is scheduled.  Mr. 
Miller said the proposed site plan meets all ordinance requirements with the 
exception of parking.  The site is short approximately 350 parking spaces; however, 
this number needs to be confirmed.  Mr. Miller said the item is before the members 
tonight to discuss the relationship of the proposed project with the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study.   
 
The petitioner, Larry Nemer of 26877 Northwestern Hwy, Southfield, was present.  
Mr. Nemer addressed the proposed restaurant location with respect to the office 
complex in terms of tenancy, visibility, signage and access.  He indicated frontage 
off of Coolidge Road would be more beneficial to the office complex.  Mr. Nemer 
said there is an abundance of parking on site, and confirmed that Somerset 
Collection owns the Golfview parcel for overflow parking.   
 
Keith Rogers, consultant for Restaurant Development Advisors, 6162 Birchcrest 
Lane, Commerce, was present.  Mr. Rogers briefly addressed the proposed 
restaurant location in terms of the Coolidge Road frontage and office entranceway.  
He provided a brief introduction to the restaurant operation and various locations 
throughout the country.  Mr. Rogers said valet parking would be provided should the 
restaurant open during lunch hours.  
 
Discussion followed. 
 
The members expressed their preference to locate the restaurant closer to the Big 
Beaver Road frontage, and encouraged its correlation to the Big Beaver Corridor 
Study.   
 
Mr. Vleck indicated he is not prepared to support a reduction of required parking 
spaces should the petitioner go forward with the Coolidge Road frontage. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 5, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Nemer questioned the timeline of the Big Beaver District Overlay.   
 
Chair Schultz replied that would be under discussion in the following agenda items.  
 

 
___________ 

 
Chair Schultz requested a recess at 8:45 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:55 p.m. 

___________ 
 

 
6. CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN UPDATE 

 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., the City’s Planning 
Consultant, gave a progress report on the Master Plan Update and provided a work 
plan timeline.  
 
• Text – 80% complete. 
• Existing land use inventory – Complete. 
• Smart Growth Readiness Assessment Tool (SGRAT) public input workshop – 

June 21. 
• Findings of public input workshop – July. 
• Draft goals and policies – July. 
• Finalize goals and policies – September. 
• Draft Plan for review and comment – October. 
• Revised Draft Plan – November. 
 
Mr. Miller gave an update on the SGRAT invitations and responses received.  
 
Chair Schultz stated the workshop is a City event in which Planning Commission 
members are participants.  He indicated the Planning Commission is not hosting the 
event, nor is the event a part of their meeting schedule. 
 
Mr. Carlisle provided details on the SGRAT workshop and the workshop packets 
that will be provided to participants in advance of the workshop.   
 
 

7. PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Big Beaver Overlay 
District – Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., the City’s Planning 
Consultant, presented a PowerPoint analysis of current zoning code requirements 
in relationship to the goals and strategies identified for specific geographic areas of 
the Big Beaver Corridor and discussed various zoning alternatives.  He asked for 
direction from the members on two form based zoning alternatives for a Corridor 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 5, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Overlay Zone with both Conventional and Form Based Zoning Regulations that is 
either (1) permissive or (2) mandatory. 
 
Discussion followed. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-097 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That for Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 232), the 
Planning Commission go with Alternative #2 with emphasis on making it mandatory; 
that there would be protection for the non-conforming structures already in 
existence; that there would be within this code discretion built into it for flexibility by 
the Planning Commission; and that it also include residential districts.  
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
A brief discussion followed on procedure and means of accomplishment.   
 
 

8. PROPOSAL OVERVIEW – Walkable Urbanism Strategic and Implementation Plan 
 
Ted Wilson of 5038 Kellen Lane, Bloomfield Hills, representative of the Chamber of 
Commerce, introduced three students from the University of Michigan’s Taubman 
College of Architecture and Urban Planning: 

• Ross Davidson 
• Michelle Elder 
• Eric Beckett 

 
Mr. Davidson provided an overview of the Walkable Urbanism Strategic and 
Implementation Plan for the City of Troy.  The focus of the project is a future multi-
modal transit center at the southwest corner of Maple Road and Coolidge Highway. 
 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Ted Wilson of 5038 Kellen Lane, Bloomfield Hills, said the Maple Road Corridor 
Study is at the publishers and should be ready shortly.  He indicated it might be 
appropriate to extend Master Plan workshop invitations to Lawrence Tech 
University participants of the Maple Road Corridor Study.  Mr. Wilson extended an 
invitation to members to attend a Chamber of Commerce/Real Estate Community 
function at LaSalle Bank.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 5, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Motzny said it was an interesting meeting to cover for Sue Lancaster. 
 
Mr. Hutson addressed the discussion on Agenda item # 5.   
 
Mr. Vleck comments on the productivity of tonight’s meeting. 
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed scheduling future meetings to focus on major projects.   
 
Ms. Troshynski said it is okay to think outside of the box because it allows us to get 
on top of the box.   
 
Mr. Miller asked members to email comments on scheduling meetings earlier in the 
evening.  He announced that the PUD application for the Pavilions of Troy was 
received by the Planning Department on June 1.  Mr. Miller addressed City council 
action on the Village of Somerset and Grand Troy Villas.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed Caswell Town Center PUD with respect to what appears to be 
a permanent exit onto Hartwig.   
 
Mr. Miller said he would look into the matter.  
 
Brief comments were made on the length of validity of a BZA variance.   
 
Chair Schultz said he would contact the Planning Department to review alternative 
meeting dates.   
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:50 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\06-05-07 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        June 7, 2007 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
June 7, 2007 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member Jo Rhoads, Member  
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member   David Ogg, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member Betty Coven, Member  
 Frank Shier, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Absent: None    
   
Visitors:  None 
 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2007-6-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads 
Seconded by Pauline Noce  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of May 3, 2007 be approved as amended. 
 
Yes:  8       
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
None 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that the courts are now open to the public and 
the equipment can be checked out at the front desk.  The singles leagues were cancelled due 
to low enrollment.  The doubles leagues start this week.  There are 10 signed up for 
shuffleboard and 10 for bocce. 
 
Lunch Visits:  No report.  
 
AEDs:  Carla distributed a letter from Carol Anderson thanking committee members for their 
suggestion about the AED.  The AED is now mounted on the wall by the front desk where the 
public will have easy access to it. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        June 7, 2007 

2 

Handicap Parking:  A copy of the memo that Bud Black prepared for Carol Anderson was 
distributed.  Carla reported that staff has been reminded to park at the outer edge of the 
building and that a third scooter has been purchased for the building. 
 
Eat Out Group:  JoAnn Thompson reported that 23 attended the first outing.  They are going 
to plan something for the first Wednesday of every other month and she will get something for 
the newsletter to Carla. 
 
New Business 
 
Cancellation of July and August Meetings 
 
Resolution # SC-2007-6-002 
Moved by David Ogg 
Seconded by Jo Rhoads  
 
RESOLVED, That the July and August meetings will be cancelled 
 
Yes:  9       
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there were three suggestions:  How about a women’s 
senior club, provide transportation to the airport – contract for a special price, and build some 
horseshoe pits for the seniors.   She will put something in the newsletter to see if anyone is 
interested in providing transportation to the airport.  It was suggested that Carla check with the 
police department about using their horseshoe courts.  
 
Heart of the Hills Theater Group:  Frank Shier will talk to Carla after the meeting about 
bringing a show to Troy. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  Merrill Dixon reported that they did not meet in May.  Pauline Noce will now be 
attending the meetings.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that there are 19 enrolled in the new Thursday evening 
outdoor volleyball program at Boulan Park.  Troy has been selected by the Area Agency on 
Aging to host a workshop on chronic disease developed by Stanford University and it will begin 
in July.  There are 64 seniors signed up for the Senior Flea Market this Saturday at the parking 
garage.  This is up from 40 last year when we were limited by space at the Community Center.  
The SeniorNet steering committee was recognized by City Council at the May 21 meeting.     
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that Medi-Go is booked solid.  Some riders do not call in to 
cancel their trip, and they may deny service to habitual offenders. 
 
OLHSA:  Pauline Noce reported that Mark Swanson from the Howell Senior Center spoke 
about the ACE program. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        June 7, 2007 

3 

 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they are preparing for 
their meeting with the legislatures on June 27.  
 
Comments 
 
Betty Coven reported that Cross Train Your Brain has 18 participants.  She is the new leader 
of the Humanities Discussion Group at the Library.   
 
Merrill Dixon announced that he will be attending the master plan workshop and asked if other 
members would be attending. 
 
Jo Rhoads reported that OLHSA will be meeting here in July and invited the committee 
members to attend and be her guest for lunch.  She also reported that the AAA is supporting 
the development of senior housing for the deaf and hard of hearing. 
 
Frank Shier announced the Senior Showcase at the Macomb Center July 16 and 17. 
 
James Berar said that Tim Burns would like to speak at the meeting again in the fall. 
 
JoAnn Thompson reported that the Troy Women’s Association provided scholarships for 
women returning to college and funds for Troy People Concerned.  There were 62 at the 
Cinco de Mayo celebration.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on June 12, 2007, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mary Kerwin 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Hutson requested to advance Agenda item #10, William Beaumont Hospital 
Pedestrian Bridge (SP 305-G), to Agenda item #4(a). 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-098 
Moved by:  Hutson 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the agenda as revised. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-099 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the May 22, 2007 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

4.(a) SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 305-G) – Proposed Pedestrian Bridge, William Beaumont 
Hospital, West side of Dequindre, South of South Blvd. (44201 Dequindre), Section 1, 
Zoned C-F (Community Facilities) and E-P (Environmental Provisions) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed William Beaumont Hospital pedestrian bridge, and reported it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the site plan as submitted. 
 
The petitioner, Craig McEwen of Harley Ellis Devereaux, 26913 Northwestern Hwy, 
Southfield, was present.  Mr. McEwen briefly addressed the variance received from 
the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-100 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed William Beaumont Hospital pedestrian bridge, located 
on the west side of Dequindre, south of South Boulevard, located in Section 1, on 
approximately 67.695 acres in area, within the C-F and E-P zoning districts, be 
granted. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #6) – Proposed 

Oasis at Centennial Park, South side of Long Lake, West side of John R, Section 
14, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller indicated City Management concurs with the recommendation of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  He briefly reviewed the new approval procedure 
for planned unit development projects. 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., provided an updated report 
on the proposed development and addressed the revisions to the plan since the 
members last reviewed it.  Mr. Carlisle recommends approval of the Concept 
Development Plan.   
 
Discussed briefly were the dumpster location in relation to the café and the need for 
grease containers. 
 
Norman Hyman of 38500 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield Hills, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  He introduced project team members Carol Thurber of 
Fazal Khan & Associates, Paul Landry of Landry + Newman Architects, and Stefano 
Mularoni, developer.  Mr. Hyman noted the location of dumpsters and grease 
containers would be addressed further during preliminary site plan preparation.  He 
said they tried to balance the uses and create a site plan with the least impact on 
the neighbors.   
 
Mr. Strat commended the petitioner on the proposed development.  He asked for 
clarification of the “pool” designations on the site plan.  
 
Ms. Thurber replied the “pool” designations refer to sedimentation forebays.  
 
Mr. Landry presented a rendering of the proposed development and reviewed the 
building materials. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Nancy-Street Merriweather of 1834 Wilmet Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. 
Merriweather spoke in opposition of the proposed development.  She addressed 
concerns with lighting, traffic and safety of school children, and indicated she would 
like to see the area stay residential.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Peter Milosavlevski of 4843 John R, Troy, was present.  Mr. Milosavlevski spoke in 
opposition of the proposed development.  He explained that he and his sister were 
present tonight to speak on behalf of their mother who lives in the house adjacent to 
the proposed development.  They are owners of the Beer Barrel store.  Mr. 
Milosavlevski addressed concerns relating to noise, privacy and property values.   
 
Saśa Doll of 4843 John R, Troy, was present.  Ms. Doll spoke in opposition of the 
proposed development.  She spoke of the investment in rebuilding the home and 
her mother’s love of the back yard, pool and garden.  Ms. Doll addressed concerns 
with property values, noise and traffic. 
 
Chair Schultz clarified that the development proposes to build one-story buildings 
only, and explained that the development cannot vary from the approved site plan.   
 
Mr. Strat emphasized the developer is proposing to provide landscaping far above 
what is required.   
 
Ms. Troshynski said the petitioner would most likely address any lighting concerns 
since it has been brought to their attention.  
 
Roberta Burgin of 1872 E. Long Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Ms. Burgin spoke 
in opposition of the proposed development.  She addressed concerns with the 
location of the proposed restaurant in relation to their home, traffic, and existing 
retail vacancies and child care facilities in the neighborhood.   
 
Mark Weir of 4867 John R, Troy, was present.  Mr. Weir is the owner of one of the 
properties to be developed.  He indicated his home and the three properties to the 
north are in disrepair.  Mr. Weir believes the proposed development is good and 
would benefit the City. 
 
Mike Burgin of 1872 E. Long Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Burgin spoke in 
opposition of the proposed development.  He spoke of the potential to rebuild the 
homes in the area and maintain the area as residential.  Mr. Burgin addressed 
concerns relating to traffic and the proposed restaurant location in relation to his 
home. 
 
Mr. Strat asked the orientation of the Burgin garage.  
 
Mr. Burgin replied their garage is attached to the house and would face the project.  
 
Scott Berry of 1881 Carr, Troy, was present.  Mr. Berry spoke in opposition of the 
proposed development.  His property is directly adjacent to the proposed 
development.  Mr. Berry addressed concerns relating to the investment in their 
home, the natural park-like setting, existing retail vacancies, traffic and property 
values.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

There were brief comments on the relationship of the property owned by Mark Weir 
to 4843 John R.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Hyman said they met with the neighbors and two concerns were expressed:  1) 
they did not want multi-story buildings; and 2) they did not want a through street to 
the residential.  Mr. Hyman said the proposed development has one-story buildings 
only, and there is no street connection to any residential.  He said property values 
would most likely increase should the development go forward.  He also indicated 
the subject area would not be conducive to single family residential development. 
 
Ms. Kerwin asked the petitioner to address public comments expressed tonight on 
the 1872 Long Lake residence in relation to the proposal, the park-like setting on 
Carr Drive, and the number of stories proposed for the senior housing.   
 
Mr. Hyman said the garage of the 1872 Long Lake residence would face 
landbanked parking.  The landbanked parking would be maintained with grass, 
shrubs and trees for potential parking should it be needed in the future.  Mr. Hyman 
said they tried their best to minimize the visual impact of the proposed development 
to the surrounding residential by providing a water feature and landscaping that far 
exceeds the open space requirements of the ordinance.  Mr. Hyman addressed the 
greenhouse elderly housing that is a one-story building, and submitted a New York 
Times article titled “Rethinking Old Age”, dated May 24, 2007, that talks about the 
revolutionary concept.  
 
Ms. Kerwin said it appears the residents do not have the same perception of the 
proposed development as the members do, and encouraged the petitioner to 
provide the neighbors with the same information and renderings that have been 
provided to the members.   
 
Mr. Hyman said they would be happy to meet with the neighbors at any time.  
 
Mr. Strat said the concerns expressed tonight by the neighbors are valid, and it is 
the responsibility of the members to protect their properties.  He indicated he would 
scrutinize the landscape plan to assure surrounding properties are protected.   
 
Mr. Littman questioned the continuation of the stockade fence north of Carr. 
 
Ms. Thurber explained the fence is an existing fence and is part of the topographical 
survey. 
 
Mr. Vleck addressed the impact to the neighbors should single family residential go 
in the area versus the proposed planned unit development project.  He brought to 
the public’s attention the developer is not developing to the maximum and the 
proposed 31% open space is unprecedented in the City of Troy.  Mr. Vleck said the 
walkability resulting from the proposed development would be an asset to the 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

surrounding residential.  Mr. Vleck said he speaks from personal experience, noting 
that he lives near two planned unit development projects.   
 
Mr. Strat agreed with Mr. Vleck’s comments and noted further that should the area 
be developed as residential, Carr Drive would open up and the residents would be 
dealing with drive-through traffic. 
 
Chair Schultz said the density of development would be appreciably higher with 
residential and agreed the 30+% of open space would be an asset to the 
surrounding neighbors. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-101 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed a Concept Development Plan for a 
Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Article 35.50.01, as requested by Oasis at 
Centennial Park, LLC for the Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit Development 
(PUD 6), located on the south side of Long Lake Road and west side of John R 
Road, Section 14, within the R-1C zoning district, being approximately 9.34 acres in 
size; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. prepared a memorandum dated June 6, 2007 that recommends 
Concept Development Plan approval of Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in Article 
35.30.00; and   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission recommends that 
Concept Development Plan Approval for Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz briefly addressed the procedure for the City Council public hearing.   
 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #8) – Proposed Big 
Beaver Place, North side of Big Beaver, East of John R, Section 24, Currently 
Zoned R-1E (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller indicated City Management concurs with the recommendation of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., provided an updated report 
on the proposed development and indicated there are no outstanding issues.  Mr. 
Carlisle recommends approval of the Concept Development Plan.   
 
A discussion followed on the internal traffic circulation.  Concerns with egress and a 
designated “No ‘U’ Turn” sign were discussed.   
 
Norman Hyman of 38500 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield Hills, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  He introduced project team members Carol Thurber of 
Fazal Khan & Associates, Paul Landry of Landry + Newman Architects, and Stefano 
Mularoni, developer.  Mr. Hyman said the revisions made to the internal traffic 
pattern were a result of a consensus of their traffic consultant and the City’s Traffic 
Engineer.   
 
Ms. Thurber said three traffic pattern alternatives were discussed at an April 
Planning Commission study session, and the plan reflects the direction given by the 
members, as well as a consensus reached by the City’s Traffic Engineer and the 
project traffic consultant.  She also addressed the deceleration lane as relates to the 
Oakland County Road Commission (OCRC).  
 
Mr. Landry provided a rendering of the proposed development.  He addressed the 
configurations of the retail building and pond and provided details on the building 
materials.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Mike Dunaj of 2100 Orpington, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dunaj spoke in opposition of 
the proposed development.  He addressed the commercial use near residential and 
existing retail vacancies.   
 
Victor DeFlorio of 3609 Cedar Brook, Rochester Hills, was present.  Mr. DeFlorio 
developed Rhode Island Estates, a residential development located east of the 
subject proposal.  He addressed the difference in development concepts between 
the proposed development and Rhode Island Estates.  Mr. DeFlorio said residents 
are concerned with privacy, property values, traffic and density.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Ms. Troshynski commented favorably on the amount of landscape buffer proposed 
for the development, especially to the east to buffer the proposed parking from the 
back yards of those residents in Rhode Island Estates.  She said getting that 
information out to the neighbors might result in a better understanding of the 
development. 
 
Mr. Strat commended the developer on the project, but noted he is not pleased with 
the internal traffic circulation.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Vleck emphasized the developer’s intent to provide 25% open space.  He 
indicated the petitioner might consider additional buffering, such as a fence, in the 
final stage of site plan review.  
 
Mr. Littman said initially he was not comfortable with the fit of the proposed 
development in the neighborhood, and has gradually grown to appreciate it.  He 
indicated the critical point for him is the buffering between the two developments, 
and encouraged communication between the developer and neighbors.  
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-102 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed a Concept Development Plan for a 
Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Article 35.50.01, as requested by Big Beaver 
Place, LLC for the Big Beaver Place Planned Unit Development (PUD 8), located on 
the north side of Big Beaver Road and east side of John R Road, Section 24, within 
the R-1E zoning district, being approximately 4.77 acres in size; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. prepared a memorandum dated June 6, 2007 that recommends 
Concept Development Plan Approval of Big Beaver Place Planned Unit 
Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed PUD meets the Eligibility Requirements set forth in 
Article 35.30.00; and   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission recommends that 
Concept Development Plan Approval for Big Beaver Place Preliminary Planned Unit 
Development be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz briefly addressed the procedure for the City Council public hearing.  

 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Schultz requested a recess at 9:17 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:28 p.m. 

___________ 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 351) – Proposed Mitchell’s 
Ocean Club Restaurant, Southwest corner of Big Beaver and Coolidge, Section 30, 
Zoned O-S-C (Office-Service-Commercial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
special use request and site plan.  He brought to the attention of the members a 
slight inconsistency between the site plan and landscape plan with respect to the 
parking area south of the proposed restaurant was noticed by the Planning 
Department after the written report was prepared.  Mr. Miller noted the revisions to 
the plan since last reviewed by the members at a previous study session.  Mr. Miller 
said the petitioner submitted a letter of justification for the required reduction of 345 
parking spaces.  Mr. Miller said the site plan meets all the Zoning Ordinance 
requirements with the exception of the parking.   
 
Mr. Miller stated the application meets the requirements for free-standing, full 
service restaurants situated on “pad-sites” or individual out-parcels per Section 
26.30.05, but indicated the Planning Commission must determine whether the 
application meets the special use approval standards of Section 03.31.05.  He 
reported that all special uses are required to meet two other general standards:   
1) The land use or activity being proposed shall be of such location, size, and 

character as to be compatible with the orderly development or use of the 
adjacent land and/or districts. 

2) The land use or activity under consideration is within the capacity limitations of 
the existing or proposed public services and facilities which serve its location.   

 
The petitioner, Larry Nemer of 26877 Northwestern Hwy, Southfield, was present.  
Mr. Nemer gave a brief history of the property, and indicated his intent to 
complement the existing office complex and prominent corner with the upscale 
restaurant.  Mr. Nemer reviewed the revisions made to the site plan since the 
Planning Commission last reviewed it.  Developers of the Somerset Collection 
informed him that development on their pad-sites is prohibited to assure visibility of 
the department stores.  Mr. Nemer said the site plan presented tonight is a 
compromise of their needs and the City’s desires, and he hopes it is acceptable to 
the members. 
 
Chair Schultz asked for clarification on what is proposed between the building and 
Big Beaver Road.   
 
Mr. Nemer confirmed that a one-way circle drive and 18 feet of parking is proposed.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Mr. Hutson said he likes the plan and restaurant concept but would like to see more 
concentration of trees and shrubbery near the outdoor seating area to make it more 
park-like.   
 
Chair Schultz said he understands the petitioner’s concern for not bringing the 
restaurant onto Big Beaver Road.  He would like to see the parking on the circle 
drive eliminated and replaced with landscaping, the two ends of the circle drive 
narrowed by 6 feet each to 18 feet from 24 feet, and the building moved another 12 
feet closer to Big Beaver Road.  Chair Schultz said he would support the plan if 
those revisions were made. 
 
Mr. Tagle said he appreciates the efforts of the petitioner to move the building 
forward, but he would like to see the whole corner designed so there is more of a 
pedestrian draw to the restaurant site.   
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study and the vision shared 
by the City.  She indicated she would not support the plan as presented because it 
does not meet that vision.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he would not support the plan as presented.  He wants the 
development to correlate with the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study that was 
adopted, and indicated he would not support any plan with any kind of traffic or 
parking between Big Beaver and the restaurant.  Mr. Vleck said he would entertain 
a motion to postpone so the petitioner could look at other options.  He addressed 
the restaurant’s visibility and pedestrian-friendly aspect.   
 
Mr. Strat agreed he would not support a plan with any traffic or parking between the 
base of the structure and Big Beaver Road.  He would prefer the building to come 
forward also, but noted that might not be the only solution.  He would like to see the 
development more pedestrian-oriented.  Mr. Strat noted other developers are 
conforming to the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study concept. 
 
Mr. Littman said he is fine with the site plan as presented.  He complimented the 
petitioner on the compromises and site plan revisions made since last reviewed.  
Mr. Littman compared the parking and traffic between the building and roads with 
the previously discussed PUD project.  He personally would like the development to 
go forward as presented, and not risk losing the restaurant completely.  
 
Mr. Wright agreed with the comments of Mr. Littman.  He said the parking on the 
corners to the southeast and northeast are going to stay.  He said eliminating the 
turnaround driveway for valet parking would not make much of a difference. 
 
Chair Schultz stated the proposed restaurant location is within the downtown zone 
of the Big Beaver Corridor Study where there is to be a sense of place, walkability 
and pedestrian-friendly.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Mark Knauer, architect from Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, 720 N. Waukegan 
Road, Deerfield, Illinois, was present.  Mr. Knauer said they are willing to work 
within the guidelines of the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study.  He said they want to 
design and build a very successful restaurant, and it is their intent to work this out 
with the City.  Mr. Knauer familiarized himself with developments along Big Beaver 
Road, and realizes Mitchell’s would be the only restaurant on Big Beaver Road that 
would not have parking or a drive in front of the building.  He addressed the need to 
have the front door and valet drop-off at the Big Beaver and Coolidge intersection.  
He also indicated their intent to embellish the site with landscaping, especially near 
the outdoor seating.   
 
Mr. Nemer addressed the site plan presented in relation to the Zoning Ordinance 
requirements and Future Land Use Plan.  He said members are saying they won’t 
approve the plan with a driveway in front of the building when nothing in the Zoning 
Ordinance prohibits the driveway, and the plan presented could not be more 
consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Keith Rogers, consultant for Restaurant Development Advisors, 6162 Birchcrest 
Lane, Commerce, was present.  Mr. Rogers addressed the restaurant operation 
with respect to the front entrance and valet drop-off.  He said watching people 
coming and going is the type of activity that will make a restaurant successful, and 
indicated activity would not be visible from Big Beaver Road if the restaurant access 
is to the side of the development.  Mr. Rogers said they do not want to compromise 
the success of the restaurant, nor the standards set by the City.  Mr. Rogers said he 
understands the concept of mixing urban and suburban environments.   
 
Discussion continued on: 
• Restaurant orientation 
• Restaurant entrance / valet drop-off 
• Walkability / pedestrian-friendly environment 
• Landscaping 
• Special Use Request in relation to parking variance and discretion of Planning 

Commission 
• Postponement of the item  
 
Mr. Nemer indicated his willingness to work with the City and addressed the 
standards and discretion of the Planning Commission in granting approval of a 
Special Use Request.  Mr. Nemer also addressed the existing parking in relation to 
the restaurant hours.   
 
Chair Schultz said he wants to see the restaurant developed at this site, and he 
wants the development to be the best for the petitioner, Cameron Mitchell 
Restaurants and the City of Troy residents.  He indicated the Commission has 
ultimate discretion on the parking waiver and the Special Use Request cannot be 
granted without the parking waiver.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Mr. Vleck said one discretionary option is the fact that the plan presented is not 
compatible with the vision of future development of the neighboring property.  
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-103 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That we postpone the Special Use Approval for the Mitchell’s Ocean 
Club restaurant to such a time that the petitioner has the opportunity to submit 
revised plans.  
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz advised the petitioner to submit revised plans in a timely fashion so 
they can be distributed with the Planning Commission meeting packets. 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 231) – Article 28.30.11 – 
Restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial District.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-104 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles XXVIII M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, pertaining to 
permitting restaurants subject to Special Use Approval in the M-1 District, be 
amended as printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning 
Commission Draft. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman (not present for the vote) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 939) – Proposed Binson’s Medical Equipment Store, 
Northwest corner of Rochester Road and Marengo, Section 3, Zoned B-1 (Local 
Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.  He noted the petitioner provided a letter with 
respect to the parking justification.   
 
There was discussion on whether an additional egress would be required in the 
basement. 
 
David Plunkett of Williams, Williams, Rattner & Plunkett, P.C., 380 N. Old 
Woodward Avenue, Birmingham, was present to represent the petitioner.  He 
introduced Jim Lawrence of Contracting Resources, James Gerback of Binson’s, 
and Shiloh Winiarski of Alpine Engineering.  Mr. Plunkett said they would abide by 
all building codes. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Littman commented on an additional egress in the basement. 
 
Chair Schultz asked the petitioner to consider planting trees in the grass area behind 
the building and addressed the maintenance of the area.   
 
Mr. Plunkett said they would consider those comments. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-105 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
total number of required parking spaces to 34 when a total of 58 spaces are 
required on the site based on the off-street parking space requirements for retail 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

uses, as per Article XL.  This 24 space reduction meets the standards of Article 
40.20.12 given the parking demands for the retail uses. 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Binson’s Medical Equipment Store, located on the 
northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, located in Section 3, on approximately 
0.88 acres in area, within the B-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to: 
 
1. Additional checking by the Building or Engineering Departments to insure that no 

barrier free access or second egress is required for the basement area; and 
2. Upon landscape plan approval, consideration is given to protect all the grass in 

the back against drought. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

10. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 305-G) – Proposed Pedestrian Bridge, William Beaumont 
Hospital, West side of Dequindre, South of South Blvd. (44201 Dequindre), Section 
1, Zoned C-F (Community Facilities) and E-P (Environmental Provisions) District 
 
[Refer to Agenda item #4.(a).] 
 
 

11. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 940) – Proposed FedEx Truck Terminal Expansion, North 
side of Park Drive, East of Livernois (205 Park Drive), Section 34, Zoned M-1 (Light 
Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner was present.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-106 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed FedEx Truck Terminal Expansion, located on the 
north side of Park Drive, east of Livernois, located in Section 34, on approximately 
9.84 acres in area, within the M-1 zoning district, be granted.    
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Wright (absent for the vote) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

12. CITY OF BIRMINGHAM MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT – Triangle District Urban 
Design Plan 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a brief review of the Master Plan draft amendment for the 
City of Birmingham.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-107 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Birmingham has prepared the City of Birmingham Master 
Plan Draft Amendment - Triangle District Urban Design Plan; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Birmingham Master Plan Draft Amendment - Triangle 
District Urban Design Plan will have no impact on the City of Troy; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Birmingham has provided a copy of the City of Birmingham 
Master Plan Draft Amendment - Triangle District Urban Design Plan to the City of 
Troy Planning Commission for their review and comment, as required by Public Act 
285 of 1931, known as the Municipal Planning Act; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy Planning Commission has determined that the Draft 
Plan is not inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plan of the City of Troy.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Troy Planning Commission 
hereby supports the proposed amendment to the City of Birmingham Master Plan. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Wright (absent for the vote) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
14. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
Ms. Lancaster reported on her research relating to site plan approval for school 
districts.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Mr. Miller commended the members on their leadership role and actions taken at 
tonight’s meeting.  
 
Mr. Strat addressed the site plan approval process and asked the Planning 
Department to provide members with a punchlist of site plan submission 
requirements.   
 
Mr. Miller replied they would follow through with the request.  
 
Ms. Troshynski thanked Mr. Strat for his request of a punchlist.  She noted it would be 
most helpful to some of the newer members.  Ms. Troshynski addressed how the 
punchlist and materials submitted to the Planning Commission might be beneficial to 
the residents in the proximity of proposed new development.  
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed the technological aspect of presenting materials and 
renderings to the residents during the meeting.  She asked that Mr. Miller’s remarks 
on Agenda item #7 relating to two additional general standards that must be met for 
special use approval are reflected in the minutes.  Ms. Kerwin addressed the 
Comprehensive Master Plan with respect to landscape requirements.   
 
Mr. Littman addressed the standardization of procedures.  He asked fellow members 
to submit their reports on the national conference for the learning experience of those 
who were not in attendance.  Mr. Littman said the wisdom of the new Planned Unit 
Development ordinance was well demonstrated tonight.  
 
Chair Schultz thanked members for a good meeting.  He addressed the article and 
drawings received from Paul Lin relating to the proposed Pavilions of Troy.  Chair 
Schultz reminded everyone of the Smart Growth Readiness Assessment Tool 
(SGRAT) meeting on June 21, and said unfortunately he would not be in attendance.   
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 11:02 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\06-12-07 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on June 12, 2007, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mary Kerwin 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Hutson requested to advance Agenda item #10, William Beaumont Hospital 
Pedestrian Bridge (SP 305-G), to Agenda item #4(a). 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-098 
Moved by:  Hutson 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the agenda as revised. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-099 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the May 22, 2007 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

4.(a) SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 305-G) – Proposed Pedestrian Bridge, William Beaumont 
Hospital, West side of Dequindre, South of South Blvd. (44201 Dequindre), Section 1, 
Zoned C-F (Community Facilities) and E-P (Environmental Provisions) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed William Beaumont Hospital pedestrian bridge, and reported it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the site plan as submitted. 
 
The petitioner, Craig McEwen of Harley Ellis Devereaux, 26913 Northwestern Hwy, 
Southfield, was present.  Mr. McEwen briefly addressed the variance received from 
the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-100 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed William Beaumont Hospital pedestrian bridge, located 
on the west side of Dequindre, south of South Boulevard, located in Section 1, on 
approximately 67.695 acres in area, within the C-F and E-P zoning districts, be 
granted. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #6) – Proposed 

Oasis at Centennial Park, South side of Long Lake, West side of John R, Section 
14, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller indicated City Management concurs with the recommendation of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  He briefly reviewed the new approval procedure 
for planned unit development projects. 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., provided an updated report 
on the proposed development and addressed the revisions to the plan since the 
members last reviewed it.  Mr. Carlisle recommends approval of the Concept 
Development Plan.   
 
Discussed briefly were the dumpster location in relation to the café and the need for 
grease containers. 
 
Norman Hyman of 38500 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield Hills, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  He introduced project team members Carol Thurber of 
Fazal Khan & Associates, Paul Landry of Landry + Newman Architects, and Stefano 
Mularoni, developer.  Mr. Hyman noted the location of dumpsters and grease 
containers would be addressed further during preliminary site plan preparation.  He 
said they tried to balance the uses and create a site plan with the least impact on 
the neighbors.   
 
Mr. Strat commended the petitioner on the proposed development.  He asked for 
clarification of the “pool” designations on the site plan.  
 
Ms. Thurber replied the “pool” designations refer to sedimentation forebays.  
 
Mr. Landry presented a rendering of the proposed development and reviewed the 
building materials. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Nancy-Street Merriweather of 1834 Wilmet Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. 
Merriweather spoke in opposition of the proposed development.  She addressed 
concerns with lighting, traffic and safety of school children, and indicated she would 
like to see the area stay residential.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Peter Milosavlevski of 4843 John R, Troy, was present.  Mr. Milosavlevski spoke in 
opposition of the proposed development.  He explained that he and his sister were 
present tonight to speak on behalf of their mother who lives in the house adjacent to 
the proposed development.  They are owners of the Beer Barrel store.  Mr. 
Milosavlevski addressed concerns relating to noise, privacy and property values.   
 
Saśa Doll of 4843 John R, Troy, was present.  Ms. Doll spoke in opposition of the 
proposed development.  She spoke of the investment in rebuilding the home and 
her mother’s love of the back yard, pool and garden.  Ms. Doll addressed concerns 
with property values, noise and traffic. 
 
Chair Schultz clarified that the development proposes to build one-story buildings 
only, and explained that the development cannot vary from the approved site plan.   
 
Mr. Strat emphasized the developer is proposing to provide landscaping far above 
what is required.   
 
Ms. Troshynski said the petitioner would most likely address any lighting concerns 
since it has been brought to their attention.  
 
Roberta Burgin of 1872 E. Long Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Ms. Burgin spoke 
in opposition of the proposed development.  She addressed concerns with the 
location of the proposed restaurant in relation to their home, traffic, and existing 
retail vacancies and child care facilities in the neighborhood.   
 
Mark Weir of 4867 John R, Troy, was present.  Mr. Weir is the owner of one of the 
properties to be developed.  He indicated his home and the three properties to the 
north are in disrepair.  Mr. Weir believes the proposed development is good and 
would benefit the City. 
 
Mike Burgin of 1872 E. Long Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Burgin spoke in 
opposition of the proposed development.  He spoke of the potential to rebuild the 
homes in the area and maintain the area as residential.  Mr. Burgin addressed 
concerns relating to traffic and the proposed restaurant location in relation to his 
home. 
 
Mr. Strat asked the orientation of the Burgin garage.  
 
Mr. Burgin replied their garage is attached to the house and would face the project.  
 
Scott Berry of 1881 Carr, Troy, was present.  Mr. Berry spoke in opposition of the 
proposed development.  His property is directly adjacent to the proposed 
development.  Mr. Berry addressed concerns relating to the investment in their 
home, the natural park-like setting, existing retail vacancies, traffic and property 
values.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

There were brief comments on the relationship of the property owned by Mark Weir 
to 4843 John R.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Hyman said they met with the neighbors and two concerns were expressed:  1) 
they did not want multi-story buildings; and 2) they did not want a through street to 
the residential.  Mr. Hyman said the proposed development has one-story buildings 
only, and there is no street connection to any residential.  He said property values 
would most likely increase should the development go forward.  He also indicated 
the subject area would not be conducive to single family residential development. 
 
Ms. Kerwin asked the petitioner to address public comments expressed tonight on 
the 1872 Long Lake residence in relation to the proposal, the park-like setting on 
Carr Drive, and the number of stories proposed for the senior housing.   
 
Mr. Hyman said the garage of the 1872 Long Lake residence would face 
landbanked parking.  The landbanked parking would be maintained with grass, 
shrubs and trees for potential parking should it be needed in the future.  Mr. Hyman 
said they tried their best to minimize the visual impact of the proposed development 
to the surrounding residential by providing a water feature and landscaping that far 
exceeds the open space requirements of the ordinance.  Mr. Hyman addressed the 
greenhouse elderly housing that is a one-story building, and submitted a New York 
Times article titled “Rethinking Old Age”, dated May 24, 2007, that talks about the 
revolutionary concept.  
 
Ms. Kerwin said it appears the residents do not have the same perception of the 
proposed development as the members do, and encouraged the petitioner to 
provide the neighbors with the same information and renderings that have been 
provided to the members.   
 
Mr. Hyman said they would be happy to meet with the neighbors at any time.  
 
Mr. Strat said the concerns expressed tonight by the neighbors are valid, and it is 
the responsibility of the members to protect their properties.  He indicated he would 
scrutinize the landscape plan to assure surrounding properties are protected.   
 
Mr. Littman questioned the continuation of the stockade fence north of Carr. 
 
Ms. Thurber explained the fence is an existing fence and is part of the topographical 
survey. 
 
Mr. Vleck addressed the impact to the neighbors should single family residential go 
in the area versus the proposed planned unit development project.  He brought to 
the public’s attention the developer is not developing to the maximum and the 
proposed 31% open space is unprecedented in the City of Troy.  Mr. Vleck said the 
walkability resulting from the proposed development would be an asset to the 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

surrounding residential.  Mr. Vleck said he speaks from personal experience, noting 
that he lives near two planned unit development projects.   
 
Mr. Strat agreed with Mr. Vleck’s comments and noted further that should the area 
be developed as residential, Carr Drive would open up and the residents would be 
dealing with drive-through traffic. 
 
Chair Schultz said the density of development would be appreciably higher with 
residential and agreed the 30+% of open space would be an asset to the 
surrounding neighbors. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-101 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed a Concept Development Plan for a 
Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Article 35.50.01, as requested by Oasis at 
Centennial Park, LLC for the Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit Development 
(PUD 6), located on the south side of Long Lake Road and west side of John R 
Road, Section 14, within the R-1C zoning district, being approximately 9.34 acres in 
size; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. prepared a memorandum dated June 6, 2007 that recommends 
Concept Development Plan approval of Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in Article 
35.30.00; and   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission recommends that 
Concept Development Plan Approval for Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz briefly addressed the procedure for the City Council public hearing.   
 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #8) – Proposed Big 
Beaver Place, North side of Big Beaver, East of John R, Section 24, Currently 
Zoned R-1E (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller indicated City Management concurs with the recommendation of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., provided an updated report 
on the proposed development and indicated there are no outstanding issues.  Mr. 
Carlisle recommends approval of the Concept Development Plan.   
 
A discussion followed on the internal traffic circulation.  Concerns with egress and a 
designated “No ‘U’ Turn” sign were discussed.   
 
Norman Hyman of 38500 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield Hills, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  He introduced project team members Carol Thurber of 
Fazal Khan & Associates, Paul Landry of Landry + Newman Architects, and Stefano 
Mularoni, developer.  Mr. Hyman said the revisions made to the internal traffic 
pattern were a result of a consensus of their traffic consultant and the City’s Traffic 
Engineer.   
 
Ms. Thurber said three traffic pattern alternatives were discussed at an April 
Planning Commission study session, and the plan reflects the direction given by the 
members, as well as a consensus reached by the City’s Traffic Engineer and the 
project traffic consultant.  She also addressed the deceleration lane as relates to the 
Oakland County Road Commission (OCRC).  
 
Mr. Landry provided a rendering of the proposed development.  He addressed the 
configurations of the retail building and pond and provided details on the building 
materials.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Mike Dunaj of 2100 Orpington, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dunaj spoke in opposition of 
the proposed development.  He addressed the commercial use near residential and 
existing retail vacancies.   
 
Victor DeFlorio of 3609 Cedar Brook, Rochester Hills, was present.  Mr. DeFlorio 
developed Rhode Island Estates, a residential development located east of the 
subject proposal.  He addressed the difference in development concepts between 
the proposed development and Rhode Island Estates.  Mr. DeFlorio said residents 
are concerned with privacy, property values, traffic and density.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Ms. Troshynski commented favorably on the amount of landscape buffer proposed 
for the development, especially to the east to buffer the proposed parking from the 
back yards of those residents in Rhode Island Estates.  She said getting that 
information out to the neighbors might result in a better understanding of the 
development. 
 
Mr. Strat commended the developer on the project, but noted he is not pleased with 
the internal traffic circulation.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Vleck emphasized the developer’s intent to provide 25% open space.  He 
indicated the petitioner might consider additional buffering, such as a fence, in the 
final stage of site plan review.  
 
Mr. Littman said initially he was not comfortable with the fit of the proposed 
development in the neighborhood, and has gradually grown to appreciate it.  He 
indicated the critical point for him is the buffering between the two developments, 
and encouraged communication between the developer and neighbors.  
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-102 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed a Concept Development Plan for a 
Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Article 35.50.01, as requested by Big Beaver 
Place, LLC for the Big Beaver Place Planned Unit Development (PUD 8), located on 
the north side of Big Beaver Road and east side of John R Road, Section 24, within 
the R-1E zoning district, being approximately 4.77 acres in size; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. prepared a memorandum dated June 6, 2007 that recommends 
Concept Development Plan Approval of Big Beaver Place Planned Unit 
Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed PUD meets the Eligibility Requirements set forth in 
Article 35.30.00; and   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission recommends that 
Concept Development Plan Approval for Big Beaver Place Preliminary Planned Unit 
Development be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz briefly addressed the procedure for the City Council public hearing.  

 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Schultz requested a recess at 9:17 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:28 p.m. 

___________ 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 351) – Proposed Mitchell’s 
Ocean Club Restaurant, Southwest corner of Big Beaver and Coolidge, Section 30, 
Zoned O-S-C (Office-Service-Commercial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
special use request and site plan.  He brought to the attention of the members a 
slight inconsistency between the site plan and landscape plan with respect to the 
parking area south of the proposed restaurant was noticed by the Planning 
Department after the written report was prepared.  Mr. Miller noted the revisions to 
the plan since last reviewed by the members at a previous study session.  Mr. Miller 
said the petitioner submitted a letter of justification for the required reduction of 345 
parking spaces.  Mr. Miller said the site plan meets all the Zoning Ordinance 
requirements with the exception of the parking.   
 
Mr. Miller stated the application meets the requirements for free-standing, full 
service restaurants situated on “pad-sites” or individual out-parcels per Section 
26.30.05, but indicated the Planning Commission must determine whether the 
application meets the special use approval standards of Section 03.31.05.  He 
reported that all special uses are required to meet two other general standards:   
1) The land use or activity being proposed shall be of such location, size, and 

character as to be compatible with the orderly development or use of the 
adjacent land and/or districts. 

2) The land use or activity under consideration is within the capacity limitations of 
the existing or proposed public services and facilities which serve its location.   

 
The petitioner, Larry Nemer of 26877 Northwestern Hwy, Southfield, was present.  
Mr. Nemer gave a brief history of the property, and indicated his intent to 
complement the existing office complex and prominent corner with the upscale 
restaurant.  Mr. Nemer reviewed the revisions made to the site plan since the 
Planning Commission last reviewed it.  Developers of the Somerset Collection 
informed him that development on their pad-sites is prohibited to assure visibility of 
the department stores.  Mr. Nemer said the site plan presented tonight is a 
compromise of their needs and the City’s desires, and he hopes it is acceptable to 
the members. 
 
Chair Schultz asked for clarification on what is proposed between the building and 
Big Beaver Road.   
 
Mr. Nemer confirmed that a one-way circle drive and 18 feet of parking is proposed.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Mr. Hutson said he likes the plan and restaurant concept but would like to see more 
concentration of trees and shrubbery near the outdoor seating area to make it more 
park-like.   
 
Chair Schultz said he understands the petitioner’s concern for not bringing the 
restaurant onto Big Beaver Road.  He would like to see the parking on the circle 
drive eliminated and replaced with landscaping, the two ends of the circle drive 
narrowed by 6 feet each to 18 feet from 24 feet, and the building moved another 12 
feet closer to Big Beaver Road.  Chair Schultz said he would support the plan if 
those revisions were made. 
 
Mr. Tagle said he appreciates the efforts of the petitioner to move the building 
forward, but he would like to see the whole corner designed so there is more of a 
pedestrian draw to the restaurant site.   
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study and the vision shared 
by the City.  She indicated she would not support the plan as presented because it 
does not meet that vision.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he would not support the plan as presented.  He wants the 
development to correlate with the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study that was 
adopted, and indicated he would not support any plan with any kind of traffic or 
parking between Big Beaver and the restaurant.  Mr. Vleck said he would entertain 
a motion to postpone so the petitioner could look at other options.  He addressed 
the restaurant’s visibility and pedestrian-friendly aspect.   
 
Mr. Strat agreed he would not support a plan with any traffic or parking between the 
base of the structure and Big Beaver Road.  He would prefer the building to come 
forward also, but noted that might not be the only solution.  He would like to see the 
development more pedestrian-oriented.  Mr. Strat noted other developers are 
conforming to the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study concept. 
 
Mr. Littman said he is fine with the site plan as presented.  He complimented the 
petitioner on the compromises and site plan revisions made since last reviewed.  
Mr. Littman compared the parking and traffic between the building and roads with 
the previously discussed PUD project.  He personally would like the development to 
go forward as presented, and not risk losing the restaurant completely.  
 
Mr. Wright agreed with the comments of Mr. Littman.  He said the parking on the 
corners to the southeast and northeast are going to stay.  He said eliminating the 
turnaround driveway for valet parking would not make much of a difference. 
 
Chair Schultz stated the proposed restaurant location is within the downtown zone 
of the Big Beaver Corridor Study where there is to be a sense of place, walkability 
and pedestrian-friendly.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Mark Knauer, architect from Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, 720 N. Waukegan 
Road, Deerfield, Illinois, was present.  Mr. Knauer said they are willing to work 
within the guidelines of the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study.  He said they want to 
design and build a very successful restaurant, and it is their intent to work this out 
with the City.  Mr. Knauer familiarized himself with developments along Big Beaver 
Road, and realizes Mitchell’s would be the only restaurant on Big Beaver Road that 
would not have parking or a drive in front of the building.  He addressed the need to 
have the front door and valet drop-off at the Big Beaver and Coolidge intersection.  
He also indicated their intent to embellish the site with landscaping, especially near 
the outdoor seating.   
 
Mr. Nemer addressed the site plan presented in relation to the Zoning Ordinance 
requirements and Future Land Use Plan.  He said members are saying they won’t 
approve the plan with a driveway in front of the building when nothing in the Zoning 
Ordinance prohibits the driveway, and the plan presented could not be more 
consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Keith Rogers, consultant for Restaurant Development Advisors, 6162 Birchcrest 
Lane, Commerce, was present.  Mr. Rogers addressed the restaurant operation 
with respect to the front entrance and valet drop-off.  He said watching people 
coming and going is the type of activity that will make a restaurant successful, and 
indicated activity would not be visible from Big Beaver Road if the restaurant access 
is to the side of the development.  Mr. Rogers said they do not want to compromise 
the success of the restaurant, nor the standards set by the City.  Mr. Rogers said he 
understands the concept of mixing urban and suburban environments.   
 
Discussion continued on: 
• Restaurant orientation 
• Restaurant entrance / valet drop-off 
• Walkability / pedestrian-friendly environment 
• Landscaping 
• Special Use Request in relation to parking variance and discretion of Planning 

Commission 
• Postponement of the item  
 
Mr. Nemer indicated his willingness to work with the City and addressed the 
standards and discretion of the Planning Commission in granting approval of a 
Special Use Request.  Mr. Nemer also addressed the existing parking in relation to 
the restaurant hours.   
 
Chair Schultz said he wants to see the restaurant developed at this site, and he 
wants the development to be the best for the petitioner, Cameron Mitchell 
Restaurants and the City of Troy residents.  He indicated the Commission has 
ultimate discretion on the parking waiver and the Special Use Request cannot be 
granted without the parking waiver.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Mr. Vleck said one discretionary option is the fact that the plan presented is not 
compatible with the vision of future development of the neighboring property.  
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-103 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That we postpone the Special Use Approval for the Mitchell’s Ocean 
Club restaurant to such a time that the petitioner has the opportunity to submit 
revised plans.  
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz advised the petitioner to submit revised plans in a timely fashion so 
they can be distributed with the Planning Commission meeting packets. 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 231) – Article 28.30.11 – 
Restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial District.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-104 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles XXVIII M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, pertaining to 
permitting restaurants subject to Special Use Approval in the M-1 District, be 
amended as printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning 
Commission Draft. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman (not present for the vote) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 939) – Proposed Binson’s Medical Equipment Store, 
Northwest corner of Rochester Road and Marengo, Section 3, Zoned B-1 (Local 
Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.  He noted the petitioner provided a letter with 
respect to the parking justification.   
 
There was discussion on whether an additional egress would be required in the 
basement. 
 
David Plunkett of Williams, Williams, Rattner & Plunkett, P.C., 380 N. Old 
Woodward Avenue, Birmingham, was present to represent the petitioner.  He 
introduced Jim Lawrence of Contracting Resources, James Gerback of Binson’s, 
and Shiloh Winiarski of Alpine Engineering.  Mr. Plunkett said they would abide by 
all building codes. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Littman commented on an additional egress in the basement. 
 
Chair Schultz asked the petitioner to consider planting trees in the grass area behind 
the building and addressed the maintenance of the area.   
 
Mr. Plunkett said they would consider those comments. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-105 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
total number of required parking spaces to 34 when a total of 58 spaces are 
required on the site based on the off-street parking space requirements for retail 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

uses, as per Article XL.  This 24 space reduction meets the standards of Article 
40.20.12 given the parking demands for the retail uses. 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Binson’s Medical Equipment Store, located on the 
northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, located in Section 3, on approximately 
0.88 acres in area, within the B-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to: 
 
1. Additional checking by the Building or Engineering Departments to insure that no 

barrier free access or second egress is required for the basement area; and 
2. Upon landscape plan approval, consideration is given to protect all the grass in 

the back against drought. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

10. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 305-G) – Proposed Pedestrian Bridge, William Beaumont 
Hospital, West side of Dequindre, South of South Blvd. (44201 Dequindre), Section 
1, Zoned C-F (Community Facilities) and E-P (Environmental Provisions) District 
 
[Refer to Agenda item #4.(a).] 
 
 

11. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 940) – Proposed FedEx Truck Terminal Expansion, North 
side of Park Drive, East of Livernois (205 Park Drive), Section 34, Zoned M-1 (Light 
Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner was present.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-106 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed FedEx Truck Terminal Expansion, located on the 
north side of Park Drive, east of Livernois, located in Section 34, on approximately 
9.84 acres in area, within the M-1 zoning district, be granted.    
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Wright (absent for the vote) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

12. CITY OF BIRMINGHAM MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT – Triangle District Urban 
Design Plan 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a brief review of the Master Plan draft amendment for the 
City of Birmingham.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-107 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Birmingham has prepared the City of Birmingham Master 
Plan Draft Amendment - Triangle District Urban Design Plan; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Birmingham Master Plan Draft Amendment - Triangle 
District Urban Design Plan will have no impact on the City of Troy; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Birmingham has provided a copy of the City of Birmingham 
Master Plan Draft Amendment - Triangle District Urban Design Plan to the City of 
Troy Planning Commission for their review and comment, as required by Public Act 
285 of 1931, known as the Municipal Planning Act; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy Planning Commission has determined that the Draft 
Plan is not inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plan of the City of Troy.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Troy Planning Commission 
hereby supports the proposed amendment to the City of Birmingham Master Plan. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Wright (absent for the vote) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
14. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
Ms. Lancaster reported on her research relating to site plan approval for school 
districts.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Mr. Miller commended the members on their leadership role and actions taken at 
tonight’s meeting.  
 
Mr. Strat addressed the site plan approval process and asked the Planning 
Department to provide members with a punchlist of site plan submission 
requirements.   
 
Mr. Miller replied they would follow through with the request.  
 
Ms. Troshynski thanked Mr. Strat for his request of a punchlist.  She noted it would be 
most helpful to some of the newer members.  Ms. Troshynski addressed how the 
punchlist and materials submitted to the Planning Commission might be beneficial to 
the residents in the proximity of proposed new development.  
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed the technological aspect of presenting materials and 
renderings to the residents during the meeting.  She asked that Mr. Miller’s remarks 
on Agenda item #7 relating to two additional general standards that must be met for 
special use approval are reflected in the minutes.  Ms. Kerwin addressed the 
Comprehensive Master Plan with respect to landscape requirements.   
 
Mr. Littman addressed the standardization of procedures.  He asked fellow members 
to submit their reports on the national conference for the learning experience of those 
who were not in attendance.  Mr. Littman said the wisdom of the new Planned Unit 
Development ordinance was well demonstrated tonight.  
 
Chair Schultz thanked members for a good meeting.  He addressed the article and 
drawings received from Paul Lin relating to the proposed Pavilions of Troy.  Chair 
Schultz reminded everyone of the Smart Growth Readiness Assessment Tool 
(SGRAT) meeting on June 21, and said unfortunately he would not be in attendance.   
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 11:02 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\06-12-07 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JUNE 13, 2007 

 1

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the Special Meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:34 A.M. on Wednesday, June 13, 2007 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Tim Richnak 
   Dave Roberts 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Mitch Grusnick, Residential Plan Analyst 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JUNE 6, 2007 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of June 6, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JOSEPH KYRIAKOZA, 3617 SANDBURG, for 
relief of Chapter 83 to install a fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 
fence.  This property is a double front corner lot.  It has front yard setback requirements 
along both Sandburg and Stonetree.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in front 
setbacks on this property to 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates a 4’ high non-
obscuring fence setback 7’ and parallel to the property line along Stonetree. 
 
Mr. Joe Kyriakoza was present and stated that there are large trees and landscaping in 
place, which would prohibit them from putting this fence in another location.  The current 
fence is right across the front part of the lot and is in a state of disrepair.  Mr. Kyriakoza 
said that they are concerned about the traffic along Stonetree and neighborhood dogs 
coming into the yard. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked for clarification of why the plans submitted indicated that the fence 
was 8’ from the sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the property line is 1’ from the sidewalk; therefore the 
proposed fence would actually be 7’ from the petitioner’s property line. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JUNE 13, 2007 

 2

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the fence was going to be angled up near the house. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza stated that it would be straight and they were planning to put in a gate in 
this location. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Phyllis Slattery, 1235 Stonetree was present and stated that she has lived on this street 
for 30 years.  The previous family had a 30” high fence and five children and never had 
a problem.  This property backs up to 4 acres of woods and she is upset about the 
aesthetics involved with putting up this fence.  The neighbors have always wanted the 
area to be open.  Ms. Slattery also said that the dogs in the neighborhood are very well 
behaved and does not believe they would be a problem for the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that he more concerned about the traffic speeding down Stonetree, 
and is worried that a ball could easily be thrown over a 30” high fence. 
 
Ms. Slattery said that she believes the 30” fence would prevent the children from 
running into the street and does not like the design of the fence.  Ms. Slattery said that 
she speaks for the other neighbors and they are concerned about this fence having 
points at the top rail. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza explained that there are no sharp points along the top of the fence.  The 
fence is vinyl and the caps on the top of the fence are vinyl. 
 
Ms. Slattery said that she is opposed to the height of this proposed fence. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one written approval and one written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what height this proposed fence comes in. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that it comes in 30”, 36” and 48” heights.  Although the fence 
appears to be wrought iron, it is actually a vinyl fence. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the petitioner could put up a 6’ high fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that if the fence was not in the front yard, the petitioner could in 
fact put up a 6’ high privacy fence. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JUNE 13, 2007 

 3

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
 
MOVED, to grant Joseph Kyriakoza, 3617 Sandburg, relief of Chapter 83 to install a 4’ 
high non-obscuring fence setback 7’ and parallel to the property line along Stonetree. 
 

• Small shrubs, such as Hostas, will be planted approximately 8’ to 10’ apart 
along the south side of fence line to minimize the look of the fence. 

• 4’ high fence will help to provide security for Mr. Kyriakoza’s children. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeal meeting adjourned at 8:55 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft  June 15, 2007 
 
A meeting of the Troy Charter Revision Committee was held Friday, June 15, 2007, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. In the absence of Chairman Bliss, City Clerk Bartholomew 
called the Meeting to order at 7:33 AM. 

 
ROLL CALL:  PRESENT: Lillian Barno, Jerry E. Bloom, David 

Eisenbacher, Shirley Kanoza, Cynthia A. Wilsher 
 ABSENT: Daniel Bliss, Mark Solomon 

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Nelson, City Attorney Bluhm, Assistant City 
Manager/Finance and Administration Lamerato, and City 
Clerk Bartholomew 

 
RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE AGENDA TO INCLUDE APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-06-0001 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Barno 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be AMENDED to include the Appointment of a Vice-Chair.  
 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-06-0002 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilshire 
 
RESOLVED, That Jerry Bloom be APPOINTED as Vice-Chair of the Charter Revision 
Advisory Committee.  
 
Yes: Barno, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: Bloom  
Absent: Bliss, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Monday, July 25, 2005 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-003 
Moved by Wilshire 
Seconded by Barno 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Minutes of Monday, July 25, 2005 are 
hereby APPROVED as presented. 

-1- 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft  June 15, 2007 
 
 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS: 
 
SECTION 4.6 AND 6.2 (E) – EXCUSED ABSENCES OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-06-004 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilshire 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS no proposed 
language amendments to the Charter of the City of Troy to be forwarded to the Council for 
placement on the November 2007 Ballot at this time and if a need arises the item to be 
readdressed in the future. 
 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-06-0005 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Wilshire 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Meeting of Friday, June 15, 2007 be 
ADJOURNED. 
 
Vice-Chair Bloom ADJOURNED the meeting at 7:48 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 

Jerry E. Bloom, Vice-Chair  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

-2- 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 19, 2007 

 1

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, June 19, 2007 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael W. Bartnik 

Glenn Clark    
Kenneth Courtney 
Marcia Gies 
Matthew Kovacs 
Mark Maxwell 
Wayne Wright 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
  Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
  Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF MAY 15, 2007 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of May 15, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas: 6 – Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Clark, Courtney 
Abstain: 1 - Bartnik 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE RENEWAL.  MNAD PROPERTY II LLC, 3236 ROCHESTER 
ROAD, for relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the south property 
line where non-residential property abuts residential zoning. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief of a six-foot high 
screening wall required by Section 39.10.01 along the south property line where the 
property abuts residentially zoned land.  The variance was originally granted in 1968 
and annually renewed for a number of years.  In 1994 it was reported to the Board of 
Zoning Appeals that the variance was no longer necessary.  A review of the records 
indicates that was not the case.  The petitioner is asking that the original variance be 
renewed on the property.       
 
Mr. Stimac further explained that in 1963 this property was zoned R-1D (Single Family 
Residential).  In October 1967, Council passed a re-zoning request and re-zoned the 
western portion of this property to B-2.  At the time of re-zoning it was still used as a 
single family residence.  In 1968 the owner of the property petitioned to convert this 
property from a single family residence to an office building.  As part of the conversion 
the screen wall requirement was imposed.  At that time the petitioner applied to the 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01p



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 19, 2007 

 2

 
ITEM #2 – con’t. 
Board of Zoning Appeals for relief of the screen wall.  That relief was granted in 1968 
and annually renewed for a number of years.  In 1994 the eastern residential portion of 
the property was sold off and developed as a single family residential subdivision and a 
screen wall was constructed at the eastern boundary of the B-2 Zoning.  At that time it 
was reported to the Board that a variance was no longer required.   However, the south 
property line still abuts to residential zoning and there has been no action taken on that 
portion of the property.  A 6’ high screen wall would be required along approximately the 
eastern 105’ of the south property line.   
 
Because this request is different from a regular variance renewal, a Public Hearing has 
been published and notices sent to surrounding property owners to inform them that a 
variance is required. 
 
Mr. Maged Michail, the owner of the property was present and stated that he believes 
the variance should be continued.  There is an existing screen wall along the east side 
of the property and a fence along one-third of the property on the south side.  There is 
also existing landscaping along the property line. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Karen and Mike Walzak, 1031 Boyd were present.   Ms. Walzak stated that the trees 
have been cut down and the area has not been taken care of.  Ms. Walzak said that she 
would like to see something put up in this area. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what type of screening she would like in this area. 
 
Ms. Walzak stated that she would like to see something permanent put up as people cut 
through her property. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if she would like a wall. 
 
Ms. Walzak said that she would like to see a screening wall put up. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if Ms. Walzak would be opposed to the Board granting renewal of this 
variance. 
 
Ms. Walzak said that she would be opposed to a variance without a wall. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if she was the owner of the property. 
 
Ms. Walzak said that she has lived here for twenty (20) years and does own the 
property. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 19, 2007 

 3

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Michail said that he has owned this property since October and the landscaper cut 
the bushes and trees too much.  He would be more than willing to re-install the 
landscaping to make Ms. Walzak happy.  Mr. Michail went on to say that he owns the 
property running along Rochester Road to the south and at one time the City had trucks 
from the Engineering Department parked on the site.  Relief of the screening wall was 
granted between 1968 and 1994 and he would like to see this relief continued. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the City requires some type of screening between a business 
and residential property.  They can grant relief of a variance that will run between one 
and three years.  Mr. Maxwell stated that he would like the opportunity to go and view 
this property again. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked Ms. Walzak if she thought they could come to an equitable 
agreement with the property owner. 
 
Ms. Walzak said that she wants a wall separating the properties. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if Ms. Walzak owned the property to the south of this site. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that Ms. Walzak’s property was to the south of this site.  Mr. Stimac 
also stated that the Rochester Road frontage property to the south did have a building 
on it and as part of the development of that property was required to have a screening 
wall constructed.  When Rochester Road was widened the City bought the property and 
tore the building down.  As a vacant site, the wall was no longer required but remained 
until it fell down on a wind storm in 2003.  Although no separation was required, the City 
agreed to put in a wooden fence.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the Board could require a screening wall. 
 
Ms. Stimac said that according to the Ordinance a 6’ high masonry screen wall is 
required.  The Board can grant renewal of relief of this requirement.  The Board can 
also deny this request and require construction of a masonry wall or the Board could 
require the petitioner to put up a berm or landscaping in lieu of the wall.   
 
Mr. Stimac also said that in making that determination the Board can consider the 
current and future use of the adjacent property.  Mr. Stimac did not have a written 
document from the Planning Director regarding this adjacent property.  However, the 
Future Land Use Plan of the area shows that the Rochester Road frontage is planned 
for retail commercial use.  At the current depth of the zoning, the corner of Rochester 
and Boyd is not large enough to build anything.   
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 19, 2007 

 4

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that in his opinion a masonry-screening wall would be out of place 
and he would like to see the fence extended.  A fence would keep people from 
trespassing onto the Walzak’s property and would solve the property. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of MNAD Property II LLC, 3236 Rochester Road, for 
relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the south property line where 
non-residential property abuts residential zoning until the meeting of July 17, 2007. 
 

• To allow Board members to look at property in question. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL JULY 17, 2007 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  RANDALL A. WHINNERY, 2078 TUSCANY, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of an existing residence that 
will result in a 29’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum 
rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that he received a letter from the petitioner asking that this request 
be withdrawn. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that this item had been postponed to allow the petitioner the 
opportunity to determine if there was any way to decrease the size of the original 
variance request.  The petitioner did not respond to the request of the Board. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to accept the withdrawal request of Randall A. Whinnery, 2078 Tuscany, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of an existing residence that 
will result in a 29’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum 
rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 

• At the request of the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL CARRIED 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 19, 2007 

 5

ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. MICHAEL LARCH, 91 BILTMORE, 
for relief of the Zoning Ordinance to construct a detached garage that will result in a 3’ 
setback from the west property line. 

 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a detached garage.  The site plan submitted indicates the construction of a detached 
garage with a setback of 3’ from the west property line.  Section 40.56.02 (D) requires a 
6’ minimum setback to any side or rear property line. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what the distance from the property lines of the homes to the west 
were.   
 
Mr. Stimac said that he thought the setback of the duplex at 103-105 Biltmore appeared 
to be about 10’.  He also thought that the house at 81 Biltmore was approximately 16’ to 
the property line and the garage appears to be between 3’ and 5’. 
 
Mr. David Calcaterra, of Miller Garages, representing Mr. & Mrs. Larch was present.  
Mr. Calcaterra said that this is a very narrow lot and the 3’ difference would make a 
large difference in the area of the yard they would be able to utilize.  Mr. Calcaterra also 
said that they would be willing to put in a firewall on the side of the garage that is next to 
the fence. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if this was the usual setback for detached garages in other Cities. 
 
Mr. Calcaterra said because the lot is so narrow, this is what they had proposed. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he did not have a problem with the 3’ side yard setback. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he thought that most of the garages in this area are closer to the 
side yards than 6’. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Michael Larch, 91 Biltmore, relief of the Zoning Ordinance 
to construct a detached garage that will result in a 3’ setback from the west property 
line. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• This lot is a very narrow lot. 

 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 19, 2007 

 6

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 

• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would preclude full enjoyment and would 
be unnecessarily burdensome. 

• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he has seen a number of structures available at retail stores that 
would be construed as gazebos and asked if the City would allow them. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the placement of these structures would still have to comply with 
the setback requirements of permanent structures.  Mr. Stimac also stated that he has 
attempted to determine whether or not these structures would be able to withstand wind 
or a snow loads.  He has been unable to get any of this information from the 
manufacturers and would be concerned, that although they are heavy, they may not be 
able to withstand a strong wind. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the City would approve them. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that as long as they met the Ordinance requirements they would be 
approved. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:11 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
              
      Mark Maxwell, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



TO: MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL 
FROM: LORI GRIGG BLUHM, CITY ATTORNEY 

ROBERT F. DAVISSON, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
CHRISTOPHER J. FORSYTH, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY  
SUSAN M. LANCASTER, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
ALLAN T. MOTZNY, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 

DATE: July 2, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: 2007 SECOND QUARTER LITIGATION REPORT 
 

 
The following is the quarterly report of pending litigation and other matters 

of interest.  The accomplishments during the SECOND quarter of 2007 are in 
bold. 
 

A. ANATOMY OF THE CASE 
 

Once a lawsuit has been filed against the City or City employees, the City 
Attorney’s office prepares a memo regarding the allegations in the complaint.  At that 
time, our office requests authority from Council to represent the City and/or the 
employees.  Our office then engages in the discovery process, which generally lasts 
for several months, and involves interrogatories, requests for documents, and 
depositions.  After discovery, almost all cases are required to go through case 
evaluation (also called mediation).  In this process, three attorneys evaluate the 
potential damages, and render an award.  This award can be accepted by both 
parties, and will conclude the case.  However, if either party rejects a case evaluation 
award, there are potential sanctions if the trial result is not as favorable as the 
mediation award.  In many cases, a motion for summary disposition will be filed at the 
conclusion of discovery.  In all motions for summary disposition, the Plaintiff’s version 
of the facts are accepted as true, and if the Plaintiff still has failed to set forth a viable 
claim against the City, then dismissal will be granted.  It generally takes at least a year 
before a case will be presented to a jury.  It also takes approximately two years before 
a case will be finalized in the Michigan Court of Appeals and/or the Michigan Supreme 
Court.   

 
B. ZONING CASES 

 
These are cases where the property owner has sued for a use other than that for 
which the land is currently zoned and/or the City is suing a property owner to 
require compliance with the existing zoning provisions.  
 
1. Troy v. Papadelis and Papadelis v. Troy - This is a case filed by the City 

against Telly’s Nursery, seeking to enjoin the business from using the 
northern parcel for commercial purposes.  After a lengthy appellate history, 
an order was entered in the Oakland County Circuit Court, requiring 
compliance on or before April 29, 2002.  The Papadelis family failed to 
comply with the court’s order, and therefore a Contempt Motion was filed.  
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Colleen O’Brien determined that the 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



defendants were in contempt of court, and required them to pay $1,000 to 
the City of Troy.  However, the court also determined that the defendants 
were in compliance with the City of Troy zoning ordinances as of the date 
of the court decision.  The Troy City Council authorized an appeal of this 
decision to the Michigan Court of Appeals.  It was filed on September 27, 
2002. The neighbors filed an application for leave to appeal, which was 
denied by the Michigan Court of Appeals on 2/10/03.   After receiving 
criminal citations from the City for expansion of the business, Papadelis 
filed a federal lawsuit against the City of Troy, alleging civil rights violations 
and seeking an injunction against the prosecution and/or further expansion.  
The neighboring property owners filed a Motion to Intervene, which was 
granted by Federal US District Court Judge Arthur Tarnow.  Troy filed a 
counterclaim in the Federal Court case but it was dismissed by Judge 
Tarnow, who refused to exercise jurisdiction over the counter-complaint, 
since it would require him to interpret the opinion of the Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge.  Troy has subsequently filed two separate motions to 
dismiss the Papadelis complaint. One of the motions asserted the same 
jurisdictional claim that was raised against the counter-complaint.  The 
Court granted Troy’s motion based on jurisdictional issues and dismissed 
the case without prejudice.  The court did not rule on the other motion, but 
instead, directed the Papadelises to re-file their case in state court.  The 
Papadelis family then re-filed its lawsuit in Oakland County Circuit Court.  
Troy filed an answer and a counterclaim.  Troy also immediately filed a 
motion for summary disposition seeking dismissal of the complaint and a 
judgment in favor of Troy. The counterclaim seeks an order requiring the 
Papadelis family to remove two greenhouses and other structures that 
have been built upon the property without approvals that are required 
under the zoning ordinance.  The Court scheduled an early intervention 
conference (settlement conference) for October 18, 2005.  The Court has 
set the hearing date for the Motion for Summary Disposition for January 4, 
2006.  Subsequent to the filing of Troy’s Motion for Summary Disposition, 
Plaintiffs’ filed a Cross Motion for Summary Disposition, and the hearing 
was rescheduled for January 18, 2006.  On February 17, 2006, the Court 
entered its written Opinion and Order, dismissing the Papadelis claim for 
money damages and their claim for injunctive relief.  However, the Court 
also granted Summary Disposition in favor of the Plaintiffs on their claim for 
declaratory relief, and held that “retail” activity was not occurring on the 
northern parcel, and that the “agricultural” activities on the northern parcel 
were protected under the Right to Farm Act.  Additionally the Court ruled 
the Plaintiffs’ were exempt from City permitting requirements under the 
agricultural building permit exemption of the State Construction Code Act.  
The Court also dismissed the City’s counterclaim.  Troy has filed an appeal 
with the Michigan Court of Appeals.  Plaintiffs’ have filed a cross appeal 
challenging the dismissal of their claims for money damages and injunctive 
relief.  All the required briefs have been filed with the Court of Appeals, 
which will either schedule an oral argument or will inform the parties that 
the case will be decided without oral argument.  Since this case was 

 2



assigned to the expedited track for summary disposition appeals, a final 
decision on appeal is expected before the end of September of this year. 
On June 16, 2006, the Building Department discovered that the Papadelis 
family was erecting a new, large pole barn structure on the property at 
3301 John R. Road.  This structure was likely in violation of local and/or 
state law.  The Building Department followed the procedure for issuing a 
Stop Work Order.  In addition, our office filed an emergency motion with the 
Court of Appeals, seeking to enjoin construction of the building pending 
final outcome of the appeal.  On June 21, 2006, the Court of Appeals 
granted the motion for immediate consideration, but denied the motion to 
enjoin construction of the building.  The denial of the motion has no bearing 
on the final outcome of this appeal, and if Troy ultimately prevails on 
appeal, the new building will have to be removed.  Despite the issuance of 
the Stop Work Order, the construction continued on the new building.  The 
Papadelis Family then filed a Motion to hold the City Attorney and the 
Director of Building and Zoning in contempt of court.  In this Motion, the 
Papadelis family argued that the Circuit Court ruling (Judge Colleen 
O’Brien) allows the construction of the new building without a permit and 
without having to comply with the zoning ordinance provisions regulating 
the size and location of buildings.  Judge O’Brien denied this Motion on 
June 28, 2006, and ruled that her earlier ruling (the ruling on appeal) was 
limited to the buildings on the property at the time of the ruling, and did not 
extend to allow for new construction on the site.  On September 19, 2006, 
the Court of Appeals affirmed the decisions of the Circuit Court.  Thus, the 
Court affirmed the declaratory judgment in favor of the plaintiffs, but it also 
affirmed the dismissal of plaintiff’s civil rights claims against the City, Mark 
Stimac, and Marlene Struckman.  Troy has filed an Application for Leave to 
Appeal with the Michigan Supreme Court.  The Michigan Municipal League 
is also filing an amicus brief in support of the City’s Application for Leave to 
Appeal.  The Papadelis family filed a Cross Application for Leave to 
Appeal.  If the Supreme Court denies both the Application for Leave to 
Appeal and the Cross Application for Leave to Appeal, the Court of 
Appeals decision becomes the final decision in this case.  The Supreme 
Court may grant both the Application and Cross Application for Leave to 
Appeal, or it may grant one and deny the other, or it may grant either 
Application in part and limit the issues that it will review.  The Michigan 
Municipal League (MML) has prepared an Amicus Brief in support of the 
municipal position, and the Papadelis family has opposed the MML’s 
Motion for Leave To File the Amicus Brief.  The parties are now waiting for 
the Michigan Supreme Court to take action.  On June 29, 2007, in lieu of 
granting leave to appeal, the Michigan Supreme Court ruled in favor 
of the City, and reversed the decisions of the Oakland County Circuit 
Court and the Court of Appeals.  The case will now be remanded back 
to the Oakland County Circuit Court for an order requiring the 
Papadelis family to comply with Troy’s zoning ordinances.  The 
Michigan Supreme Court declared that the greenhouses and pole 
barn are not “incidental to the use for agricultural purposes of the 

 3



land on which they are located.”  Plaintiff’s cross appeal against the 
City was denied.      

 
2. Milano Development Company, Inc. v. City of Troy, et. al. – This lawsuit 

was filed on December 11, 2006.  It seeks to amend part of a plat to vacate an 
easement reserved on the original plat of the Square Acres Subdivision Plat, 
located in Section 14.  The Plaintiff is proposing to develop a 13-unit site 
condominium project on Lot 17.  The City has already granted preliminary site 
plan approval of the proposed Athens Park Site Condominium Project.   
However, the development cannot be completed in accordance with the 
approved site plan unless the private roadway easement is vacated.  
The Plaintiff is currently working on a proposed Consent Judgment, 
which will incorporate the requests of the attorneys of record.   Once 
finalized, the proposed Consent Judgment will be forwarded to City 
Council for action. 

 
3. Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Ltd.Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al.  

The Plaintiffs, Nick and Leslie Karagiannakis, are the owners of property 
that is designated as “Outlot B” in the Troy Villas Subdivision No. 1 
(north of Square Lake Road, west of Rochester Road).  The Co-Plaintiff, 
Garrett Family Limited Partnership (hereinafter “Garrett”) has a purchase 
agreement with the Karagiannakis family for a portion of this property, 
which has or will be combined with the rear portions of other parcels that 
front on Square Lake Road. Garrett proposes to build a 12-unit site 
condominium on this approximately 6.04 acre parcel, which is currently 
landlocked and is located behind several homes that front on Ottawa and 
Donaldson.  The plat for the property does not expressly designate a 
public roadway easement that would allow for a roadway to be 
constructed over the property owned by co-defendants Arthur and 
Delphine Lubiarz (480 Ottawa) and James and Cynthia Smith (536 
Ottawa- actually on the adjoining plat).  The express language of the plat 
grants only a 43-foot private easement- not a public road. In 1981, a 
private driveway agreement over this 43-foot private easement allowed 
for the construction of the Karagiannakis’ residence (500 Ottawa).  
However, this agreement is extremely limited, and authorizes only a 
private driveway to a single-family residence.   It could not be used to 
service a 12-unit condominium site.  Plaintiffs seek to convert the private 
easement to a public road, which is required for the proposed 
development.  The Plaintiffs previously filed an action for Declaratory 
Judgment, and the City argued that the complaint was not correctly filed, 
since the requested relief could only be granted through a re-plat lawsuit 
under the Michigan Subdivision Control Act.  Under this law, a plat 
revision complaint needs to be filed against all persons having an 
interest that could be impacted by revisions to the plat.  Plaintiffs 
thereafter agreed to voluntarily dismiss their Declaratory Judgment 
action lawsuit, and have now filed this plat revision lawsuit.  In the 
alternative, Plaintiffs have also pled a count asking the Court to allow it 

 4



to put in a public or private road that is less than the 60- foot width 
required by City ordinance. The City has filed an Answer to the 
Complaint and discovery is continuing.  

 
C.  EMINENT DOMAIN CASES 

 
These are cases in which the City wishes to acquire property for a public 

improvement and the property owner wishes to contest either the necessity or the 
compensation offered. In cases where only the compensation is challenged, the 
City obtains possession of the property almost immediately, which allows for 
major projects to be completed.    

 
1.  Parkland Acquisition (Section 36) 

 
1. Troy v. Premium Construction, L.L.C. – The City has filed this lawsuit 

against Premium Construction, L.L.C. (John Pavone and Mukesh Mangala) 
to acquire property for a park in Section 36.  After a prolonged discovery 
process, a bench trial began on February 22, 2005.  The Court had to 
interrupt the bench trial proceedings with a number of other matters, 
including criminal jury trials, and had the parties on stand by and/or took 
limited testimony for several months.  The last testimony in the lengthy 
bench trial was taken on June 10, 2005.  After the testimony, the Judge 
required the parties to submit post-trial “Finding of Facts and Conclusion of 
Law” and a summary Memorandum, which were timely submitted by July 
13, 2005.  Replies to those briefs were due July 20, 2005.  The parties are 
now anxiously waiting for the Judge’s decision.   It is unknown when the 
decision will be rendered.  After several months, Oakland County Circuit 
Court Judge Mark Goldsmith requested portions of the transcript of the 
lengthy trial proceedings.  Unfortunately, this request has been 
unexpectedly delayed, since the transcribing court reporter broke his wrist, 
and is unable to complete the work himself and/or have others complete it 
for him.  The parties continue to wait for the Court’s decision.   The Court 
issued his written opinion on February 3, 2006.  The Defendants filed a 
Motion for Attorney Fees, and a hearing on that request was scheduled for 
April 5, 2006.  The Court issued a written order on June 9, 2006 
determining the amount of attorney fees.  An appeal of the Court’s 
decisions was filed with the Michigan Court of Appeals on June 30, 2006.  
The Michigan Court of Appeals subsequently ordered mandatory 
facilitation, which is continuing.  The trial transcript was completed and filed 
with the Court of Appeals.  The City’s appellate brief was due on March 30, 
2007.  Just prior to this filing deadline, the parties reached a 
settlement of this case, which resulted in a significant savings in the 
statutory attorney fees.  The case on appeal has been dismissed and 
this case is now closed. 
 

 

 5



D. CIVIL RIGHTS CASES 
 
 These are cases that are generally filed in the federal courts, under 42 U.S.C. 
Section 1983.  In these cases, the Plaintiffs argue that the City and/or police officers of 
the City of Troy somehow violated their civil rights.   

 
1. Hooters v. Troy- Hooters filed this lawsuit against the City in Federal 

District Court after its state court case was dismissed, and after the 
Michigan Court of Appeals denied Plaintiff’s motion for peremptory 
reversal. Hooters alleges that in denying its request to transfer a Class C 
Liquor License, Troy City Council violated its constitutional freedom of 
speech, equal protection, and due process rights. City Council’s action, 
according to the federal complaint, has caused Hooters to delay the 
opening of its new restaurant at Rochester and Big Beaver, and to lose 
significant profits. Consequently, Hooters has requested damages in 
excess of a million dollars. On November 22, 2006 we filed a motion for 
summary judgment asking District Court Judge Julian A. Cook to dismiss 
the case. On February 28, 2007, Judge Cook heard our motion, and 
abstained on the case, which now stays all proceedings on the federal 
case until there is a final resolution in the state court lawsuit.  On May 21, 
2007, Troy City Council approved a consent judgment, which settled 
the case. 
 

2. Gerald Molnar v. Janice Pokley, the City of Troy et al.-  Plaintiff filed this 
lawsuit against the City and Troy Detective Janice Pokley, after a jury 
found him not guilty of the charge of Criminal Sexual Conduct in the 
Second Degree. Plaintiff alleges that the City and Detective Pokley violated 
his constitutional rights to be from an unreasonable seizure, due process, 
and equal protection.  These constitutional violations allegedly occurred 
during the criminal sexual conduct investigation of Plaintiff.   Plaintiff also 
claims that the Troy defendants conspired with other named defendants to 
violate his constitutional rights, and intentionally inflicted emotional distress 
on Plaintiff.  Plaintiff is requesting an unspecified amount of compensatory, 
exemplar, and punitive damages. On February 27, 2007, Troy filed a 
motion to dismiss, or in the alternative summary judgment.  Plaintiff filed 
his response to our motion to dismiss on May 21, 2007.  The parties 
are now waiting for U.S. District Court Judge Gerald E. Rosen to set a 
hearing date.     
 

3.   Kenneth Morrell v Troy, et al.  Plaintiff Kenneth Morrell filed a lawsuit 
against the City of Troy and Troy Police Officer Meghan Broderick.  In the 
complaint, Mr. Morrell alleges a count of assault, gross negligence, a 
violation of Michigan’s Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act 
(PWDCRA), Constitutional violations, false imprisonment, and racial 
discrimination.  The lawsuit was filed in Oakland County Circuit Court 
and assigned to Judge Steven N. Andrews. 

 6



According to the complaint, the Plaintiff is a disabled person who is 
African-American.  He contends that the PWDCRA entitles him to have 
employees of self-service gas stations pump gasoline into his car on 
demand.  He alleges that on April 28, 2006 he drove to the BP gas station 
at Maple and John R., seeking some gasoline for his car.  Plaintiff claims 
that his request for gasoline was denied, and that the gas station owner/ 
operator instead contacted the Troy Police, who sent Officer Broderick to 
the scene.  In his complaint, he alleges that Officer Broderick aided and 
abetted the gas station employees in violating his rights under the 
PWDCRA.  He also complains that Officer Broderick drew a weapon (a 
handgun) on the Plaintiff without justification.  Officer Broderick denies 
that she drew a handgun, although the circumstances may have justified 
it. She did take her department issued taser out of the holster, but did not 
use it. Plaintiff also complains that another unidentified Troy police 
sergeant told him he was permanently barred from the BP gas station, 
and that he would be arrested for trespassing if he returned.  He claims 
the incident resulted in emotional agitation, forcing him to seek medical 
help, including medication for his nerves. He is seeking over $25,000 in 
damages, plus attorney fees and costs. Plaintiff has also named the gas 
station owners and its manager as co-defendants in this lawsuit.  Troy 
has filed a Motion for Summary Disposition.  The hearing on the motion 
is scheduled for July 20, 2007. 

   
E. PERSONAL INJURY AND DAMAGE CASES 

 
These are cases in which the Plaintiff claims that the City or City 

employees were negligent in some manner that caused injuries and/or property 
damage.  The City enjoys governmental immunity from ordinary negligence, 
unless the case falls within one of four exceptions to governmental immunity:  a) 
defective highway exception, which includes sidewalks and road way claims; b) 
public building exception, which imposes liability only when injuries are caused by 
a defect in a public building; c) motor vehicle exception, which imposes liability 
when an employee is negligent when operating their vehicle; d) proprietary 
exception, where liability is imposed when an activity is conducted primarily to 
create a profit, and the activity somehow causes injury or damage to another; e)  
trespass nuisance exception, which imposes liability for the flooding cases.     

 
1. Norma Robertson v. City of Troy- Plaintiff has filed this lawsuit, claiming 

that the City is liable for injuries she sustained after falling on a sidewalk in 
front of 392 Hickory. The complaint alleges that the City is liable under the 
defective highway exception. According to the complaint, on January 10, 
2006, Plaintiff was walking on the sidewalk when she tripped over a raised 
portion of concrete. This raised portion, she alleges, caused severe 
injuries, including a broken right arm.  We filed our answer to the 
complaint and engaged in limited discovery. In response to a 
discovery request, we received a photograph from Plaintiff, showing 

 7



the area of the sidewalk where Plaintiff allegedly tripped and fell. This 
photograph showed that there was a small discontinuity defect 
between two slabs of sidewalk that was less than two inches.  Under 
Michigan law, if sidewalk discontinuities are less than 2 inches, there 
is a presumption that the sidewalk is in reasonable repair.  Since 
governmental immunity is pierced only when sidewalks are not kept 
in reasonable repair, we immediately filed a motion for summary 
disposition. On June 6, 2007, the Court granted the City’s motion for 
summary disposition, and the Plaintiff’s case against the City has 
now been dismissed without liability.   

 
2. Mary Ann Hennig v. City of Troy- Plaintiff has filed this lawsuit, claiming 

that the City is liable for injuries she sustained after her vehicle was struck 
by a Troy Police Officer as he was pursuing a suspected drug dealer.  Her 
complaint alleges serious impairment of a bodily function, in that she has 
neurological damages.  The City has filed an answer to the complaint, and 
the parties are now conducting discovery.  Discovery is continuing.   
 

 
F. MISCELLANEOUS CASES 

 
1. In Re Hooters of Troy Inc. – Hooters has filed this lawsuit to challenge the June 

19, 2006 City Council denial of their application to transfer a liquor license and 
entertainment permit.  Hooters was seeking to re-locate their business from 
John R to Rochester Road, to the building that was previously occupied by the 
Wagon Wheel Saloon.   Hooters has signed agreements with the former 
owners (Sign of the Beef Carver- Wagon Wheel), for the building and also the 
liquor license with entertainment permit.  Pursuant to state law, local legislative 
approval is required for a transfer of Class C Liquor License and entertainment 
permit.  In their complaint, Hooter’s alleges that the City Council denial of the 
transfer of the liquor license violates their equal protection rights and due 
process rights.  They are asking the Court for an order of superintending 
control, which means they are asking a Circuit Court Judge to overrule City 
Council’s decision.  Hooters is also asking for costs, attorney fees, and 
incidental damages as a result of the delay in moving its operation to 
Rochester Road.  Shortly after filing their complaint, Hooter’s filed a motion 
requesting a superintending control order. On July 26, 2006 Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge John McDonald, after hearing argument, denied Hooter’s 
motion and dismissed their case. Judge McDonald in making his ruling, stated 
that municipalities are afforded broad discretion in review applications for new 
or transferred liquor licenses, and that Troy City Council exercised this 
discretion properly in denying Hooter’s request for to transfer a Class C Liquor 
License and new entertainment permit.  On August 4, 2006, Hooters filed a 
claim of appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals. They also filed a motion for 
immediate consideration and motion for peremptory reversal arguing that 
Judge McDonald’s decision was so blatantly wrong that immediate reversal is 
warranted. On August 16, 2006, the Court of Appeals granted Hooter’s motion 

 8



for immediate consideration but denied their motion for peremptory reversal. 
Hooter’s appeal is still pending, and all the required briefs have been filed with 
the Court of Appeals.  Pursuant to the approved consent judgment in the 
federal court case, Hooters has dismissed its appeal in the Michigan 
Court of Appeals, and the case is now closed.   

2. Troy v. George Roberts – This nuisance abatement action was filed after the 
City received multiple complaints from neighbors about the unsafe and 
unsanitary conditions existing at Defendant’s residence, located at 6791 
Livernois Rd., in the City of Troy.  According to reports from his neighbors, 
Defendant accumulated a large amount of trash, papers and debris inside his 
residence.  There also was a concern that the residence did not have working 
plumbing.  These reports were confirmed by subsequent inspections by Troy 
Building Inspectors, who observed multiple ordinance violations at Defendant’s 
home.  On November 17th, our office filed a lawsuit and a motion for a 
preliminary injunction with the Oakland County Circuit Court. Judge Mark A. 
Goldsmith entered an order on November 29, 2006, precluding Defendant 
from occupying the home until the first floor of the property was brought in 
compliance with the City’s Property Maintenance Code.  The order allows 
Defendant to clean his residence in phases, but requires completion of the 
entire project by January 10, 2007.  Defendant substantially complied with the 
Court’s order, and cleaned most of his property.  However, since there were 
still violations, some of which were impacted by the winter weather, the Court 
ordered another inspection for March 7th.  After this inspection, Troy’s Building 
Inspectors reported that all violations were corrected.  We then prepared a 
proposed consent judgment to finalize the case.  Under the terms of the 
consent judgment, the City would continue to monitor Defendant’s property by 
conducting inspections every quarter for a period of one year.  On March 14, 
2007, Mr. Roberts agreed to the terms of the proposed consent judgment.  The 
Consent Judgment was approved by Troy City Council at the April 2, 2007 City 
Council meeting.  Although the case has now been dismissed, the City is 
obligated to conduct periodic inspections.  In June, the inspection 
revealed that the property is still in compliance with the City ordinances.    

          3.         Nardi v Troy, et al.  - Plaintiff Leroy S. Nardi named the City of Troy, 
the County of Oakland, and the State of Michigan as Defendants in this 
lawsuit filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of 
Michigan.  The Plaintiff owns a parcel of land located at 97 East Wattles.  
On April 26, 2001, he received a letter from the Building Department, 
advising him that public sanitary sewer would soon be available to service 
his property, since there was a new subdivision that abutted his property.  
The letter informed Mr. Nardi of Chapter 20, which at that time required 
connection to the newly available public sewer within 18 months.  This 
mandatory connection included a $200.00 Interceptor Connection fee (tap 
fee) and a $3,400.00 Lateral Benefit Charge.  These costs could be 
financed over a 40- year period of time, through a Sewer Contract with the 
City.  In November 2001, Plaintiff’s septic system on the property was 

 9



showing signs of failure, and the Oakland County Health Department was 
investigating the matter.  On November 21, 2001, the Plaintiff signed a 
Sewer Contract with the City, where he agreed to pay the sewer connection 
fees for the hook up in quarterly installments of $57.00 each.   Pursuant to 
the contract, unpaid installments are collected in the same manner as taxes, 
which mean that all delinquent payments are forwarded to Oakland County 
for collection and/or foreclosure proceedings.  As a result of Plaintiff’s failure 
to pay the quarterly installments, Oakland County initiated foreclosure 
proceedings for the property. 

In the lawsuit, Plaintiff seeks an injunction to stop the foreclosure proceeding, 
as well as reimbursement for all sewer fees previously paid, and punitive 
damages in the amount of $500,000.00.  Plaintiff filed the complaint without 
the assistance of an attorney, and his basis for relief is not exactly clear.  He 
contends all defendants have violated his rights under the 5th, 7th, and 14th 
Amendments of the United States Constitution and he alleges fraud, 
extortion, a violation of Article VI, Section 2 of the Constitution, and a taking 
of property without due process of law.  Essentially, he claims the Sewer 
Contract is not valid because he signed it under duress.  He did make a note 
on the contract when signing that said that he was signing it under duress.  
However, without such a contract, the entire collection fee would have been 
immediately due, rather than financing the payments over a 40 year period.  
Plaintiff also challenges the City’s ability to collect a Benefit Charge, because 
a private developer constructed the portion of the sanitary sewer system to 
which his property is connected.  The Benefit Charge is designed to 
reimburse the City for the proportional cost of operating the entire system.  
The City has filed a Motion to Dismiss, which is scheduled for April 23, 2007.  
After receiving Troy’s Motion to Dismiss, Plaintiff hired an attorney to 
represent him.  Plaintiff filed a response to the motion, and oral 
argument was held.  Judge Anna Diggs Taylor granted the Motion in 
part and dismissed Plaintiff’s state law (fraud, contract, duress, 
extortion and common law) claims.  With regard to Plaintiff’s federal 
claims, the Court indicated it would grant the Motion to Dismiss unless 
Plaintiff filed an amended complaint within 20 days.  The Plaintiff filed 
an amended complaint and Troy has filed its Answer and Affirmative 
Defenses.  The case is now in the discovery phase. 

4. In re Collins and Aikman Corporation et al. -- Collins and Aikman has 
filed this complaint for an adversary proceeding against the City of 
Troy in connect with its Chapter 11 bankruptcy case.  According to the 
allegations contained in this complaint, Collins and Aikman is seeking 
to have the 2004 and 2005 City property taxes (totaling $201,997.83) 
declared as unsecured liens.  The taxes have already been paid.  
Similar adversary proceeding complaints were filed against other 
Michigan municipalities.  We have asked for an immediate dismissal of 
the case.  Our response to the complaint is due on or before July 16, 
2007. 

 10



G.  CRIMINAL APPEALS  
 

1. People v Aileen Grace Potter – Ms. Potter was charged with operating a 
motor vehicle while intoxicated.  Her attorney filed a Motion to Dismiss the 
complaint, arguing that the Defendant was not “operating” a motor vehicle 
pursuant to the statute.   Visiting Judge Levy granted the Defendant’s 
Motion.  The City filed a Claim of Appeal with the Oakland County Circuit 
Court.  On February 15, 2007, the Oakland County Circuit Court affirmed 
the trial court’s dismissal.  On March 8, 2007 the City filed an Application 
for Leave to Appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals.  This case 
involves the application of the fairly recent amendments to the drunk 
driving statute, which allow for an arrest when an officer has probable 
cause to believe a defendant drove a vehicle while drunk.  Previously, 
police officers were required to actually observe a defendant drive, unless 
there was an accident.  The Application is still pending at the Michigan 
Court of Appeals. 

 
 

H. ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS 
  

1. In the Matter of the Application of International Transmission 
Company, d/b/a ITCTransmission, for a Certificate of Public 
Convenience and Necessity for the Construction of a Major 
Transmission Line Running From and Through Sterling Heights, Troy, 
Clawson, and Royal Oak, MI.   ITCTransmission has requested 
permission to construct a new major transmission line- the Bismark- 
Troy Project.  After meeting with City Administration, ITC’s proposed 
location for this new transmission line is primarily through industrial 
properties, and underground.  Previously, a route traversing Maple 
Road was considered.  Before any construction can commence, 
ITCTransmission needs to obtain a Certificate of Public Convenience 
and Necessity from the Public Service Commission (PSC).  In this 
proceeding, the PSC determines whether the public benefits justify 
the construction of the new transmission line; whether the proposed 
route is feasible and reasonable; and whether the proposed line 
presents an unreasonable threat to public health or safety.  In this 
particular case, Detroit Edison and Consumers Power filed to 
intervene.  On appeal, these petitions were granted.  The parties are 
now conducting discovery.      

 
 

If you have any questions concerning these cases, please let us know.   

 11



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 9, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
PROPOSED PROCLAMATIONS/RESOLUTIONS FROM
OTHER ORGANIZATIONS:  
J-4 None Proposed   

campbellld
Text Box
J-04



1 7/5/2007agenda

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

July 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

August 2007July 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun

July 1

2 3
7:00pm CANCELLED Ethnic 

Issues Advisory Board
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm CANCELLED Historic 
District Study 
Committee (Museum 

4
City Hall Closed

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

5 6 7

8

9
7:00pm CANCELLED Liquor 

Advisory Committee 
Meeting (Conference 
Room Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

10
7:30am Civil Service 

Commission (Act 78) 
6:00pm Planning Commission 

(Special Meeting) (Co
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 
7:30pm Planning Commission 

11
8:30am Buiilding Code Board 

of Appeals (Lower 
Level Conference Ro

12:00pm Employee's 
Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 

12 13 14

15

16 17
3:00pm BRA Meeting (Council

Boardroom)
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)

18
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

19
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 

7:00pm CANCELLED Cable 
Advisory Committee 
(Conference Room C)

20 21

22

23
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

24
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

25 26 27 28

29

30
3:00pm LDFA Committee 

(Council Boardroom)

31

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



2 7/5/2007agenda

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

August 2007
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

September 2007August 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
August 1

8:30am Building Code Board 
of Appeals (Lower 
Level Conference Ro

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm City Council-Special 
Meeting-Chamber of 

2 3 4

5

6
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

7
7:30pm Historic District Study

Committee (Museum 
Resource Room)

8
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

9 10 11

12

13
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

14
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

15
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

16
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

17 18

19

20
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

21
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)

22
7:00pm Youth Council 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

23 24 25

26

27 28
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

29 30 31



3 7/5/2007agenda

S M T W T F S
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

September 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

October 2007September 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
September 1

2

3
City Hall Closed

4
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Historic District Study
Committee (Museum 
Resource Room)

5
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals (Lower 
Level Conference 
Room)

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

6
1:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

7 8

9

10
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

11
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

12
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

1:00pm Retiree Health Care 
Benefits Board 
(Conference Room C)

13
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

14 15

16

17
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

18
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

19
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

20
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

21 22

23

24 25
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

7:30pm Historical Commission
(Museum Resource 
Room)

26
7:00pm Youth Council 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

27 28 29

30



TO: Mayor and Members of City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: July 2, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Hooters v. Troy – Post Consent Judgment Update 
 

    
 

   
 This memorandum provides Council with an update on events that have transpired 
after the approval of the Hooters consent judgment on May 21, 2007.  On June 1, 2007, 
United States District Court Judge Julian Cook approved the Consent Judgment. That same 
day, Hooters dismissed its appeal pending in the Michigan Court of Appeals.  The following 
week, Troy Public Works Department re-graded and paved the section of Henrietta Avenue 
described in the Consent Judgment, in connection with other paving projects in the area. On 
June 20, 2007 the Michigan Liquor Control Commission approved Hooters Class C liquor 
license application.  The liquor license for the John R. Road location was placed into escrow 
with the MLCC.  Hooters began serving alcohol on June 29th.  Also on June 29th the two pole 
signs and outdoor seating were removed.  According to Hooters’ attorney Ed Lennon, $5,000 
was placed in escrow to pay for the re-grading and paving of Henrietta Avenue.  
 

The only outstanding issues are the verification that the electrical lines for the pole 
signs have been removed or made safe, and the Public Works Department’s installation of 
the signage directing restaurant traffic away from the residential housing on Henrietta.  Due 
to the holiday, we were unable to verify the progress on these items before the agenda 
deadline.  However, these items should be completed well within the allowable time frame 
(prior to July 20, 2007).    
 
  If you have any questions, please let us know. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



 

 

Date July 2, 2007 
 

TO: Phillip L. Nels
 

FROM: Tonni L. Barth
 

SUBJECT: Charter Revis
Excused Abs

  
Background: 
 
 City Council requested tha

to the reasons for approva
concern that the only prov
due to illness or the memb

 Specifically, City Charter S
those Sections, it was de
illness and absence from t
a Council member so lo
affirmative vote of the Cou

 Section 4.6 - Compuls
Any two or more membe
its members and other of
or other officer who when
for reasons other than co
misconduct in office unle
conduct at meetings and
himself in an orderly man
 
Any police officer designa
Arms of the Council in the

 Section 6.2 - Vacancie
Any elective city office sh
following events before th

  (e) In the case of any m
meetings of the Co
unless such absenc
the proceedings of 

  
 The Charter Revision Com

Administration’s interpretat
at this time. A copy of the C
convenience. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT 
on, City Manager 

olomew, City Clerk 

ion Committee Recommendations - Section 4.6 and 6.2 (e) – 
ences of City Council Members 

t the Charter Revision Committee review the Charter in regards 
l of excused absences for City Council members. There was a 
isions for the excuse of a Council member absence was either 
er being out of the county. 
ections 4.6 and 6.2(e) govern Council absences. Upon review of 
termined that the Charter provides for mandatory excusal for 
he county. Council also has the ability to excuse any absence of 
ng as the motion contains the reason for absence and an 
ncil. An excerpt of both sections of the Charter are as follows: 
ory Attendance and Conduct at Meetings: 
rs of the Council may by vote either request or compel the attendance of 
ficers of the city at any meeting of the Council. Any member of the Council 
 notified of such request for his attendance fails to attend such meeting 

nfining illness or absence from Oakland County shall be deemed guilty of 
ss excused by the Council. The presiding officer shall enforce orderly 
 any member of the Council or other officer who shall fail to conduct 

ner at any meeting shall be deemed guilty of misconduct in office. 

ted by the presiding officer of the meeting shall serve as the Sergeant-at-
 enforcement of the provisions of this section.
s in Elective Office: 
all be declared vacant by the Council upon the occurrence of any of the 
e expiration of the term of such office: 
embers of the Council, if such officer shall miss five consecutive regular 

uncil or twenty-five percent of such meetings in any fiscal year of the city, 
es shall be excused by the Council and the reason therefore entered in 

the Council at the time of each absence; 

mittee at their meeting of June 15, 2007, concurred with City 
ion of the Charter and forwarded no recommendations to Council 
harter Revision Committee meeting Minutes is attached for your 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07



 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 

 
Options: 
 
 There are no recommendations to amend the City Charter. 

 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft  June 15, 2007 
 
A meeting of the Troy Charter Revision Committee was held Friday, June 15, 2007, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. In the absence of Chairman Bliss, City Clerk Bartholomew 
called the Meeting to order at 7:33 AM. 

 
ROLL CALL:  PRESENT: Lillian Barno, Jerry E. Bloom, David 

Eisenbacher, Shirley Kanoza, Cynthia A. Wilsher 
 ABSENT: Daniel Bliss, Mark Solomon 

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Nelson, City Attorney Bluhm, Assistant City 
Manager/Finance and Administration Lamerato, and City 
Clerk Bartholomew 

 
RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE AGENDA TO INCLUDE APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-06-0001 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Barno 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be AMENDED to include the Appointment of a Vice-Chair.  
 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-06-0002 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilshire 
 
RESOLVED, That Jerry Bloom be APPOINTED as Vice-Chair of the Charter Revision 
Advisory Committee.  
 
Yes: Barno, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: Bloom  
Absent: Bliss, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Monday, July 25, 2005 
 
Resolution #CR-2005-07-003 
Moved by Wilshire 
Seconded by Barno 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Minutes of Monday, July 25, 2005 are 
hereby APPROVED as presented. 

-1- 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft  June 15, 2007 
 
 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS: 
 
SECTION 4.6 AND 6.2 (E) – EXCUSED ABSENCES OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-06-004 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilshire 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS no proposed 
language amendments to the Charter of the City of Troy to be forwarded to the Council for 
placement on the November 2007 Ballot at this time and if a need arises the item to be 
readdressed in the future. 
 
Yes: Barno, Bloom, Eisenbacher, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss, Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Resolution #CR-2007-06-0005 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Wilshire 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Meeting of Friday, June 15, 2007 be 
ADJOURNED. 
 
Vice-Chair Bloom ADJOURNED the meeting at 7:48 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 

Jerry E. Bloom, Vice-Chair  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

-2- 



TO: Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: July 2, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Liquor License Article in Oakland County Bar Association Publication  
 

 
 

 
 
 Enclosed please find a feature article titled A Mayor, A Commissioner, and a Judge 
Walk Into A Bar… Municipal Authority to Approve, Object to Renewal, and Revoke a Liquor 
License.  Troy Assistant City Attorneys Chris Forsyth and Allan Motzny wrote the attached 
article, which was based, in part, on the research for the Hooters v. City of Troy case.  The 
article is a feature in the June 2007 issue of Laches, which is the monthly publication of the 
Oakland County Bar Association (OCBA).  This publication was distributed to all of the 
3,000+ members of the OCBA, as well as to any other subscribers, including the universities 
and law libraries.  It provides an overview of the municipal powers in liquor licensing matters.        
 
 As always, if you have any questions concerning the above, please let me know.   
   
 
 
 
  

campbellld
Text Box
J-08













campbellld
Text Box
J-09











 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
June 22, 2007 
 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Revisions to 2007 Classified and Exempt Classification Plans 
 
 
Background: 
 
 City Council approved the 2007 Pay Plan for Classified and Exempt Employees on 

June 18, 2007.  Included with the report was the 2007 Classification Plan that listed the 
position titles and respective pay grades to which they had been assigned.   

 In response to inquiries from the City Council, listed below are the considerations upon 
which these Plan revisions were based. 

 
A. Classification Plan for Classified Employees 
1. GIS Data Analyst (Re-titled GIS Analyst, moved from pay grade 4 to pay grade 5) 

The role of GIS Data Analyst has shifted from one of data conversion and collection 
to one of workflow integration: 

− works with a computerized asset management system (Hansen) with emphasis on 
creation and maintenance of City’s utility infrastructure 

− ensures continuity between Asset Inventory, GIS and Pavement Management 
System; maintains continuity between GIS utility network and Hansen asset 
inventory 

− provides pavement management analysis to support annual maintenance and 
capital improvement planning activities 

− coordinates with the city’s Land Surveyor to ensure survey benchmark inventory is 
updated within GIS 

− provides support to staff utilizing Hansen Asset Management software 
− serves as Hansen liaison to Information Technology department. 
− job requirements now include interpersonal skills and technical skills, in both areas 

of database management and project management, in addition to GIS 
 
 

 

PS07M.026 

campbellld
Text Box
J-10



 
Revisions to 2007 C&E Classification Plans 
Page Two 
 
 
2. Legal Assistant II (re-titled from Legal Assistant) 
 Results of a desk audit of one of the Legal Assistant positions demonstrated that 
the position has expanded to include: 

- supervisory responsibility for a full-time and a part-time position 
- conducting legal research 
- maintaining the law library 
- presenting legal updates to employees 
- drafting ordinance changes.   
 
The job responsibilities and required experience are more consistent with the 

supervisory positions in pay grade 5. 
 
B. Classification Plan for Exempt Employees 
1. Police Analyst Programmer (new position): 
 The position of Research and Technology Administrator in the Police Department 
now is primarily devoted to the technology function.  The Police Analyst Programmer 
position will support the Research and Technology Administrator function by performing 
the following: 

- assisting in the planning, research and technology functions of the department 
- collecting, analyzing and maintaining data for quarterly, annual, crime, arrest 

and other statistical reports 
- assisting in preparation of fiscal reports 

 
 Upon the retirement of the current Research and Technology Administrator, the 
Analyst Programmer will be sufficiently trained to be able to assume the functions of the 
Administrator, thus reducing the position count back to one. 
 
2. Community Affairs Director (reassigned from pay grade 7 to pay grade 8) 
 Results of a desk audit of the position demonstrated that the level of responsibility 
and authority has expanded and is more comparable to that of positions in Pay Grade 8, 
as are the Director of Building Operations and the Director of Purchasing.  In addition to 
managing the day-to-day operations of the Community Affairs Department, the Director 
performs the following: 

- exercises broad management control and discretion in hiring and supervising 
full-time and part-time employees 

- conducts staff performance appraisals 
- approves merit pay 
- administers the department budget.   

 
The Community Affairs Director reports directly to the City Manager; therefore, the 
decisions made in this position require only one level of review.  This is in contrast to the 
two or more levels of review required for decisions made by classifications in Pay Grade 7.   
Unique to the Community Affairs Director position is the responsibility to independently 
plan, coordinate and manage the City’s public relations program including the authority to  

PS07M.026 



 
Revisions to 2007 C&E Classification Plans 
Page Three 
 
 
develop and issue press releases and respond to media inquiries.  The position is 
becoming more involved in the City’s economic development program (initiating contact 
and meeting with community business leaders) to assist in attracting and retaining 
businesses in Troy.  Therefore, the level of accountability for this position exceeds that of 
the positions in Pay Grade 7. 
 
3. Economic Development Specialist (new position) 

With the resignation of the former Real Estate & Development Director, the 
determination was made to bring the Real Estate & Development function under the 
general supervision of Asst. City Manager Brian Murphy (whose title was changed to Asst.  
City Manager/Economic Development Services).  Right-of-Way Representative Larysa 
Figol will administer the right-of-way function, and the economic development function will 
be accomplished with the recently hired Economic Development Specialist.  The Specialist  
is responsible for coordinating, implementing and managing programs that support 
commercial, office and industrial business development in the City.   
 
4. Additionally, the City Attorney and City Manager classifications are being removed from 
the Classification Plan for Exempt Employees; they were inadvertently included with the 
Plan previously submitted.  The City Council is not bound by the pay grade system in 
administering salaries for their direct reports, and, therefore it is my recommendation that 
they not be included on the Plan. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
The financial impact of the above-referenced adjustments is mitigated by the fact that the 
resultant salaries will include the merit pay for 2007 rather than be in addition to the merit 
pay amount.  All salary adjustments are captured in the 2007-08 budget. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally by maintaining a fair 
and competitive total compensation package in order to attract and retain qualified 
employees (Goal IV). 
 
Options: 
City management assigns functions to positions based on organizational efficiency, 
productivity and service needs.  Position descriptions and titles are intended to reflect the 
nature of work being performed.  Positions are assigned to pay grades to recognize the 
level of responsibility relative to other internal positions and to assure Troy remains 
competitive.  
 
 

PS07M.026 



TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: July 3, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Papadelis v. City of Troy   
 

 
 
 

Enclosed please find the favorable decision from the Michigan Supreme Court in the 
Papadelis v. City of Troy case.  According to this opinion, the City’s zoning regulations are 
not pre-empted by either the Right to Farm Act or the Michigan Construction Code Act.  
According to the Michigan Supreme Court, the structures used for Telly’s Nursery on John R. 
Road, north of Big Beaver Road, are not “incidental to the use for agricultural purposes of the 
land.”  This means that the Papadelis family is required to comply with the City’s permitting 
requirements, as well as the size, height, bulk, floor area, construction, and location criteria, 
as set forth in our ordinances and development standards.  This is a reversal of the Michigan 
Court of Appeals decision.  The Supreme Court has remanded the case to the Oakland 
County Circuit Court for an order.  The counter-appeal filed by Plaintiffs against the City and 
Mark Stimac and Marlene Struckman was dismissed.      
 
It is unusual for the Supreme Court to award the requested relief without oral argument or an 
official filing of the appellate briefs.  However, the City filed its application for leave to appeal, 
which set forth our legal analysis that supported the requested reversal of the adverse 
decision of the Michigan Court of Appeals.  Although the Michigan Municipal League usually 
waits to see if an application for leave to appeal will be granted before committing to file an 
amicus brief, they agreed to file an amicus brief at the application stage in this case, since the 
Court of Appeals decision could have had far reaching implications to Michigan 
municipalities.  Fortunately, we now have a decision that makes it clear that local zoning 
regulations are not pre-empted by the Right to Farm Act or the Michigan Construction Code 
Act.       
 
If you have any questions, please let us know.  

campbellld
Text Box
J-11







       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 9, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 9, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on 
items, which appear on the printed Agenda, will be 
allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon 
recognition by the Chair in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, during the 
Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. 
Other than asking questions for the purposes of gaining 
insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt or 
debate with members of the public during their 
comments. Once discussion is brought back to the 
Council table, persons from the audience will be 
permitted to speak only by invitation by Council, 
through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of 
the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you 
feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, 
you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the 
City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
K-99 PC



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 9, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 
L-1 Closed Session:  
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (a), Performance Evaluation of City Attorney, Lori 
Grigg Bluhm.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
  

campbellld
Text Box
L-01


	AGENDA: July 9, 2007
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Presentation by Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart – C
	Presentation by Oakland County Commissioners – Robert Gossel


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 No Public Hearings

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Proposed
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership Dues and Membership Renewals Over $10,000: Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG)
	e\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oa�

	E-5 Request to Abandon a Permanent Easement for Water Main –
	E-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water
	E-7 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water
	E-8 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sanit
	E-9 Private Agreement for Troy Church of the Nazarene – Proj
	E-10 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Wate
	E-11 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Wate
	E-12 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Water 
	E-13 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Right of Wa
	E-14 Medi-Go Service Agreement
	E-15 Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2007-2008
	E-16 Private Agreement for Eastridge Medical Office Facility
	E-17 Private Agreement for The Troy Medical Office Facility 
	E-18 Request for Public Hearing on July 23, 2007 for Communi

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Histor
	F-2 Bid Waiver – Drain Improvements
	F-3 Change Order #1 to Section 26 and 30 Bituminous Overlays
	F-4 Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Printing and Distr
	F-5 Annual Performance Evaluation of the City Manager and Ci
	F-6 Adult Use Businesses – Licensing Ordinance
	F-7 Collins and Aikman Corporation, et al

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Request for Street Name Change Daley Street South of Big Bea


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Charter Revision Committee/Final – July 25, 2005
	Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust /Final – March 14,
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – May 3, 2007
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Minutes/Final
	Library Advisory Board/Final – May 10, 2007
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – May 15, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 22, 2007
	Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – May 22, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 5, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 5, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – June 7, 2007
	Planning Commission/Draft – June 12, 2007
	Planning Commission/Final – June 12, 2007
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – June 13, 2007
	Charter Revision Committee/Draft – June 15, 2007
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – June 19, 2007

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Council Member Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Foru
	City Attorney’s Office – 2007 Second Quarter Litigation Repo

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Chief Craft from Carol Stehle in Appreciation of t
	Letter to Chief Nelson from Nancy Negohosian, HMS Products, 
	Letter to Officer Harrison from Janet Martin, Wattles Creek 

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regar
	J-7  Communication from City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew Regardi
	J-8  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regar
	J-9  Communication from City Manager Phillip Nelson and City
	J-10  Communication from Human Resources Director Peggy Sear
	J-11  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Rega

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT
	07.07.09 Agenda - L-01 Closed Session.pdf
	CLOSED SESSION:




